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Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited (HEI) is a leading 
non-life insurance company in Nepal, formed through the 
strategic merger of Himalayan General Insurance Company 
Limited (established in 1993) and Everest Insurance Company 
Limited (established in 1994). The merger, completed in 2022, 
combined two experienced insurers with strong market 
presence, operational expertise, and underwriting capacity 
marking the fi rst-ever merger in Nepal’s insurance industry, 
creating a more resilient and competitive institution.

The Company maintains a strong and balanced capital 
structure, with a paid-up capital of NPR 2.50 billion. 
Promoters hold 51.10% ownership, while the remaining 
48.90% is held by the public, refl ecting a healthy blend 
of promoter commitment and public participation and 
reinforcing confi dence in the Company’s long-term stability.

During the reporting period, HEI recorded gross written 
premium of NPR 4.28 billion, while net written premium 
amounted to NPR 1.76 billion, demonstrating solid 
underwriting performance and effective risk retention 
strategies. Total assets stood at NPR 10.18 billion, supported 
by a well-diversifi ed investment portfolio valued at NPR 
5.24 billion. Gross claims paid during the period amounted 
to NPR 1.96 billion, refl ecting the Company’s commitment 
to timely and transparent settlement of policyholder 
obligations. The solvency margin remained strong at 438.10%, 
signifi cantly exceeding the regulatory requirement of 130%.

The Company’s underwriting portfolio is well diversifi ed 
across major non-life insurance segments with Motor 
insurance accounting 30% of the total portfolio, followed 
by miscellaneous insurance at 23%, property insurance 
at 22%, and engineering insurance at 20%. This balanced 
business mix enables HEI to manage concentration risks 
effectively while supporting sustainable premium growth.
Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited has one of the 
largest operational footprints in Nepal’s insurance 
industry, with 90 offi ces operating nationwide. As of 
Ashad end, 2082 BS, the Company employed 531 skilled 
and dedicated personnel engaged in underwriting, claims 
management, customer service, and operational control. 
The governance framework of HEI is anchored by an 
experienced Board of Directors and a professional 
management team. The Company is chaired by Mr. Mahendra 
Krishna Shrestha, with Ms. Anju Shrestha serving as Chief 
Executive Offi cer. The six-member Board is supported by key 
committees, including the Audit Committee, HR Committee, 
Claims and Reinsurance Committee, Investment Committee, 
Risk Management Committee, IT Committee, ORSA Committee, 
and AML Committee. Through strong governance, prudent 
fi nancial management, a diversifi ed portfolio, and a robust 
solvency position, Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited 
remains well positioned to support Nepal’s growing insurance 
needs while delivering sustainable value to policyholders, 
shareholders, and the broader economy.

COMPANY PROFILE
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COMPANY’S 
VISION, MISSION 
& OBJECTIVES

VISION

OBJECTIVES

The most innovative 
and Trusted Partner

The overall objective of Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited is to 
provide fi nancial protection against unforeseen risks and losses, 
ensuring security and peace of mind for individuals, businesses, 
and communities. This is achieved by offering a diverse range of 
insurance products, ensuring fair claim settlements, maintaining 
fi nancial stability, and contributing to the socio-economic wellbeing 
through corporate social responsibility.

MISSION
To become the leading non-
life insurance company in 
Nepal, recognized for our 
operational excellence and 
exceptional profi tability



9

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

CORE VALUES

Customer First Partnership Empathy

Ownership Growth MindsetTrustworthy

The overall objective of Himalayan 
Everest Insurance Limited is to provide 
fi nancial protection against unforeseen 
risks and losses, ensuring security 
and peace of mind for individuals, 
businesses, and communities. This is 
achieved by offering a diverse range 
of insurance products, ensuring fair 
claim settlements, maintaining fi nancial 
stability, and contributing to the socio-
economic wellbeing through corporate 
social responsibility.

We believe progress happens 
through strong, collaborative 
relationships. By working 
closely with agents, brokers, 
employees, reinsurers, and 
customers, we create shared 
value and sustainable growth. 
Our partnership mindset helps 
us respond effectively to diverse 
needs and market dynamics.

Insurance is about supporting 
people when they face 
uncertainty or hardship. We 
listen with understanding, 
communicate with respect, and 
act with care. Empathy guides 
our approach to customer 
service and claims support, 
enabling us to respond 
sensitively and effectively.

We embrace accountability at 
every level of the organization. 
Each team member is 
empowered to take initiative, 
uphold standards, and 
deliver results with a sense 
of responsibility. Ownership 
strengthens our culture, drives 
operational excellence, and 
ensures reliable service delivery.

We foster a culture of continuous 
learning, innovation, and 
adaptability. By embracing new 
ideas, technologies, and ways 
of working, we ensure that HEI 
remains forward-looking and 
competitive. A growth mindset 
enables us to improve our 
capabilities, enhance service 
quality, and meet evolving 
customer needs.

We conduct our business with 
integrity, transparency, and 
consistency. Our commitment 
to ethical practices and 
responsible decision-making 
enables us to build long-lasting 
confi dence among customers, 
partners, and regulators. We 
strive to be an insurer that 
people can depend on without 
hesitation.
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Regulatory Compliance

Honesty & Fairness 

Social Responsibility 

Respect for Diversity & Inclusion 

Responsible Underwriting & Claims Handling 

Commitment to Stakeholders 

Fair and Transparent Practices 

Confi dentiality 

Professionalism 

Customer Protection 

We strictly adhere to all legal and regulatory requirements 
governing the insurance industry.

We ensure honest communication and fair treatment of all 
stakeholders.

We contribute to the welfare of society through ethical 
business practices and community engagement.

We maintain fairness in risk assessment and timely claims 
settlement.

We maintain fairness in risk assessment and timely claims 
settlement.

We create value for customers, employees, investors, 
and society through ethical decision-making.

We conduct our business with fairness, transparency, and 
accountability.

We safeguard sensitive customer and company information 
and prevent unauthorized disclosures.

We maintain high standards of professional behavior in all 
dealings with clients, partners, and regulators.

We ensure fair treatment of policyholders, quick claim 
settlements, and ethical sales practices.
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1993

2013

2015

2019

2022

2025

Inception: HEI Begins (HGI came 
in existence in 1993 while EIC 

commenced its operation in 1994

First 100 Crore premium - HEI 
surpassed the landmark of fi rst 

100 crore in gross premium

500 cr Earthquake claim settled - HEI Holds the 
distinction of achieving the highest settlement 
record for earthquake related claims in Nepal, 

totaling NRs. 500 Crore

Digital Horizon: Unveiling digital policy - HEI now 
offers policies through public domain, allowing 
nepalese customers to buy specifi c products directly 
and make payments using digital wallets

Synergy Unleashed: The Merge - 
Pioneering a new era of enhanced 

Insurance solutions through 
Merger and Expansion

400 Crore Premium - HEI surpassed 
the landmark of fi rst 400 crore 
in gross premium

HEI MILESTONES
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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NON FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Our focus remains 
fi rmly on the long 
term, strengthening 
the foundations of 
the business through 
sound governance, 
operational discipline, 
and service excellence.
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Chairman’s Message

MAHENDRA KRISHNA SHRESTHA
Chairman

Dear Shareholders, Distinguished Guests, and 
Esteemed Colleagues, 

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Himalayan 
Everest Insurance Limited (HEI), I am privileged to 
welcome you to the 32nd Annual General Meeting of 
the Company.

It has been a signifi cant and demanding year for our 
company. Under the capable leadership of our CEO, 
Anju Shrestha, and with the unwavering support and 
guidance of the Board of Directors, we have achieved 
steady progress while remaining focused on long-term 
value creation.

The year under review unfolded against a challenging 
economic backdrop. Kathmandu, along with several 
other regions across the country, was struck by one of 
the most devastating fl oods in recent history, resulting 
in signifi cant loss of life and widespread damage to 
property. We all witnessed, with deep concern, the 
rising water levels and heard numerous heartbreaking 
stories of suffering and hardship. During such times, 
the true purpose of insurance is most clearly tested.

It is during such unfortunate times that the true value 
of insurance also becomes evident. At Himalayan 
Everest Insurance, we stood by our clients in their 
time of need, settling fl ood-related claims amounting 
to Rs 443.39 million during the year, reaffi rming our 
commitment to supporting our policyholders when 
they need us the most.

I am also pleased to share that during the fi nancial 
year, we successfully moved into our new Head Offi ce 
building. This new facility is a tangible refl ection 
of the Company’s growth and stability and our 
commitment to a modern, effi cient, and collaborative 
working environment that will support our continued 
innovation, collaboration, and service excellence in the 
years to come.

Looking back at the year, as Chairman of Himalayan 
Everest Insurance, what gives the Board and me the 
greatest sense of pride is the clarity of direction 

achieved across the organisation, led by Ms. Anju 
Shrestha, with close alignment between the Board and 
senior management, in shaping a clear and aligned 
vision for the long-term future of the Company.

Our focus remains fi rmly on the long term,  
strengthening the foundations of the business through 
sound governance, operational discipline, and service 
excellence.

Our aspirations are clear:  to be among the most 
trusted and respected insurers in Nepal;  to lead by 
example, setting new standards in professionalism, 
service, and corporate responsibility.

Before I conclude, I would note that the early part 
of the current fi nancial year witnessed signifi cant 
social and operational disruptions. From an insurance 
perspective, the losses arising from the September 
2025 events represented one of the largest insured 
loss events recorded in Nepal to date. The scale, 
volume, and complexity of claims placed exceptional 
operational and fi nancial demands on the insurance 
industry, once again highlighting the critical role of 
insurance in safeguarding individuals and businesses 
against unforeseen and unexpected risks.

In closing, I would like to extend my sincere gratitude to 
our valued shareholders for their continued trust and 
support, to the Board of Directors for their guidance, 
and to the entire team at Himalayan Everest Insurance 
for their dedication and hard work. 

With strong foundations in place and a clear strategic 
direction, I am confi dent that Himalayan Everest 
Insurance is well positioned to navigate challenges, 
seize opportunities, and create enduring value for all 
stakeholders.

Thank you.
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CEO's Perspective
Dear Esteemed Shareholders,
It is my privilege to address you as we refl ect on our performance 
and progress for the fi nancial year 2081/82. This year has been 
one of focus, learning, and purposeful advancement – all 
underpinned by a clear and aligned vision for the future of our 
Company. 

The year under review was shaped by a combination of external 
challenges and a deliberate internal refl ection. We chose not to 
merely react, but to pause, evaluate and take measured steps 
towards long term transformation. During this period, we have 
deepened our commitment to our vision, mission and core 
values and have been making conscious and consistent efforts 
to ensure that our decision-making processes, at every level of 
the organization are aligned and guided by these principles. 

With the collective efforts of our 531 dedicated team members, 
the Company recorded a Gross Premium Income of Rs. 428 
crores during the year, crossing the Rs. 400 crore milestone 
for the fi rst time in our history. This achievement represents 
a signifi cant step forward in our growth journey. While the 
non-life insurance industry grew at approximately 8% 
during the year, we achieved a growth rate of 13%, 
further strengthening our competitive position 
in the market. Such progress is never the result 
of individual effort alone; it is driven by strong 
collaboration, shared accountability, and 
a deep sense of ownership across the 
organization. To ensure sustainable and 
balanced growth, we continue to advance 
our visit across all provinces. Our provincial 
leadership teams now play a critical role 
in translating corporate strategy into 
effective local execution - strengthening 
customer relationships, responding 
to regional market dynamics, and 
ensuring consistent service standards 
nationwide. Their leadership serves as 
a vital bridge between our long - term 
vision and on the ground execution, 
reinforcing the Company’s national 
level strength.

Operational transformation has 
been a defi ning theme of the 
year. Throughout the year, 
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we undertook a deliberate review of 
our core processes, key performance 
metrics, turnaround times, and 
organizational practices. Our focus 
was on change – not for its own sake 
- but to build a more disciplined, 
effi cient, and consistently high 
standard of service delivery. Equally 
important, this process required us 
to challenge long-held assumptions 
about how we operate - questioning 
established ways of working, 
reassessing what truly adds value, 
and being willing to rethink processes 
that no longer serve our strategic 
objectives. 

All these efforts have provided us 
with a deeper understanding of 
our business and reinforced our 
confi dence in the strategic direction 
we have chosen to pursue. Through 
rigorous data integration and 
disciplined analysis of customer 
behavior, claims patterns, and 
regional dynamics, we are steadily 
transitioning from intuition-led 
decision-making to insight-driven 
strategies. 

While the year delivered several 
positive outcomes, it was also marked 
by certain external headwinds. In 
particular, the sustained downward 
trend in interest rates in Nepal 
continued to impact our bottom line. 
As a result, our average investment 
return declined from 6.8% in the 
previous year to 4.0% during the year 
under review. We acknowledge this 
economic trend and have already 
implemented a strategy to mitigate 
its impact through prudent asset 
allocation and enhanced investment 
governance. We also established 
focused teams to monitor 
portfolio profi tability and revive 
underperforming portfolios, while 
reinforcing underwriting discipline. 
Collectively, these initiatives have 
strengthened our enterprise-wide 
risk management practices, fully 
aligned with regulatory expectations 
and global best practices. Guided 
by our risk team, we have made 

signifi cant progress in our Own Risk 
and Solvency Assessment (ORSA) 
initiatives, further strengthening the 
Company’s overall risk resilience 
framework. 

Notably, Himalayan Everest Insurance 
Limited demonstrated strong claims 
management capability during a 
major fl ood event involving total 
claims of approximately NPR 60 Crore, 
of which NPR 46 Crore was settled 
refl ecting its fi nancial strength and 
commitment to policyholders.  
Our long-term vision is centered on 
building a resilient, well-capitalized, 
and trusted insurance institution 
with a strong nationwide presence. 
Despite persistent challenges in 
the investment environment, the 
company sustained stable fi nancial 
performance, driven by steady 
growth in gross written premium 
and uncompromising expense 
discipline. These outcomes clearly 
demonstrate our commitment to 
sustainable, long-term value creation 
over short-term gains. We have 
signifi cantly strengthened internal 
supervision through enhanced 
structured portfolio reviews and the 
establishment of a dedicated portfolio 
analysis unit, providing deeper 
visibility into performance trends, 
risk concentrations, and emerging 
threats. This disciplined approach 
ensures that investment decisions 
consistently safeguard policyholder 
security while maximizing long-term 
shareholder value.

Our vision comes to life through 
our people, and as such, people 
and culture remain central to our 
transformation agenda. We are 
actively building a learning-oriented 
organization through the introduction 
of a structured Learning Management 
System (LMS), enabling continuous 
skill development, leadership 
growth, and technical upskilling. 
At the same time, enhanced 
internal communication, constant 
communication of our vision and 
knowledge-sharing platforms are 

strengthening alignment across the 
organization. 

Beyond operational and fi nancial 
outcomes, we remained fi rmly 
committed to environmental, social, 
and governance (ESG) principles. 
Through our corporate social 
responsibility initiatives, we actively 
contributed to society by organizing 
blood donation program, health 
check-up programs, insurance 
literacy program and supporting 
the education of visually impaired 
students. On the environmental 
front, we advanced our ESG agenda 
by introducing a plastic-free initiative 
at our head offi ce, reinforcing our 
commitment to sustainable and 
responsible business practices.

Looking ahead, we remain confi dent 
in our direction. While economic 
and market uncertainties persist, 
Himalayan Everest Insurance is fi rmly 
positioned on the pillars of sound 
governance, operational excellence, 
people development, prudent 
investment management, and 
customer trust. We will continue to 
execute our strategy with discipline 
and purpose, creating sustainable 
value for all stakeholders.

In closing, I would like to express my 
sincere gratitude to our shareholders 
for their continued confi dence, to our 
Board of Directors for their guidance 
ensuring disciplined execution of our 
strategy and to our employees across 
all provinces for their dedication and 
professionalism. Together, we will 
continue to build a stronger, more 
resilient, and future-ready Himalayan 
Everest Insurance.

Thank you.

ANJU SHRESTHA
Chief Executive Offi cer
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS PROFILE

MR. MAHENDRA KRISHNA SHRESTHA
Chairman / Promoter Director

Mr. Mahendra Krishna Shrestha, Chairman and Promoter Director of 
Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited, was appointed on 2079/12/29. He 
holds a Master’s degree in Economics and brings extensive experience in 
leadership, corporate governance, and strategic management. Over the 
years, he has been instrumental in establishing the Company’s vision, 
defi ning its growth trajectory, and strengthening institutional frameworks. 
Under his guidance, the Company has achieved signifi cant milestones in 
market presence, operational effi ciency, and stakeholder trust. His expertise 
in economic analysis, business strategy, and policy formulation has been 
pivotal in navigating challenges and ensuring sustainable growth.

MR. HEM RAJ THAPA
Public Director 

Mr. Hem Raj Thapa was appointed as Director (Public) of Himalayan Everest 
Insurance Limited on 2079/12/29. He holds a Bachelor of Laws (B.L.) and 
a Bachelor of Education (B.Ed.) degree. With a multidisciplinary academic 
background and broad professional experience, he brings valuable 
perspectives on regulatory compliance, public interest representation, 
and risk oversight. His contributions have been essential in enhancing 
transparency, strengthening corporate governance, and ensuring that the 
Company’s operations align with both legal and ethical standards.

MR. VIJIT KRISHNA SHRESTHA
Promoter Director

Mr. Vijit Krishna Shrestha was appointed as a Promoter Director of Himalayan 
Everest Insurance Limited on 2079/12/29. He holds a Master of Business 
Administration (MBA) degree and brings signifi cant expertise in business 
management, organizational development, and strategic planning. He has 
played a key role in enhancing operational effi ciency, fostering innovation 
in service delivery, and strengthening corporate governance. His insights 
into market trends, risk management, and stakeholder engagement have 
contributed to the Company’s resilience and continued growth.
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MRS. AVILASHA PANTH SHARMA
Promoter Director

Mrs. Avilasha Panth Sharma was appointed as a Promoter Director 
of Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited on 2080/02/10. She holds 
a Master of Business Administration (MBA) degree. Her leadership, 
management acumen, and strategic vision have been integral to 
the Company’s growth and institutional development. She actively 
contributes to Board deliberations, supports inclusive decision-
making, and ensures the adoption of best practices in governance 
and organizational management.

MR. BIJAY KUMAR PANT
Independent Director

Mr. Bijay Kumar Pant was appointed as an Independent Director of 
Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited on 2080/01/06. He holds a 
Master’s degree in Economics and provides independent oversight, 
constructive guidance, and objective judgment to the Board. With his 
expertise in Economics, policy analysis, and corporate governance, he 
strengthens transparency, accountability, and regulatory compliance. 
His contributions help maintain balanced decision-making and 
ensure the Company’s adherence to high standards of governance.

MR. AJAYA RATNA STHAPIT 
Public Director

Mr. Ajaya Ratna Sthapit was appointed as a Director (Public) of Himalayan 
Everest Insurance Limited on 2079/12/29. He holds a Bachelor of 
Commerce (B.Com) degree and has extensive experience in corporate 
affairs, policy formulation, and strategic decision-making. His insights into 
operational management, compliance, and stakeholder engagement have 
strengthened the Company’s governance framework. He plays a critical 
role in ensuring operational effi ciency, risk mitigation, and alignment with 
long-term business objectives.
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Anju Shrestha - Chief Executive Offi cer
Ms. Anju Shrestha is the Chief Executive Offi cer of Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited, 
with 29 years of distinguished experience in the insurance industry. She began her career 
with Himalayan General Insurance in 1996, gaining deep expertise in reinsurance and 
overall insurance operations.

Ms. Shrestha holds an MBA from Shankar Dev College, Tribhuvan University (1999), and 
has enhanced her professional knowledge through international trainings and conferences, including Allianz 
multinational conferences, Reinsurance Management training in Mumbai, and a Royal & Sun Alliance conference 
in Singapore (2011).

With her strategic vision, technical expertise, and steadfast commitment, Ms. Shrestha continues to drive the 
company’s performance, governance, and long-term growth.

Sudarshan Kumar Shrestha- AGM
Mr. Sudarshan Kumar Shrestha, with over 29 years of experience in the insurance industry, 
currently serves as Province Chief of Bagmati, supervising all branches in the province. He 
holds a Bachelor of Commerce from Shankar Dev Campus (2050 B.S.) and has attended 
multiple national and international trainings, strengthening his leadership and operational 
expertise.

Roshan Kumar Shrestha- AGM
Mr. Roshan Kumar Shrestha serves as Head of Province and Head of Marketing, bringing 
over 30 years of experience in the insurance industry. He holds an MBA, completed in 
2058 B.S., and has a strong marketing background with extensive expertise in business 
development and market expansion.

Sapana Rawal – AGM, RI Operations
Ms. Sapana Rawal serves as AGM, Reinsurance Operations at Himalayan Everest Insurance 
Limited, with over 28 years of experience in the insurance industry. She began her career 
in 1996 with specialization in reinsurance and holds a Bachelor’s degree from Padma 
Kanya Campus (1991). She has attended several national and international trainings in 
reinsurance, including programs in Singapore, Mumbai, and Bahrain. 

Ratan Kumar Lama- DGM
Mr. Ratan Kumar Lama brings 41 years of extensive experience in the insurance industry, 
having started his insurance career in 1984. He completed his Bachelor of Arts (BA) degree 
in 1982 and has broad expertise across sales, marketing, renewal, and retention functions.

Over the years, he has led multiple departments and has attended various national and 
international training programs, contributing signifi cantly to the company’s operational
strength and market presence.

Bachu Ram Khadka- AGM, Chief Underwriting
Mr. Bachu Ram Khadka, with over 30 years of experience in the insurance sector, serves as 
AGM and Chief of Underwriting at Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited. He holds an MBS 
Degree from Tribhuvan University (2058 B.S.) and has extensive expertise in underwriting 
operations. He also leads and trains teams, with international exposure including 
specialized programs in Mumbai.

MANAGEMENT PROFILE
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 S.NO. Date Medium Number of Directors
    Presence in Meeting
 1 14-04-2081 Physical 5
 2 31-04-2081 Physical 6
 3 23-05-2081 Physical 6
 4 27-05-2081 Physical 6
 5 16-06-2081 Physical 6
 6 14-07-2081 Physical 6
 7 29-07-2081 Physical 6
 8 18-08-2081 Physical 6
 9 28-09-2081 Physical 6
 10 04-10-2081 Physical 6
 11 29-10-2081 Physical 5
 12 02-11-2081 Physical 5
 13 23-11-2081 Physical 5
 14 11-12-2081 Physical 6
 15 11-01-2082 Physical 5
 16 27-02-2082 Physical 5
 17 10-03-2082 Physical 6
 18 13-03-2082 Physical 6
 19 17-03-2082 Physical 6

Particular Position
Mr. Mahendra Krishna Shrestha Chairman
Mr. Vijit Krishna Shrestha Director
Mr. Ajaya Ratna Sthapit Director
Mr. Hem Raj Thapa Director
Mrs. Avilasha Panth Sharma Director
Mr. Bijay Kumar Pant Independent Director

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance at HEI is represented by the 
system of rules, practices, and processes by which 
the company is directed and controlled. It involves 
balancing the interests of the company's stakeholders, 
such as shareholders, management, customers, 
suppliers, fi nanciers, government, and the community. 
The primary goal of corporate governance is to 
ensure the long-term success of the company while 
considering the interests of all stakeholders.

Board of Directors
The board is responsible for overseeing the company's 
management and representing the interests of 
shareholders. The board's responsibilities include 
strategic decision-making, risk management, and 
ensuring that the company operates ethically.

Effective corporate governance is crucial for the 
sustainability and success of a company. It helps build 
trust with investors, customers, employees, and the 
broader community, contributing to long-term value 
creation. 

Corporate Governance Framework
The corporate governance framework outlines the 
structure, processes, and rules that govern how 
HEI operates and is controlled. It provides a set of 
guidelines and principles to ensure that the company's 
management and decision-making processes are 
aligned with the interests of its stakeholders.

1. Board of Directors
The Board of Directors (BOD) is a crucial component 
of a company's corporate governance structure. The 
board is responsible for overseeing the management 
of the company and representing the interests of its 
shareholders. Board of Directors of Himalayan Everest 
Insurance Limited comprises of the following:

Board Meeting
The agenda is prepared by the company secretary in 
collaboration with the chairperson and executive team.
The agenda outlines the topics to be discussed and 
any supporting materials to be distributed to directors 
in advance.

None of the Board of Directors meetings were 
adjourned due to non-fulfi llment of Quorum.

Meeting Allowance to Directors
The Board members are provided with the meeting 
fees for attending meetings which is approved by 
the shareholders in the annual general meeting. The 
meeting fee of NRs 12,500 is being paid to the chairman 

Directors are notifi ed of the meeting well in advance, 
usually with the distribution of the agenda and relevant 
documents.

The BOD usually meets at least once a month to 
discuss and approve the claim above the delegated 
limit, review the company’s monthly and quarterly 
performance and fi nancial results, consider business 
strategies, review internal control, compliance related 
matters.

The BOD sets annual performance objectives and 
strategies to monitor the actions and results of the 
management to ensure effective risk management and 
governance practices

Number of BOD Meetings
The following table shows the details of the Board of 
Directors meetings taking place during the fi scal year 
2081/82.
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while Rs 10,000 being paid to other directors including 
tax.

Board Committees
Board of Directors (BOD) committees are formed to 
focus on specifi c areas of governance and oversight. 
These committees allow the board to delve deeper 
into particular issues, provide expertise, and ensure 
that the board's responsibilities are effectively carried 
out.

Audit Committee
As per the provision of Insurer’s Corporate Governance 
Directives 2080, the Board of Directors has formed the 
audit committee. The committee is comprised of 4 
members.

Role
The Audit Committee provide assistance to the Board 
of Directors in fulfi lling their oversight responsibility to 
the shareholders and others relating to the Company’s 
fi nancial statements and fi nancial reporting process, 
the system of internal accounting and fi nancial 
controls, the internal audit function, the external audit 
of the Company’s fi nancial statement and various 
component of internal control. In discharging its 
oversight role, the committee is fully empowered to 
investigate any matter brought to its attention.

Meeting Allowances
The meeting allowance of the chairman and member 
of Audit committee is as under.

The above fee is inclusive of Tax Deducted at Source.

TOR of Audit Committee
• Monitor the fi nancial reporting process and submit  
 recommendations to ensure its integrity.
• Monitor the effectiveness of the undertaking’s  
 internal quality control, risk management systems  
 and internal audit regarding the fi nancial reporting  
 of the company, without breaching its independence.
• Monitor the performance of audits taking into  
 account the fi ndings and conclusions of the audit  
 reviews carried out by the competent authorities.

Particular Position
Mr. Ajaya Ratna Sthapit Chairman
Mr. Hem Raj Thapa Member
Mr. Bijay Kumar Pant Member

Particular Amount (Rs.)
Chairman  10,000
Member 10,000

• Review and monitor the independence of the   
 Statutory and Internal Auditors.
• The Audit Committee recommends the appointment  
 of an internal and statutory auditor.
• Review quarterly fi nancial statements
• Review the appropriateness of management’s   
 policies and practices with respect to the provision  
 for unpaid claims, reserves and surplus.
• Audit Committee review and recommends for the  
 approval of the annual budget.
• Monitor compliance with statutory and regulatory  
 obligations.

Number of Audit Committee Meetings
The following table shows the details of audit 
committee meetings taken place during the fi scal year 
2081/82.

Activities of the committee During the Year
• Discussed and recommended the annual budget
  of the company
• Reviewed the quarterly Financial Statements
• Monitored the effectiveness of internal audit
  including internal control system. Discussed the 
 internal audit reports on quarterly basis addressing
  the comments and suggestions from auditors and
  provided management with necessary directions
• Reviewed and monitored the internal control issues
  identifi ed by the Internal Audit
• Discussed the preliminary audit report, and
  the response by the management and provided
  management with necessary directions
• Reviewed the Annual Financial Statements and 
 presented to the board
• Recommended the name and remuneration for
  appointment of statutory auditor

Anti Money Laundering Committee
As per the provision of Insurer’s Corporate Governance 
Directives 2080, the Board of Directors has formed the 
Anti Money Laundering Committee. The committee is 
comprised of 3 members.

 S.NO. Date Medium 
 1 28-04-2081 Physical
 2 25-05-2081 Physical
 3 29-07-2081 Physical
 4 25-08-2081 Physical
 5 04-10-2081 Physical
 6 29-10-2081 Physical
 7 25-11-2081 Physical
 8 28-01-2082 Physical
 9 29-02-2082 Physical
 10 11-03-2082 Physical
 11 32-03-2082 Physical
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Particular Position
Mr. Bijay Kumar Pant Coordinator
Mr. Ajaya Ratna Sthapit Member
Head -Legal Member Secretary

Particular Position
Mr. Hem Raj Thapa Coordinator
Mrs. Avilasha Panth Sharma Member
Ms. Anju Shrestha Member
Head Claim Member 
Head Reinsurance Member Secretary

Particular Position
Mr. Vijit Krishna Shrestha Coordinator
Mr. Bijay Kumar Pant Member
Ms. Anju Shrestha Member
Head Human Resources Member Secretary

Role
The Claim Settlement & Reinsurance Committee 
monitors whether the claim is settled as per the 
Company’s claim settlement policy and the placement 
for reinsurance is done as per the signed treaty or not. 

Role
The Human Resources Committee provides guidance 
on effective Human Resources management to the 
Board of Directors. Its primary responsibility includes 
reviewing, monitoring and making recommendations to 
the BOD on human resources strategy and policies and 
development of prudent human resource management 
in the company.

TOR of Human Resources Committee
• Review, monitor and make recommendations to  
 the BOD on Company’s human resources strategy  
 and policies pertaining to staffi ng, compensation,  
 benefi ts and related issues of strategic importance  
 that directly affect Company’s ability to recruit,  
 develop and retain highly qualifi ed staff needed for  
 it to achieve its mandate.
• Review Human Resources Development and   
 organizational structure and recommend any   
 signifi cant changes to the Board.

TOR of Claim Settlement & Reinsurance Committee
• Approve the claims fi le as per limit of settlement  
 provided by BOD 
• Review and analyze for the purpose of
  recommending the pursuit or settlement of any  
 claim.
• Review Annual Treaty Program and compares the  
 terms of contract.
• Review appropriate Reinsurance Capacity and  
 Facultative Reinsurance
• Recommend Brokers and Reinsurer for the Treaty as  
 per the guidelines of the Regulator.
• Perform other duties as per the need of the 
 company / as directed by the Board of Directors.

Meeting Allowance to Directors
The Committee Members are provided with the 
meeting fees for attending meetings. The meeting fee 
of NRs 10,000 inclusive of Tax Deducted at Source (TDS) 
is being paid to the coordinator and members of the 
committee.

Human Resources Committee
As per the provision of the Insurer’s Corporate 
Governance Directives 2080, the Board of Directors 
has formed the Human Resources Committee. The 
committee is comprised of 4 members.

Role
Anti Money Laundering Committee assists the Board of 
Directors in addressing matters related to Anti Money 
Laundering and compliance in the insurance sector 
and to combat terrorism finance and financial crimes. 
AML Committee ensure that the company cannot be 
used as a vehicle to legitimize the proceeds of unlawful 
activities or to facilitate or finance terrorism.

TOR of AML Committee
• Assist the Board of Directors in formulating rules,
 regulations and standards to combat money
  laundering and terrorism financing.
• Monitors the effectiveness of client due diligence 
 systems and monitoring mechanism.
• Review policies and procedures in the company in
  order to bring them in line and in compliance with
  laws governing Money Laundering combating 
 terrorism financing. 
• Perform other duties as per the need of the 
 company / as directed by the Board of Directors.

Meeting Allowance to Directors
The Committee Members are provided with the 
meeting fees for attending meetings. The meeting fee 
of NRs 10,000 inclusive of Tax Deducted at Source (TDS) 
is being paid to the coordinator and members of the 
committee.

Claim Settlement & Reinsurance Committee
As per the provision of Insurer’s Corporate Governance 
Directives 2080, the Board of Directors has formed 
the claim Settlement & Reinsurance Committee. The 
committee is comprised of 4 members.
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• Review and ensure that succession planning is in  
 place for staff of the company.
• Review the standards and practices established  
 by the company for the safety and physical working  
 conditions of staff to ensure that they are suffi cient  
 and maintained.
• Periodic reviews of employee performance at least  
 annually to ensure that it is operating in maximum  
 effectiveness.

Meeting Allowance to Directors
The Committee Members are provided with the 
meeting fees for attending meetings. The meeting 
fee of NRs 10,000 inclusive of Tax Deducted at Source 
(TDS) is being paid to the coordinator members of the 
committee.

Investment Committee
As per the provision of Insurer’s Corporate Governance 
Directives 2080, the Board of Directors has formed the 
Investment Committee. The committee is comprised of 
4 members.

Role
The committee shall make the investment decision 
considering the benefi t of the company maintaining 
the solvency ratio defi ned by the regulator and assess 
the internal as well as external risk associated to the 
investment of the company.

TOR of Committee
• Monitor and recommend Investment policy
  recognizing that insurance assets should be
   invested to produce the best possible returns 
 consistent with a prudent approach securing
  interests of stakeholders 
• Review and approve investment proposals, ensuring 
 alignment with regulatory guidelines and strategic
  objectives
• Ensure investments are undertaken with a prudent
  person approach, balancing safety, liquidity, and
  return
• Oversee the company's fi nancial risk exposure,
 solvency requirements, and capital adequacy
• Implement robust treasury and liquidity risk
  management practices to safeguard fi nancial 
 stability
• Provide strategic insights to balance risk and reward
 in the company's investment portfolio

Role
The ORSA Committee assists the Board in overseeing 
the Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA) process, 

Role
The committee shall support the Board in overseeing 
the Company’s enterprise-wide risk management 
framework, ensuring risks are identifi ed, assessed, 
monitored, and managed within the approved risk 
appetite.

TOR of Committee
• Review the objective and policies of comprehensive
  risk management system.
• Review the risk management system, including but 
 not limited to risk management structure, functions
  and workfl ow.
• Discuss the risk management system with
  management to ensure that management has
  performed its duty to have an effective system.
• Review the risks from major decisions and monitors 
 the risk prevention policies adopted by the 
 Company’s.

Meeting Allowance to Directors
The Committee Members are provided with the 
meeting fees for attending meetings. The meeting fee 
of NRs 10,000 inclusive of Tax Deducted at Source (TDS) 
is being paid to the coordinator and members of the 
committee.

ORSA Committee
The committee comprised of 2 members:

Particular Position
Mrs. Avilasha Panth Sharma Coordinator
Mr. Vijit Krishna Shreshta Member
Ms. Anju Shrestha Member
Chief Finance Offi cer Member Secretary

Particular Position
Mr. Bijay Kumar Pant Coordinator
ORSA – Process Owner Member Secretary

Particular Position
Mr. Bijay Kumar Pant Coordinator
Mr. Hem Raj Thapa Member
Head – Risk Management Member Secretary

Meeting Allowance to Directors
The Committee Members are provided with the 
meeting fees for attending meetings. The meeting fee 
of NRs 10,000 inclusive of Tax Deducted at Source (TDS) 
is being paid to the coordinator and members of the 
committee.

Risk Management Committee
As per the provision of Insurer’s Corporate Governance 
Directives 2080, the Board of Directors has formed the 
Investment Committee. The committee is comprised of 
3 members.
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Role
The IT Committee assists the Board in overseeing 
the Company’s IT strategy, digital transformation, 
information security, data governance, and technology 
risks, ensuring that IT systems effectively support 
business objectives, regulatory compliance, and 
operational resilience.

TOR of Committee
• Review and recommend IT Strategy and 
 Roadmap and ensure alignment of IT initiatives with 
 corporate strategy
• Oversee IT governance framework and decision-
 making structures
• Oversee Information Security Policy, Cyber Security
 Framework, and Data Privacy controls
• Review incidents relating to cyber breaches, data
  loss, or system failures, and automation Oversee 

Particular Position
Mr. Bijay Kumar Pant Coordinator
Head – Digital Innovation 
and Strategic Partnership Member
Chief Technology Offi cer Member Secretary

ensuring that the Company maintains adequate 
capital and solvency in line with its risk profi le, risk 
appetite, and business strategy, as required by the 
Nepal Insurance Authority.  

TOR of Committee
• Review and recommend the ORSA Policy 
• Ensure ORSA integrated with strategic planning and 
 budgeting and align ORSA with risk appetite
• Review current and forward-looking risk profi le and
  access capital adequacy under base case, adverse
  and stress scenario and catastrophic and climate
  related scenario
• Review solvency projections over the business 
 planning horizon
• Review sensitivity analysis on underwriting, 
 reserving, reinsurance, and investments
• Review actuarial inputs and assumptions
• Ensure timely submission of ORSA Report to NIA and 
 ensure Board understanding and approval of ORSA 
 outcomes

Meeting Allowance to Directors
The Committee Members are provided with the 
meeting fees for attending meetings. The meeting fee 
of NRs 10,000 inclusive of Tax Deducted at Source (TDS) 
is being paid to the coordinator of the committee.

IT Committee
The committee comprised of 3 members:

 core insurance systems (policy, claims, accounting,
  reinsurance), review system upgrades, digitization
  initiatives projects
• Ensure business continuity and disaster recovery  
 arrangements
• Ensure adequacy of access controls, system audits, 
 and change management
• Report signifi cant IT risks, incidents, and strategic
 matters to the Board

Meeting Allowance to Directors
The Committee Members are provided with the 
meeting fees for attending meetings. The meeting fee 
of NRs 10,000 inclusive of Tax Deducted at Source (TDS) 
is being paid to the coordinator of the committee.

2. Insurer’s Business Model
HEI emerged through the merger of former Himalayan 
General Insurance Company Limited (HGI) and Everest 
Insurance Limited (EIC) on 1st Shrawan 2079 (17 July 
2022). HGI was operating for 29 years and EIC was 
in operation for 28 years prior to the merger. Within 
three years, as the merged company, HEI has realized 
synergies through expanded distribution and deeper 
market penetration leading to increase in business 
volume. HEI has emerged as a strong player in Nepal’s 
non-life insurance sector, ranking fourth in terms of 
gross written premium and total equity and third in 
terms of profi tability.

HEI is a conventional non-life insurer in Nepal with 
the ambition of becoming one of the top three non-
life insurers in the industry by fi scal year 2027-28. The 
company’s business model is anchored on 5 strategic 
objectives, as shown in the graph below: 

Target Customer
At HEI, we live by the principle of Customer First, 
because “Your Security, Our Concern”. We serve a 
diverse customer base of individuals, families, SMEs, 
corporates, government entities, and NGOs/INGOs by 
delivering solutions tailored to their unique needs. 
Every product and service is built to ensure trust, 
simplicity, and accessibility.
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Product offering
While our core strengths lie in innovative and affordable 
insurance products and fair and prompt claims service 
with transparency, we also recognize the importance 
of sustainability and ESG principles and are working 
towards their integration into our product offerings as 
well.

Distribution
Products are distributed through HEI’s customer 
portal, agents, branches across provinces. HEI 
partners with banks, fi ntech, corporate houses, and 
other collaborators to expand reach and strengthen 
capabilities.

Revenue, investment and cost
Currently, our revenue is generated signifi cantly from 
insurance premiums, complemented by reinsurance 
commissions. While investment income already forms 
a part of our revenue stream, we are intentionally 
seeking to enhance its active contribution. 

The investment portfolio is largely conservative with 
heavy allocation to fi xed deposits and is intended to 
be diversifi ed into targeted portfolios by increasing 
exposure to listed and unlisted equity investments for 
growth.

The cost structure is driven by claims and reinsurance, 
along with investments in people, technology, and 
network expansion.

Operations
Core activities of HEI are underwriting risks, claims 
management, reinsurance, investments and continuous 
product innovation, all of which is intended to be 
operationally effective through data-driven decisions 
and effi cient through process-driven automation. 
These are supported by key resources such as a 
skilled human resources, strong capital base, digital 
infrastructure, and brand reputation.

Employees
The internal organizational structure refl ects a mix 
of professionals and newer entrants from diversifi ed 
industries. While this supports balance and continuity, 
it also requires consistent cultural alignment to 
embrace innovation and regulatory transformation. We 
aim to foster a more motivated workforce and prioritize 
employee development. HEI is committed to consistent 
employer quality enhancement and building trust. 

The 5 strategic objectives are supported by various 
strategic initiatives as shown in the table below:

Key Resources and Utilization
Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited leverages 
a balanced combination of human, fi nancial, 
technological, and intangible resources to deliver 
reliable insurance solutions, manage risks prudently, 
and ensure long-term fi nancial stability. The effective 
deployment of these resources enables the Company 
to meet policyholder obligations, comply with 
regulatory requirements, and support sustainable 
business growth.

The key resources of the Company are outlined below:

1. Human Capital and Knowledge Resources
Human capital is a critical driver of Himalayan Everest 
Insurance Limited’s operational effectiveness and 
service quality. The Company employs competent 
professionals across core functional areas including 
underwriting, claims management, reinsurance, fi nance, 
risk management, information technology, compliance, 
and customer support. These professionals play a vital 

Through this integrated model, HEI is positioning 
itself as a customer-focused, digitally enabled, and 
socially responsible insurer laying the foundation for 
sustainable growth and market leadership in Nepal’s 
non-life insurance sector. ORSA plays a critical role in 
ensuring that our capital and risk profi le remain aligned 
with these strategic goals and future challenges.

Insurer’s Resources, Usages, 
Sustainability and Value 
Creation:
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role in evaluating risks, pricing insurance products, 
managing claims effi ciently, and maintaining customer 
confi dence.

The Company also benefi ts from specialized expertise 
available through external stakeholders such as 
insurance agents, brokers, loss surveyors, engineers, 
actuaries, and legal advisors. Their professional 
judgment and technical knowledge enhance 
underwriting discipline, claims accuracy, and risk 
mitigation practices.

Knowledge-based resources—such as underwriting 
manuals, risk evaluation frameworks, claims handling 
procedures, actuarial assumptions, internal policies, 
and accumulated market experience—form an 
important intellectual asset. These resources support 
consistency in decision-making, improve operational 
controls, and contribute to competitive positioning.

Human and knowledge resources are primarily utilized 
in:
• Marketing and distribution of insurance products
• Risk evaluation, underwriting, and pricing
• Claims assessment, settlement, and recovery
• Reinsurance placement and risk retention   
 management
• Financial planning, accounting, and reporting
• Regulatory compliance and governance functions
• Customer service and relationship management
• Strategic planning and organizational development

2. Financial Resources
Sound fi nancial resources are essential to the 
Company’s ability to underwrite risks, honor claims, 
and maintain solvency. Himalayan Everest Insurance 
Limited’s fi nancial resources comprise shareholders’ 
equity, premium income from various lines of non-life 
insurance, investment earnings, accumulated reserves, 
and structured reinsurance arrangements.

Premium income represents the primary operating 
revenue, while investment of funds in approved 
fi nancial instruments supports income stability and 
capital growth. Retained earnings and statutory 
reserves strengthen the Company’s fi nancial position 
and enhance its capacity to absorb losses and expand 
underwriting operations.

Reinsurance programs are an integral part of fi nancial 
resource management, enabling the Company to 
transfer part of its risk exposure, protect against 
large or catastrophic losses, and optimize capital 
utilization. Adequate technical and statutory reserves 
are maintained in line with regulatory directives 

to meet future claims obligations and unforeseen 
contingencies.

Financial resources are mainly applied towards:
• Payment of insurance claims and benefi ts
• Underwriting, Reinsurance and risk absorption
• Operational and administrative expenditures
• Compliance with regulatory and solvency 
 requirements
• Investment and business expansion initiatives
• Technology enhancement and digital innovation
• Training and development of employees

3. Physical, Technological, and Digital Infrastructure
Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited operates through 
an established physical and digital infrastructure 
designed to support effi cient service delivery and 
internal operations. The Company maintains branch 
offi ces and service points across Nepal, ensuring 
accessibility of insurance products and services to a 
broad customer base.

The Company has implemented integrated core 
insurance systems covering policy administration, 
underwriting, claims processing, fi nance, and 
management reporting. Digital platforms, including 
web-based portals and customer-facing applications, 
facilitate policy issuance, premium payments, 
and claims tracking, enhancing convenience and 
transparency.

Continuous investment in information technology 
and process automation has contributed to improved 
turnaround time, reduced operational costs, better 
data management, and enhanced service quality.

These resources support:
• Policy servicing and customer interaction
• Claims processing and settlement
• Internal coordination and operational control
• Data management, security, and reporting

4. Brand, Relationships and Market presence
The Company’s brand and market standing represent 
important intangible resources. Built over time 
through consistent service delivery, prudent fi nancial 
management, timely claim servicing, and regulatory 
compliance, the Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited 
brand strengthens customer trust and stakeholder 
confi dence. Long-standing relationships with 
customers, reinsurers, intermediaries, and business 
partners further support business continuity and 
growth.
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access and consistent service delivery. By prioritizing 
fairness, transparency, and responsiveness throughout 
the policy lifecycle, Himalayan Everest Insurance 
enhances customer satisfaction and retention, which 
remains a key driver of sustainable growth.

• Regulatory Compliance and Governance
Himalayan Everest Insurance upholds high standards 
of regulatory compliance, corporate governance, and 
ethical business conduct. The Company operates in full 
alignment with the directives and guidelines issued 
by the Nepal Insurance Authority and other relevant 
regulators.

Strong governance structures, effective board 
oversight, and well-defi ned internal control systems 
ensure accountability, risk oversight, and transparency 
in decision-making. This commitment to sound 
governance practices not only protects stakeholder 
interests but also reinforces the Company’s credibility, 
reputation, and long-term sustainability.

Value Creation 
Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited creates 
sustainable value for its stakeholders by fulfi lling its 
core purpose of risk protection, fi nancial stability, 
responsible governance, and socio-economic 
contribution. The Company’s value creation approach 
balances fi nancial performance with long-term 
stakeholder trust and national development.

Sustainable Competitive Advantage
Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited has established a 
sustainable competitive advantage through disciplined 
risk management, customer-focused service delivery, 
prudent governance, and progressive adoption of 
technology. The Company’s long-term success is 
underpinned by the following core strengths:

• Risk Management Expertise
Risk management remains a cornerstone of Himalayan 
Everest Insurance’s competitive positioning. The 
Company follows a strong underwriting discipline 
supported by clearly defi ned risk appetite, robust 
policy guidelines, and continuous portfolio monitoring.

Effective portfolio diversifi cation across lines of 
business and geographical segments helps mitigate 
concentration risk and enhance earnings stability. 
The Company maintains well-structured reinsurance 
arrangements with reputed domestic and international 
reinsurers, ensuring adequate protection against 
catastrophic and large losses while safeguarding 
solvency and capital adequacy. This comprehensive 
risk management framework enables the Company to 
withstand adverse loss events and maintain fi nancial 
resilience in a volatile risk environment.

• Innovation and Technology
Himalayan Everest Insurance continues to strengthen 
its operational effi ciency through the progressive 
adoption of digital solutions and automation. 
Technology-enabled underwriting and claims 
processing have streamlined workfl ows, reduced 
turnaround time, and enhanced accuracy in decision-
making.

The use of self-developed in-house digital platforms 
for policy administration, customer servicing, and 
internal reporting has improved transparency and 
data availability across the organization. Data-driven 
insights support better risk assessment, pricing, and 
claims management, enabling the Company to respond 
effectively to evolving market dynamics and customer 
expectations.

• Customer-Centric Approach
The Company places strong emphasis on understanding 
customer needs and delivering tailored insurance 
solutions for both individual and corporate clients. 
Focus on service quality, accessibility, and prompt 
claims settlement has strengthened customer trust 
and long-term relationships.

Multi-channel customer engagement, including branch 
networks and digital touchpoints, ensures ease of 

POLICYHOLDERS:
1.958 BILLION CLAIMS PAID

INVESTORS:
218 MILLION 
CASH 
DIVIDEND

REGULATOR 
32 MILLION 
REGULATORY 
FEES

COMMUNITY
66.57 MILLION CSR

EMPLOYEES:
420 MILLION 
EMPLOYEE EXPENSES 
5.64 MILLION IN 
TRAINING

NATION:
MORE THAT 530 EMPLOYMENT 
OPPORTUNITY CREATED 
MORE THAN 200 MILLION TAX PAID
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• Policyholders
Policyholders are the primary stakeholders of the 
Company. Himalayan Everest Insurance creates value 
for policyholders by providing comprehensive risk 
coverage, fi nancial security, and peace of mind.

During the year, the Company paid gross claims 
amounting to NPR 1.958 billion, enabling individuals, 
businesses, and institutions to recover from insured 
losses in a timely and transparent manner. Effi cient 
claims settlement, fair underwriting practices, and 
customer-focused service delivery ensure that 
policyholders are protected against unforeseen 
fi nancial burdens and can continue their personal and 
business activities with confi dence.

• Investors and Shareholders 
The Company creates value for shareholders through 
sustainable profi tability, prudent capital management, 
and consistent dividend distribution. During the 
year, dividends amounting to NPR 218 million were 
distributed to shareholders. The Company proposed 
dividend of NPR 200 million for the current year, 
refl ecting the Company’s strong fi nancial performance 
and commitment to rewarding investor confi dence.

By maintaining sound underwriting discipline, effective 
risk management, and stable earnings, Himalayan 
Everest Insurance supports capital preservation and 
long-term value appreciation for its shareholders.

• Employees
Employees are central to the Company’s operational 
excellence and long-term success. Himalayan Everest 
Insurance invested approximately NPR 420 million
in employee-related expenses, including NPR 5.64 
million dedicated to training and capacity-building 
programs.

As of the year-end, the Company employed 531 
employees, fostering a stable and skilled workforce. 
Continuous professional development, paid leave 
benefi ts, and a supportive work environment enhance 
employee engagement, productivity, and retention. By 
investing in its people, the Company ensures service 
quality, institutional knowledge, and sustainable 
organizational growth.

• Community and Society
The Company actively contributes to community 
development and social well-being through structured 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) initiatives. During 
the year, NPR 65.57 million was allocated toward 
community-focused CSR programs.

These initiatives support social inclusion, awareness, 
health, education, and environmental responsibility, 
strengthening the Company’s relationship with 
communities and reinforcing its role as a responsible 
corporate citizen.

• Regulator
Himalayan Everest Insurance creates value for 
regulatory bodies through full compliance with 
regulatory frameworks, transparent reporting, and 
ethical business conduct. During the year, the Company 
paid gross regulatory service fees amounting to NPR 
32 million in accordance with the provisions of the 
Insurance Act and directives of the Nepal Insurance 
Authority.

Such compliance contributes to market discipline, 
policyholder protection, and overall stability of the 
insurance sector.

• Related Stakeholders – Reinsurers 
Reinsurers are key strategic partners in the Company’s 
risk management framework. During the year, 
Himalayan Everest Insurance shared risks amounting 
to NPR 2.53 billion with domestic and international 
reinsurers. This risk-sharing mechanism enhances 
underwriting capacity, protects capital against large 
and catastrophic losses, and strengthens confi dence 
among reinsurers through disciplined portfolio 
management and timely settlement practices.

• Nation and Economy
Himalayan Everest Insurance plays a vital role in Nepal’s 
economic development by promoting risk mitigation, 
employment generation, and fi nancial stability. 
The Company contributes to the national economy 
through direct and indirect tax payments, creation of 
employment opportunities for over 500 employees, 
and risk-sharing support for large infrastructure and 
commercial projects.

By providing insurance coverage to businesses and 
institutions, the Company enables continuity of 
operations, supports entrepreneurship, and indirectly 
benefi ts numerous business houses and economic 
sectors across the country.
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Major Sources of Capital
Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited (HEI) maintains a well-structured capital framework and strategically 
utilizes its resources to support underwriting capacity, absorb unexpected losses, and ensure compliance with 
regulatory solvency requirements. These efforts enable HEI to sustain growth, manage risk prudently, and create 
long-term value for policyholders, shareholders, and other stakeholders.

HEI’s capital base is structured to support underwriting capacity, absorb unforeseen losses, and meet regulatory 
solvency requirements. The primary sources of capital are:

Equity Capital

Equity forms the core fi nancial foundation of the Company. As of Ashad End, 2082 HEI’s equity consists of:
• Paid-up Capital: NPR 2.50 billion
• Special Reserve: NPR 1.91 billion (50% of the net profi t transferred till the special reserve reaches 2.5 billion)
• Catastrophic Reserve: NPR 82.195 million (10% of remaining profi t after apportionment to Special reserve  
 transferred)

Equity forms the core fi nancial foundation of the Company. As of Ashad End, 2082 HEI’s equity consists of:
• Paid-up Capital: NPR 2.50 billion
• Special Reserve: NPR 1.91 billion (50% of the net profi t transferred till the special reserve reaches 2.5 billion)
• Catastrophic Reserve: NPR 82.195 million (10% of remaining profi t after apportionment to Special reserve
  transferred)
• Retained Earnings: NPR 301.56 million
• Other Equity: NPR 414 million (including CSR Reserves, Revaluation Reserve, Fair Value Reserves, Actuarial  
 Reserves, Deferred Tax Reserves and Training Reserve) 
 This strong equity base ensures risk-bearing capacity, supports solvency margins, and enables the Company  
 to pursue sustainable business growth.

Premium Income
Premiums collected from policyholders provide the principal operating funds. These funds are utilized to settle 
claims, maintain reserves, cover operational costs, and generate investment income, thereby supporting both 
fi nancial stability and business expansion.
Investment Income
HEI invests in a diversifi ed portfolio including debentures, equity instruments, and mutual fund schemes, with a 
total investment size of NPR 5.242 billion. Investment returns contribute to profi tability, reinforce solvency, and 
enhance the Company’s ability to fund future growth initiatives.

Reinsurance Recoveries
Through reinsurance arrangements, HEI transfers part of its risk exposure to reinsurers. This mitigates the impact 
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of large or catastrophic claims, improves capital effi ciency, and complements reserve management to maintain 
a resilient fi nancial position.

Interconnectedness of Capital Sources
The capital sources of Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited—paid-up equity, reserves, retained earnings, other 
equity, and reinsurance—are inherently interconnected, collectively supporting the Company’s fi nancial stability 
and growth. Paid-up capital forms the foundational layer, ensuring regulatory compliance and absorbing initial 
losses. Reserves and retained earnings act as buffers for future claims, reducing reliance on external funding 
and supporting sustainable operations. Reinsurance complements these internal capital sources by transferring 
portions of risk to reinsurers, mitigating the impact of large or catastrophic claims and allowing internal capital to 
be deployed more effi ciently. Investment income further enhances available capital, providing additional funds 
for growth and operational needs. The interplay among these sources enables HEI to maintain solvency, optimize 
resource allocation, and make strategic decisions on dividend distribution, investment, and underwriting, thereby 
strengthening the overall resilience of the Company’s capital framework.

Resource Utilization and Relationship with Capital Plan
HEI carefully manages and allocates its human, fi nancial, technological, and physical resources to support 
operational excellence, risk management, and sustainable growth.
(Diagram on resources – Pictorial depiction)

Human Resources
Human capital is central to the Company’s performance. Key initiatives include:
• Retaining and hiring skilled professionals across underwriting, claims, risk assessment, actuarial, fi nance and
  customer service functions.
• Continuous training and development programs to ensure employees stay current with regulatory requirements, 
 industry trends, and technology advancements.
• Promoting an inclusive and supportive work environment to foster collaboration, creativity, and productivity.

Financial Resources
HEI’s fi nancial management focuses on sustainable growth and risk mitigation:
• Strategic allocation of premium income, reserves, investment returns, and reinsurance recoveries to support 
 underwriting, claims settlement, operations, and long-term investments.
• Diversifying investments to optimize returns while maintaining compliance with regulatory guidelines.
• Strengthening fi nancial risk management to protect capital and maintain solvency.

HUMAN 
RESOURCES

FINANCIAL 
RESOURCES

TECHNOLOGICAL &  
PHYSICAL RESOURCES
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Particulars 2081/82 % 2080/81 % 2079/80
Assets   
 Goodwill & Intangible Assets   17,145,750  -9.13%  18,868,120  -10.12%  20,992,187 

 Property and Equipment   1,175,836,559  11.84%  1,051,365,598  231.98%  316,695,727 

 Investment Properties   -    -  -    -  -   

 Deferred Tax Assets   -    -100.00%  12,531,846  -86.13%  90,362,723 

 Investment in Subsidiaries   -    -  -    -  -   

 Investment in Associates   -    -100.00%  210,161,858  -  -   

 Investments   5,242,231,416  8.80%  4,818,274,239  3.51%  4,654,708,234 

 Loans   -    -  -    -  -   

 Reinsurance Assets   2,697,992,261  -5.26%  2,847,849,366  -10.12%  3,168,415,309 

 Current Tax Assets    188,503,919  150.20%  75,341,583  -  -   

 Insurance Receivables   523,215,128  14.45%  457,156,412  -60.40%  1,154,516,677 

 Other Assets   76,107,083  -10.51%  85,042,482  73.70%  48,959,553 

 Other Financial Assets   114,113,235  32.08%  86,397,271  -43.00%  151,561,392 

 Cash and Cash Equivalent   145,744,832  -17.08%  175,773,574  -15.27%  207,456,354 
 Total Assets   10,180,890,183  3.48%  9,838,762,349  0.26%  9,813,668,156 

 Equity & Liabilities      
 Equity      
 Share Capital   2,500,157,400  0.00%  2,500,157,400  8.63%  2,301,535,000 
 Share Application Money 
 Pending Allotment   -    -  -    -  -   
 Share Premium   -    -  -    -  -   

Technological and Physical Resources
Investment in technology and infrastructure enhances operational effi ciency and customer experience:
• Expanding and upgrading branch offi ces and corporate facilities to improve accessibility and service delivery
• Implementing digital platforms for policy administration, claims processing, and customer engagement.
• Enhancing cybersecurity and data analytics capabilities to protect information and support data-driven  
 decision-making.

Product Development and Innovation
HEI is committed to designing innovative insurance solutions to meet evolving market needs:
• Developing tailored products for individual, corporate, and specialized sector clients.
• Introducing products addressing environmental and climate-related risks, and promoting sustainability.
• Offering innovative health and wellness insurance solutions accessible to both urban and rural populations.

At Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited, the relationship between resource utilization, strategic initiatives, and 
the capital plan is guided by a framework of deliberate alignment. The Company ensures that capital allocations 
are targeted toward initiatives that advance long-term objectives and support sustainable growth. This alignment 
is maintained through:

• Integrating resource deployment with strategic programs to create coherence and maximize the impact of
  capital investments.
• Defi ning measurable performance indicators to assess the effectiveness of capital deployment and its
 contribution to organizational goals.
• Regularly reviewing and adjusting capital projects and resource allocation to ensure that initiatives remain
  on track and aligned with evolving business priorities.

3. Performance Evaluation and Key Performance Indicator:
Comparative disclosure of company’s fi nancial position and performance

Horizontal Analysis
Statement of Financial Position



39

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

 Particulars   2081/82   %   2080/81   %   2079/80 
 Income:      
 Gross Earned Premiums   4,910,110,704  45.09%  3,384,296,904  -0.29%  3,394,102,330 
 Premiums Ceded    (2,996,733,380) 42.42%  (2,104,185,974) -12.90%  (2,415,783,095)
 Net Earned Premiums   1,913,377,324  49.47%  1,280,110,930  30.85%  978,319,235 
 Commission Income   544,552,849  58.81%  342,886,515  -12.21%  390,558,980 
 Other Direct Income   -  -  -  -  - 
 Income from Investments & Loans   219,223,683  -36.28%  344,043,010  1.56%  338,770,094 
 Net Gain/ (Loss) on Fair Value Changes   -  -  -  -  - 
 Net Realised Gains/ (Losses)   4,531,045  -98.75%  361,558,301  -28706.24%  (1,263,914)
 Other Income   9,163,073  -94.76%  174,779,042  1829.20%  9,059,687 
 Total Income   2,690,847,973  7.49%  2,503,377,798  45.93%  1,715,444,082 
 Expenses:      
 Gross Claims Paid   1,958,921,202  32.86%  1,474,412,237  -41.51%  2,520,707,724 
 Claims Ceded   (883,556,159) 16.77%  (756,662,048) -60.48%  (1,914,671,679)
 Gross Change in Contract Liabilities   480,103,271  -182.36%  (582,942,145) 157.56%  (226,335,065)
 Change in Contract Liabities Ceded to Reinsurers   (316,635,322) -151.81%  611,121,658  609.26%  86,163,342 
 Net Claims Incurred   1,238,832,992  66.08%  745,929,702  60.12%  465,864,322 
 Commission Expenses   84,728,455  44.27%  58,727,559  -0.76%  59,174,530 
 Service Fees   14,821,168  22.45%  12,103,722  11.15%  10,889,921 
 Other Direct Expenes   4,308,293  18.72%  3,628,920  -8.61%  3,970,633 
 Employee Benefi ts Expenses   420,679,388  -1.12%  425,448,469  21.44%  350,331,144 
 Depreciation and Amortization Expenses   33,486,253  63.24%  20,513,155  6.87%  19,194,061 
 Impairment Losses   -  -100.00%  132,852,751  -  - 
 Other Operating Expenses   296,402,987  33.67%  221,749,258  36.76%  162,148,699 
 Finance Cost   866,890  -40.08%  1,446,864  -15.83%  1,719,066 
 Total Expenses   2,094,126,426  29.08%  1,622,400,400  51.16%  1,073,292,376 
Net Profi t/(Loss) For The Year Before Share of Net 

 Profi ts of Associates Accounted for Using 
 Equity Method and Tax   596,721,547  -32.27%  880,977,398  37.19%  642,151,706 
 Share of Net Profi t of Associates accounted 
 using Equity Method   -  -100.00%  11,214,458  -  - 
 Profi t Before Tax   596,721,547  -33.12%  892,191,856  38.94%  642,151,706 
 Income Tax Expense   140,840,793  -63.86%  389,727,941  97.73%  197,096,179 
Net Profi t/(Loss) For The Year   455,880,754  -9.27%  502,463,915  12.90%  445,055,527 

 Earning Per Share      
 Basic EPS   18.23  -9.27%  20.10  3.92%  19.34 
 Diluted EPS   18.23  -9.27%  20.10  3.92%  19.34 

 Special Reserves   1,913,190,116  14.73%  1,667,570,965  18.23%  1,410,503,655 
 Catastrophe Reserves   82,195,510  17.57%  69,914,552  22.53%  57,061,186 
 Retained Earnings   301,556,975  -1.06%  304,786,863  34.57%  226,482,875 
 Other Equity   414,274,032  7.92%  383,881,726  30.22%  294,796,842 
 Total Equity   5,211,374,034  5.79%  4,926,311,506  14.82%  4,290,379,558
 Liabilities      
Provisions   8,161,536  385.27%  1,681,849  -50.79%  3,417,533 
 Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities   3,855,161,138  -3.59%  3,998,842,065  -3.99%  4,164,877,213 
 Deferred Tax Liabilities   54,705,673.00  100.00%  -    -  -   
 Insurance Payable   580,005,198  61.71%  358,680,424  -58.22%  858,561,613 
 Current Tax Liabilities   -    -  -    -100.00%  17,927,670 
 Borrowings   -    -  -    -  -   
 Other Liabilities   273,566,694  -19.70%  340,693,164  36.40%  249,773,619 
 Other Financial Liabilities   197,915,910  -6.89%  212,553,341  -7.07%  228,730,950 
 Total Liabilities   4,969,516,149  1.16%  4,912,450,843  -11.06%  5,523,288,598 
 Total Equity and Liabilities   10,180,890,183  3.48%  9,838,762,349  0.26%  9,813,668,156  

 2081/82   %  
  

 4,910,110,704  45.09% 
 (2,996,733,380) 42.42% 

 1,913,377,324  49.47% 
 544,552,849  58.81% 

 -  - 
 219,223,683  -36.28% 

 -  - 
 4,531,045  -98.75% 
 9,163,073  -94.76% 

 2,690,847,973  7.49% 
  

 1,958,921,202  32.86% 
 (883,556,159) 16.77% 

 480,103,271  -182.36% 
 (316,635,322) -151.81% 

 1,238,832,992  66.08% 
 84,728,455  44.27% 
 14,821,168  22.45% 
 4,308,293  18.72% 

 420,679,388  -1.12% 
 33,486,253  63.24% 

 -  -100.00% 
 296,402,987  33.67% 

 866,890  -40.08% 
 2,094,126,426  29.08% 

 596,721,547  -32.27% 

 -  -100.00% 
 596,721,547  -33.12% 
 140,840,793  -63.86% 

 455,880,754  -9.27% 
  

 18.23  -9.27% 
 18.23  -9.27% 

 1,913,190,116  14.73% 
 82,195,510  17.57% 

 301,556,975  -1.06% 
 414,274,032  7.92% 

 5,211,374,034  5.79% 
  

 8,161,536  385.27% 
 3,855,161,138  -3.59% 

 54,705,673.00  100.00% 
 580,005,198  61.71% 

 -    - 
 -    - 

 273,566,694  -19.70% 
 197,915,910  -6.89% 

 4,969,516,149  1.16% 
 10,180,890,183  3.48% 

Statement of Profi t and Loss
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 Particulars   2081/82  %  2080/81  %  2079/80  %
 Assets       
 Goodwill & Intangible Assets   17,145,750  0.17%  18,868,120  0.19%  20,992,187  0.21%
 Property and Equipment   1,175,836,559  11.55%  1,051,365,598  10.69%  316,695,727  3.23%
 Investment Properties   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Deferred Tax Assets   -     -     12,531,846  0.13%  90,362,723  0.92%
 Investment in Subsidiaries   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Investment in Associates   -     -     210,161,858  2.14%  -     -   
 Investments   5,242,231,416  51.49%  4,818,274,239  48.97%  4,654,708,234  47.43%
 Loans   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Reinsurance Assets   2,697,992,261  26.50%  2,847,849,366  28.95%  3,168,415,309  32.29%
 Current Tax Assets    188,503,919  1.85%  75,341,583  0.77%  -     -   
 Insurance Receivables   523,215,128  5.14%  457,156,412  4.65%  1,154,516,677  11.76%
 Other Assets   76,107,083  0.75%  85,042,482  0.86%  48,959,553  0.50%
 Other Financial Assets   114,113,235  1.12%  86,397,271  0.88%  151,561,392  1.54%
 Cash and Cash Equivalent   145,744,832  1.43%  175,773,574  1.79%  207,456,354  2.11%
 Total Assets   10,180,890,183  100.00%  9,838,762,349  100.00%  9,813,668,156  100.00%
Equity & Liabilities       

 Equity       
 Share Capital   2,500,157,400  24.56%  2,500,157,400  25.41%  2,301,535,000  23.45%
 Share Application Money Pending Allotment   -    0.00%  -    0.00%  -    0.00%
 Share Premium   -    0.00%  -    0.00%  -    0.00%
 Special Reserves   1,913,190,116  18.79%  1,667,570,965  16.95%  1,410,503,655  14.37%
 Catastrophe Reserves   82,195,510  0.81%  69,914,552  0.71%  57,061,186  0.58%
 Retained Earnings   301,556,975  2.96%  304,786,863  3.10%  226,482,875  2.31%
 Other Equity   414,274,032  4.07%  383,881,726  3.90%  294,796,842  3.00%
 Total Equity   5,211,374,034  51.19%  4,926,311,506  50%  4,290,379,558  44%
 Liabilities       
 Provisions   8,161,536  0.08%  1,681,849  0.02%  3,417,533  0.03%
 Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities   3,855,161,138  37.87%  3,998,842,065  40.64%  4,164,877,213  42.44%
 Deferred Tax Liabilities   54,705,673.00  0.54%  -    0.00%  -    0.00%
 Insurance Payable   580,005,198  5.70%  358,680,424  3.65%  858,561,613  8.75%
 Current Tax Liabilities   -    0.00%  -    0.00%  17,927,670  0.18%
 Borrowings   -    0.00%  -    0.00%  -    0.00%
 Other Liabilities   273,566,694  2.69%  340,693,164  3.46%  249,773,619  2.55%
 Other Financial Liabilities   197,915,910  1.94%  212,553,341  2.16%  228,730,950  2.33%
Total Liabilities   4,969,516,149  48.81%  4,912,450,843  49.93%  5,523,288,598  56.28%

 Total Equity and Liabilities   10,180,890,183  100.00%  9,838,762,349  100.00%  9,813,668,156  100.00%

 Particulars   2081/82  %  2080/81  %  2079/80  %
 Income:       
 Gross Earned Premiums   4,910,110,704  100.00%  3,384,296,904  100.00%  3,394,102,330  100.00%
 Premiums Ceded    (2,996,733,380) -61.03%  (2,104,185,974) -62.17%  (2,415,783,095) -71.18%
 Net Earned Premiums   1,913,377,324  38.97%  1,280,110,930  37.83%  978,319,235  28.82%
 Commission Income   544,552,849  11.09%  342,886,515  10.13%  390,558,980  11.51%
 Other Direct Income   -   -     -   -     -   -   
Income from Investments & Loans   219,223,683  4.46%  344,043,010  10.17%  338,770,094  9.98%
 Net Gain/ (Loss) on Fair Value Changes   -   -     -   -     -   -   
 Net Realised Gains/ (Losses)   4,531,045  0.09%  361,558,301  10.68%  (1,263,914) -0.04%
 Other Income   9,163,073  0.19%  174,779,042  5.16%  9,059,687  0.27%
 Total Income   2,690,847,973  54.80%  2,503,377,798  73.97%  1,715,444,082  50.54%

Vertical Analysis
Statement of Financial Position

Statement of Profi t and Loss
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 Particulars   2081/82  %  2080/81  %  2079/80  %
 Expenses:       
 Gross Claims Paid   1,958,921,202  39.90%  1,474,412,237  43.57%  2,520,707,724  74.27%
 Claims Ceded   (883,556,159) -17.99%  (756,662,048) -22.36%  (1,914,671,679) -56.41%
 Gross Change in Contract Liabilities   480,103,271  9.78%  (582,942,145) -17.22%  (226,335,065) -6.67%
 Change in Contract Liabities Ceded to Reinsurers   (316,635,322) -6.45%  611,121,658  18.06%  86,163,342  2.54%
 Net Claims Incurred   1,238,832,992  25.23%  745,929,702  22.04%  465,864,322  13.73%
 Commission Expenses   84,728,455  1.73%  58,727,559  1.74%  59,174,530  1.74%
 Service Fees   14,821,168  0.30%  12,103,722  0.36%  10,889,921  0.32%
 Other Direct Expenes   4,308,293  0.09%  3,628,920  0.11%  3,970,633  0.12%
 Employee Benefi ts Expenses   420,679,388  8.57%  425,448,469  12.57%  350,331,144  10.32%
 Depreciation and Amortization Expenses   33,486,253  0.68%  20,513,155  0.61%  19,194,061  0.57%
 Impairment Losses   -   -     132,852,751  3.93%  -   -   
 Other Operating Expenses   296,402,987  6.04%  221,749,258  6.55%  162,148,699  4.78%
 Finance Cost   866,890  0.02%  1,446,864  0.04%  1,719,066  0.05%
 Total Expenses   2,094,126,426  42.65%  1,622,400,400  47.94%  1,073,292,376  31.62%
Net Profi t/(Loss) For The Year Before Share of 

 Net Profi ts of Associates Accounted for Using 
 Equity Method and Tax   596,721,547  12.15%  880,977,398  26.03%  642,151,706  18.92%
 Share of Net Profi t of Associates accounted 
 using Equity Method   -   -     11,214,458  0.33%  -   -   
 Profi t Before Tax   596,721,547  12.15%  892,191,856  26.36%  642,151,706  18.92%
 Income Tax Expense   140,840,793  2.87%  389,727,941  11.52%  197,096,179  5.81%
 Net Profi t/(Loss) For The Year   455,880,754  9.28%  502,463,915  14.85%  445,055,527  13.11%

 2081/82  % 
  

 1,958,921,202  39.90% 
 (883,556,159) -17.99% 

 480,103,271  9.78% 
 (316,635,322) -6.45% 

 1,238,832,992  25.23% 
 84,728,455  1.73% 
 14,821,168  0.30% 
 4,308,293  0.09% 

 420,679,388  8.57% 
 33,486,253  0.68% 

 -   -   
 296,402,987  6.04% 

 866,890  0.02% 
 2,094,126,426  42.65% 

 596,721,547  12.15% 

 -   -   
 596,721,547  12.15% 
 140,840,793  2.87% 

 455,880,754  9.28% 

FINANCIAL INDICATOR
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S. No Particulars Indicators FY 2081/82 FY 2080/81 Growth (%)
 1. No of Policies Issued Nos. 280,429 250,126 12.12%
 2. Gross Premium Income Rs"000" 4,286,327 3,761,995 13.94%
 3. Net Premium Income Rs"000" 1,756,086 1,406,462 24.86%
 4. Reinsurance Commission Income Rs"000" 490,689 417,008 17.67%
 5. No of Claims Paid Nos. 11,900 9,190 29.49%
 6. Gross Claims Paid Rs"000" 1,958,921 1,474,412 32.86%
 7. Net Claims Paid Rs"000" 1,075,365 717,750 49.82%
 8. Outstanding Claim Nos. 8,444 7,898 6.91%
 9. Outstanding Claim (Gross) Rs"000" 1,894,440 1,442,534 31.33%
 10. Outstanding Claim (Net) Rs"000" 328,891 265,010 24.10%
 11. Employee Expenses Rs"000" 354,377 336,229 5.40%
 12. Other Expenses Rs"000" 296,403 221,749 33.67%
 13. Income from Investment Rs"000" 219,224 344,043 -36.28%
 14. Net Profi t (as per NFRS) Rs"000" 455,881 502,464 -9.27%

Enterprise wise Function:
Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited operates through a set of specialized departments, each with clearly defi ned 
responsibilities to support business operations, risk management, innovation, and stakeholder satisfaction. Each 
department contributes uniquely to the Company’s enterprise objectives:

Key Performance Indicators

Marketing:
Market research, 
customer needs 
assessment.

Reinsurance:
Risk transfer, contract 
negotiation and 
management.

Risk Management:
Risk identifi cation, 
mitigation, 
monitoring, and 
reporting.

Compliance 
and Legal:
Regulatory 
compliance, contract 
review, dispute 
resolution.

General Services:
Logistics management, 
offi ce administration, 
operational support.

Research and 
Development:
Trend analysis, 
research on innovative 
insurance products

Finance and 
Accounts:
Financial reporting, 
analysis, budgeting, 
forecasting.

Information Technology:
System development, 
data security, IT support, 
and troubleshooting.

Branding & Corporate 
Communication 
(including CSR):
Market research, 
customer needs 
assessment.

Claim Management:
Claim assessment, 
investigation, and 
settlement.

Underwriting:
Risk assessment, 
pricing, policy terms 
and conditions.

Human Resource 
Management:
Recruitment, employee 
development, 
training, and 
welfare.
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During FY 2081/82, Himalayan Everest Insurance achieved signifi cant growth across key operational and fi nancial 
metrics. The company issued 280,429 policies, refl ecting a 12.12% increase over the previous year, while gross 
premium income rose to Rs. 4,286,327 thousand, representing a 13.94% growth. Net premium income recorded 
an even higher growth of 24.86%, reaching Rs. 1,756,086 thousand, supported by an increase in reinsurance 
commission income of 17.67%. Claims activity saw a corresponding rise, with 11,900 claims paid, a 29.49% increase, 
and gross claims paid totaling Rs. 1,958,921 thousand, up 32.86%. Net claims paid grew signifi cantly by 49.82%, 
refl ecting higher risk exposure and settlement of major claims. Outstanding claims, both in number and value, 
increased moderately, indicating ongoing claims management. Operating expenses, including employee and other 
expenses, rose by 5.40% and 33.67%, respectively, refl ecting business expansion and operational investments. 
Investment income declined by 36.28%, partly impacting profi tability, with net profi t as per NFRS standing at Rs. 
455,881 thousand, a slight decrease of 9.27% compared to the prior year. Overall, the KPIs demonstrate strong 
business growth, enhanced underwriting activity, and effective claims management, balanced with prudent 
expense and risk oversight.

Strategic Plan & Development
Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited’s strategic roadmap is anchored in Vision 2030, which articulates the 
Company’s commitment to sustainable and profi table growth, digital transformation, robust governance, and a 
consistently customer-centric operating model. This long-term vision provides a clear strategic direction while 
ensuring resilience in an increasingly competitive and regulated insurance landscape.

To translate Vision 2030 into actionable outcomes, the Company has adopted a phased strategic approach, 
structured across short-, medium-, and long-term horizons. This approach enables Himalayan Everest Insurance 
Limited to systematically strengthen its market position, optimize operational capabilities, and proactively 
respond to evolving industry dynamics, regulatory developments, and stakeholder expectations.

Each phase of the roadmap is supported by defi ned strategic priorities, measurable performance indicators, and 
periodic review mechanisms to ensure alignment with the Company’s overall risk appetite, capital position, and 
long-term value creation objectives.

Short-Term Strategic Priorities
In the near term, the Company focuses on strengthening core operations and service quality by:

1. Market Expansion and Penetration
• Expand market reach through targeted, data-driven marketing initiatives to identify high-potential customer  
 segments.
• Strengthen distribution channels, including branch networks, agency partners, and digital platforms, to  
 increase accessibility and convenience.
• Focus on underserved segments, including SMEs, rural communities, and emerging urban markets, to improve 
 insurance penetration.
• Leverage customer analytics to optimize product offerings and promotional campaigns for higher engagement
  and conversion rates.

2. Claims Management and Customer Confi dence
• Ensure fair, transparent, and prompt claims settlement to enhance policyholder trust and satisfaction.
• Optimize claims operations by standardizing workfl ows and empowering branch and provincial offi ces with
  clearly defi ned authority.
• Implement technology solutions, including digital claims portals and automated processing, to reduce
  turnaround times and improve accuracy.
• Maintain consistent communication with customers regarding claim status to reinforce transparency and 
 confi dence.

3. Customer Service Excellence
• Improve service standards through focused training programs for all customer-facing staff.
• Refi ne internal processes and workfl ows to increase operational effi ciency and responsiveness.
• Integrate technology-enabled solutions such as CRM systems, chatbots, and digital support platforms to  
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 enhance customer experience.
• Regularly monitor and evaluate customer feedback to drive continuous improvement in service delivery.

4. Compliant and Transparent Operations
• Strengthen internal governance, risk management, and compliance frameworks in line with Insurance Board 
 directives.
• Achieve full compliance with NFRS 17 and ORSA requirements within prescribed timelines.
• Develop and maintain standard operating procedures, policies, and action plans to ensure consistent regulatory
 adherence.
• Continuously monitor operational and fi nancial risks to safeguard solvency, stakeholder interests, and long-
 term sustainability.

Medium-Term Strategic Priorities

1. Product Innovation and Diversifi cation
• Introduce innovative and specialized insurance products to meet emerging risks, including cyber insurance, 
 tailored health solutions, and other niche offerings.
• Develop green and ESG-focused insurance products that encourage sustainable behavior and align with
 corporate social responsibility objectives.
• Continuously review and optimize existing product portfolios to ensure competitiveness, profi tability, and 
 alignment with evolving customer needs.

2. Strategic Partnerships and Distribution Expansion
• Establish strategic collaborations with banks, fi ntech companies, mobile network providers, and other fi nancial
  institutions to enhance distribution reach.
• Strengthen agency and intermediary networks, providing tools and incentives to improve sales performance 
 and customer engagement.
• Explore partnerships for co-branded or bundled insurance offerings to tap into new customer segments.

3. Market Penetration in Underserved Areas
• Expand access to insurance in rural, semi-urban, and underserved regions through branch expansion, digital 
 platforms, and alternative delivery models.
• Leverage mobile and online platforms to increase convenience and accessibility for customers with limited
 physical access to branches.
• Implement targeted awareness and education campaigns to drive insurance literacy and adoption in untapped 
 markets.

4. Customer Retention and Market Share Growth
• Enhance customer retention programs, loyalty initiatives, and personalized services to strengthen long-term
  relationships.
• Use data-driven insights to optimize marketing strategies, improve cross-selling, and increase overall market
  presence.
• Monitor market trends and competitor activity to identify opportunities for growth and differentiation.

5. Financial Optimization and Risk Management
• Optimize pricing strategies and underwriting frameworks to maximize profi tability while maintaining
  competitive products.
• Strengthen reinsurance arrangements to improve risk-sharing, safeguard solvency, and maintain fi nancial
  stability.
• Continuously assess investment strategies and capital allocation to ensure sustainable returns aligned with 
 the Company’s risk appetite.

Long-Term Strategic Priorities
Aligned with Vision 2030, Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited aims to become a market leader in the non-life 
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insurance sector while delivering sustainable growth, operational excellence, and superior customer experience. 
The Company’s long-term strategic priorities include:

1. Market Leadership and Brand Strengthening
• Achieve a leading position in the non-life insurance market through excellence in underwriting, claims
 management, customer service, and corporate governance.
• Strengthen brand equity and trust by consistently delivering high-quality services, ethical practices, and
  innovative insurance solutions.
• Enhance customer loyalty through personalized services, retention programs, and impactful CSR initiatives.

2. Advanced Digital Transformation
• Build end-to-end digital capabilities for online policy issuance, servicing, and claims management.
• Fully integrate automation, artifi cial intelligence, and data analytics to streamline operations, improve
  effi ciency, and deliver a superior customer experience.
• Develop predictive tools and digital platforms to enhance underwriting accuracy, claims processing, and risk
  assessment.

3. Risk Management and Organizational Resilience
• Strengthen enterprise risk management frameworks to manage emerging risks, including cyber threats,
  climate-related exposures, and operational risks.
• Implement robust mitigation strategies to ensure fi nancial stability and operational continuity during economic
  fl uctuations or catastrophic events.
• Continuously enhance governance, compliance, and solvency management practices to safeguard stakeholders’
 interests.

4. Product and Market Innovation
• Lead the industry in insurance product innovation by developing solutions that address evolving customer
 needs, emerging risks, and sustainable development goals.
• Explore opportunities to expand services to new customer segments, including corporate, SME, and rural
  markets, and eventually international or diaspora markets.
• Establish research and innovation capabilities to gain insights into customer behavior, emerging risks, and
  market trends.

5. Investment and Financial Growth
• Diversify the investment portfolio to target high-growth sectors such as infrastructure, renewable energy, and
  technology.
• Optimize capital allocation strategies to maximize returns while maintaining solvency and aligning with the
  Company’s long-term risk appetite.
• Leverage fi nancial strength to support sustainable growth, product expansion, and strategic partnerships.

Allocation of Resources to Strategic Priorities

1. Human Resources

Strategic Focus
Digital Transformation

Claims Management & Customer 
Service

Risk Management & Compliance

Product Development & Market 
Expansion

Resource Allocation
Recruit IT specialists, data 
analysts, and digital product 
managers
Strengthen claims and customer 
service teams; provide ongoing 
training
Recruit risk offi cers, actuarial staff, 
and compliance specialists

Employ product managers, 
business development offi cers, 
and market researchers

Purpose / Outcome
Enhance digital platforms, automation, and 
analytics capabilities

Reduce turnaround times, improve service 
quality, and enhance customer trust

Strengthen enterprise risk framework, solvency 
monitoring, and regulatory compliance

Design new insurance products, expand market 
reach, and strengthen partnerships
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Strategy for Insurance Development, Insurance Products and Services:

1. Insurance Development Strategy
Himalayan Everest Insurance (HEI) aims to expand insurance penetration across Nepal by combining market-
driven innovation with digital transformation and customer-centric outreach.

Key initiatives:
• Branch Network Expansion: Establish additional branches in underserved rural areas to improve accessibility
  and fi nancial inclusion.

2. Financial Resources

3. Technological Resources

4. Operational / Infrastructure Resources

Strategic Focus
Product Innovation & 
Market Expansion

Digital Platforms & Automation

Reinsurance & Risk Financing

Investment & Capital Management

CSR & Brand Building

Strategic Focus
Digital Transformation

Claims Management

Risk Management

Data & Analytics

Strategic Focus
Market Expansion

Service Delivery & Customer 
Experience

Product Development & 
Innovation

Governance & Compliance

Leadership & Organizational 
Development

Resource Allocation
Budget for new product 
development, market research, 
and promotional campaigns
Allocate funds for IT infrastructure, 
core system upgrades, and digital 
tools
Capital allocation for optimal 
reinsurance arrangements

Strategic investments in high-
growth sectors (infrastructure, 
renewable energy, technology)
Funding for CSR initiatives and 
brand campaigns

Resource Allocation
Cloud platforms, mobile apps, AI-
based systems, CRM, and analytics 
tools
Automated claims processing 
systems, mobile inspection tools

Enterprise risk management 
software, cybersecurity tools

Business intelligence platforms, 
predictive modeling tools

Resource Allocation
Branch offi ces in rural/semi-urban 
areas, digital kiosks

Call centers, CRM systems, online 
support portals

Research labs, innovation centers

Policy documentation, SOP 
development, audit infrastructure

Conduct leadership programs, 
professional development, and 
succession planning

Purpose / Outcome
Increase market share and insurance 
penetration

Support seamless online policy issuance, 
claims processing, and customer interaction

Protect solvency, optimize risk-sharing, and 
ensure fi nancial stability

Enhance profi tability, diversify portfolio, and 
support long-term growth

Strengthen brand equity and customer loyalty

Purpose / Outcome
Enable end-to-end digital operations and 
customer engagement

Reduce settlement time, enhance transparency 
and accuracy

Monitor and mitigate operational, fi nancial, 
and cyber risks

Support targeted marketing, underwriting 
decisions, and product innovation

Purpose / Outcome
Increase accessibility and insurance 
penetration

Enhance service quality, responsiveness, and 
satisfaction

Support continuous product development and 
market insights

Strengthen operational governance and 
regulatory compliance

Build internal capabilities and future 
leadership pipeline
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• Digital Platforms: Launch a user-friendly online portal and mobile app to enable policy purchase, premium 
 payment, and claims submission without visiting a physical branch.
• Microinsurance Solutions: Provide affordable insurance plans targeting low-income populations, including
  farmers and daily wage workers.
• Insurance Literacy Campaigns: Conduct community programs, workshops, and school/college initiatives to
  educate the public on the value of life, health, and property insurance.
• Strategic Partnerships: Collaborate with banks, fi ntech platforms, and healthcare providers to expand
  distribution channels and offer integrated solutions.
• Bancassurance & Fintech Integration: Enable seamless distribution of insurance products through banks and 
 digital payment platforms such as eSewa and Khalti.

2. Insurance Product Strategy
HEI develops diversifi ed, market-aligned products to address customer needs, emerging risks, and sustainability 
considerations.

Key initiatives:
• Market Research: Continuously assess customer needs, industry trends, and global best practices to inform
  product design.
• Tailored Policies: Offer customizable coverage for motor, health, property, travel, and emerging risks, allowing 
 clients to select specifi c benefi ts.
• Data-Driven Pricing: Use analytics for risk-based premium setting, including driver behavior for motor insurance
  and climate data for agricultural policies.
• Sustainable Underwriting: Align non-tariff insurance rates with local environmental conditions and historical 
 performance.
• Emerging Risks Coverage: Introduce products for cyber risks, mental health, and other contemporary threats.
• Green Insurance: Promote environmentally friendly behavior with products such as electric vehicle insurance
  and green building coverage.
• Inclusive Insurance: Provide microinsurance and disaster protection solutions to underserved communities
  and high-risk areas

3. Insurance Service Strategy
HEI prioritizes seamless service delivery, operational effi ciency, and high customer satisfaction through 
technology adoption and staff development.

Key initiatives:
• AI-Powered Customer Support: Deploy chatbots and virtual assistants to handle queries and guide clients
  through claims processes.
• Automated Policy Issuance: Allow instant issuance of policies via mobile or web platforms
• Simplifi ed Claims Procedures: Streamline documentation and approvals using digital channels
• Rapid Claims Settlement: Process minor claims (e.g., small auto repairs) within 24 hours using automated
  workfl ows.
• Mobile App & 24/7 Support: Enable round-the-clock management of policies, claims, and premium payments
• Training & Development: Continuous staff training and encouragement for professional qualifi cations 
 (e.g., Fellowship in Insurance).
• CRM & Data Analytics: Utilize CRM systems to manage client relationships, track preferences, and anticipate 
 customer needs.

Sustainability Strategies and Objectives:
Himalayan Everest Insurance (HEI) places sustainability at the core of its long-term strategy, integrating 
Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) principles into all aspects of operations to ensure resilience, 
responsible growth, and stakeholder value creation.

1. Environmental Responsibility
HEI is committed to minimizing environmental impact and promoting eco-friendly practices:
• Implement paperless operations and green offi ce practices to reduce resource consumption.
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• Adopt environmentally responsible processes in underwriting, claims, and investment operations.
• Develop and promote eco-friendly insurance products that encourage sustainable behavior.
• Explore opportunities to support clients and communities in adopting low-carbon and energy-effi cient
  solutions

2. Social Commitment
HEI emphasizes fi nancial inclusion, customer education, and employee well-being:
• Expand access to insurance services in underserved and rural communities.
• Conduct insurance literacy campaigns to improve awareness of fi nancial protection and risk management.
• Prioritize employee health, safety, and professional development through training programs and continuous
  learning opportunities.
• Foster an inclusive and diverse workplace that encourages equal participation and empowerment.

3. Governance and Ethics
HEI ensures transparency, compliance, and robust risk management throughout its operations:
• Strengthen adherence to national regulations and evolving industry best practices.
• Implement ethical business practices across underwriting, investment, and claims processes.
• Enhance risk management frameworks to address emerging risks, including climate-related and cyber threats.
• Ensure accountability and integrity in reporting, governance, and stakeholder communications.

Overall objective to achieve the Integrated Outcome
By embedding ESG principles into its operations, HEI aims to:
• Achieve sustainable and responsible growth.
• Strengthen stakeholder trust and long-term value creation.
• Support environmental stewardship, social equity, and economic resilience.

Future Business Prospects:
The non-life insurance industry in Nepal continues to demonstrate strong long-term potential. While economic 
challenges, regulatory changes, and global disruptions such as the COVID-19 pandemic have infl uenced growth, 
the sector is steadily recovering. Notable, the Gen-Z movement in September, 2024 has further emphasized 
the importance of Insurance. Increasing awareness of risk management, infrastructure development, and the 
emergence of digital technologies provide new avenues for expansion. Himalayan Everest Insurance (HEI) is well-
positioned to capitalize on these trends, leveraging innovation, operational excellence, and a customer-centric 
approach to secure sustainable growth.

1. Sustained Growth in Premiums
HEI expects a gradual but steady increase in premium collections over the coming years, driven by economic 
stabilization, expanding middle-class income, and heightened awareness of the importance of insurance. 
Targeted marketing, strategic product offerings, and an improved distribution network will further accelerate 
growth.

2. Product Innovation and Diversifi cation
To meet evolving customer needs, HEI will continue to innovate and diversify its product portfolio. Key initiatives 
include:

• New Product Development: Introducing insurance solutions tailored to emerging risks in sectors such as 
 healthcare, construction, hydropower, and automobiles.
• Customized Offerings: Creating specialized policies for niche markets, including rural, SME, and climate-related
 parametric risk coverage.
• Sustainability Integration: Embedding Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) principles into product 
 design to address emerging social and environmental risks.

3. Digital Transformation
Digitalization remains a core pillar of HEI’s growth strategy. Technology will enhance effi ciency, reduce operational 
costs, and improve customer engagement. Planned initiatives include:
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• Digital Platforms: Expanding web portals, mobile applications, and AI-driven tools for policy issuance, claims
  processing, and customer service.
• Data-Driven Insights: Leveraging data analytics to offer personalized products, streamline underwriting, and 
 enhance risk management.
• Operational Effi ciency: Automating key processes to improve turnaround times and minimize errors.

4. Customer-Centric Approach
HEI will strengthen its focus on building lasting customer relationships. By understanding customer preferences, 
offering tailored solutions, and improving service quality, the company aims to enhance satisfaction and loyalty. 

Key measures include:
• Simplifi ed claims procedures and prompt settlements.
• Value-added services, including risk advisory, wellness programs, and fi nancial literacy initiatives.
• Loyalty programs and customized engagement campaigns.

5. Geographic Expansion and Accessibility
Expanding HEI’s reach across Nepal is a priority, particularly in underserved and remote areas. The strategy 
includes:

• Establishing additional branch offi ces and leveraging mobile and digital platforms for broader coverage.
• Developing localized insurance products that cater to the unique risks and requirements of different 
 communities.
• Collaborating with local partners to improve awareness and uptake of insurance services.

6. Strategic Partnerships and Alliances
HEI will actively pursue partnerships to enhance its product offerings, distribution, and service capabilities. 
Potential alliances include:
• Financial Institutions: Banks and microfi nance institutions for bancassurance and cross-selling opportunities.
• Telecom and Technology Firms: Leveraging digital platforms to reach tech-savvy customers.
• International Insurers: Gaining access to global best practices, innovative products, and reinsurance solutions.

7. Regulatory Alignment and Support
HEI is committed to fully complying with regulatory guidelines while leveraging policy initiatives to strengthen 
business prospects. This includes:

• Adhering to Nepal Insurance Authority regulations, including digital insurance policies and solvency
  requirements.
• Supporting government programs that promote fi nancial inclusion and insurance literacy.
• Utilizing incentives and tax benefi ts to enhance affordability and penetration of insurance products.

8. Emphasis on Awareness and Education
Increasing customer awareness about the benefi ts of insurance remains critical. HEI will continue to engage 
communities through:

• Insurance literacy campaigns and workshops targeting students, businesses, and underserved communities.
• Digital content and social media initiatives to educate customers about risk management and insurance
 benefi ts.
• Collaborations with NGOs, government agencies, and other stakeholders to build trust and promote informed
  decision-making.
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Effect on External Environment:

The Company operates within a dynamic external environment shaped by economic conditions, regulatory 
reforms, technological advancements, and social trends. Factors such as infl ation, interest rate movements, and 
government spending infl uence insurance demand and investment returns.

Regulatory developments, including Risk-Based Capital and enhanced solvency requirements, increase 
compliance costs but also strengthen sector resilience. Technological innovation continues to improve effi ciency 
and service delivery, while introducing new risks such as cybersecurity threats, which the Company actively 
addresses through robust controls and risk management frameworks. 

External  Effect Positive  Negative  Recent Example 
Factor on HEI Impact Impact / Notes

Post-COVID-19 recovery 
and banking crises 
reduced growth in 
insurance demand

Regulatory provision 
requires ≥50% investment 
in fi xed deposits.

NIA Digital Insurance 
Guidelines 2024 enable 
online policy issuance.

Gen Z Movement (Sept 
2024): Raised awareness, 
also increased Claims

Investment in 
cybersecurity is 
necessary to 
maintain trust.

Nepal is highly prone to 
earthquakes and fl oods; 
parametric insurance 
products can address this.

Competitors’ digital 
platforms push HEI to 
enhance its offerings.

Example: Russia-Ukraine 
confl ict impacts global 
infl ation and operating 
costs.

Enhanced claim 
settlement laws improve 
reputation for reliability.

Economic downturns 
and high infl ation reduce 
disposable income, lowering 
insurance uptake.

Lower interest rates 
reduce investment income, 
affecting profi ts.

Increased reporting, 
accounting, or coverage 
obligations raise 
operational costs.

Political instability, strikes, 
or frequent policy changes 
can disrupt operations and 
reduce trust.

Rapid technological 
changes require signifi cant 
investment; falling behind 
may result in loss of market 
share.

Frequent disasters increase 
claims payouts and affect 
profi tability.

Intense competition may 
lead to price wars, lowering 
profi t margins.

Global recessions or 
geopolitical tensions may 
reduce foreign investments 
and increase costs.

Increased legal liabilities or 
mandatory coverage may 
raise costs.

Robust economy and rising 
incomes increase demand 
for insurance.

Higher interest rates 
improve returns on fi xed 
deposits.

Favorable policies, tax 
incentives, and simplifi ed 
compliance encourage 
growth.

Stable policies and fi nancial 
inclusion initiatives support 
expansion, especially in 
rural areas.

AI-driven underwriting, 
mobile apps, and online 
platforms improve 
effi ciency, reduce costs, 
and enhance customer 
experience.

Awareness of environmental 
risks drives demand for 
disaster and parametric 
insurance products.

Healthy competition 
encourages innovation, 
better service, and 
technology adoption.

Collaborations with 
international insurers bring 
expertise and innovative 
products.

Stronger consumer 
protection builds trust and 
encourages policy uptake.

Economic growth, infl ation, 
and income levels affect 
insurance demand and 
affordability.

Determine investment 
returns, impacting 
profi tability.

Regulations and compliance 
shape operations and costs.

Political stability, 
government policies, and 
governance quality affect 
investor confi dence and 
operations.

Digitalization transforms 
operations, customer 
engagement, and risk 
management.

Earthquakes, fl oods, and 
landslides directly impact 
claims and risk exposure.

Market competition affects 
pricing, service quality, and 
market share.

Global economic trends, 
foreign investment, and 
partnerships affect capital 
and innovation.

Changes in consumer 
protection, taxation, and 
insurance laws affect 
operations.

Economic 
Conditions

Interest Rates

Regulatory 
Framework

Socio-Political 
Environment

Technological 
dvancements

Natural 
Calamities / 
Environmental 
Factors

Competitive 
Environment

Global 
Environment

Legal 
Environment
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4. Corporate Social Responsibility:

Company’s Initiatives for Staff Welfare:
The Company recognizes that a skilled, motivated, and engaged workforce is fundamental to achieving the 
company’s vision, mission and objectives. During the year, the Company invested in staff welfare through 
structured training programs, capacity building initiatives, leadership development, and employee engagement 
activities. The company has implemented health and accidental insurance in addition to the benefi ts from 
enrollment from Social Security Fund.

Both in-house and external training programs were conducted to enhance technical expertise and industry 
knowledge. Leadership development initiatives were designed to strengthen managerial capabilities and build 
future leaders. Employee engagement activities fostered collaboration, teamwork, and a positive organizational 
culture, contributing to improved productivity and operational effectiveness. The company has also started 
formal recognition programs to acknowledge the hard work and dedication of its long-serving employees. These 
recognition programs motivate employees to strive for excellence and foster a culture of appreciation.

Employee Engagement
Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited recognizes employee engagement as a key driver of organizational 
performance. During the year, the Company implemented several engagement initiatives to promote open 
communication, teamwork, and a positive work culture. Regular interactions, feedback mechanisms, and 
employee-focused activities helped foster a motivated workforce and strengthened alignment with the Company’s 
values and goals.

HEI team's participation in Futsal Tournament.

HEI Sudurpaschim Province team's participation in Futsal Tournament.

HEI team in NIA Anniversary Rally.

HEI Annual Picnic.
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Training and Development
The Company continued to prioritize employee capacity building through structured training and development 
programs throughout FY 2081/82. Various internal and external training sessions were conducted to enhance 
technical knowledge, professional skills, regulatory compliance, and leadership capabilities. These initiatives 
were aimed at strengthening employee competence, improving service quality, and supporting the Company’s 
long-term strategic objectives.

HEI Compliance, Legal & Risk team becomes the fi rst ever digital learning batch in 
Insurance Institute Nepal’s history. 

Employee Orientation session welcoming our new team member to the world of 
non-life insurance.

Impactful Leadership training by Mr. Bhanu Dawadi.

HEI CEO Ms. Anju Shrestha addressing as panelist on Action-Driven Leadershop 
program organized by NBI.  

Advancing Insurance Expertise: Non-Life Reserving Training 

HEI Team at Mumbai, India for Insurance Training.
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Connect, Collaborate and Create training
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Awards and Achievements
During FY 2081/82, Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited received recognition for its performance, service quality, 
and operational excellence from various institutions and stakeholders. These awards refl ect the Company’s strong 
market presence, commitment to customer satisfaction, and adherence to sound governance and professional 
standards.

Insurance Asia Awards 2025: Domestic General Insurer of the year, New Insurance Product  of the year.

Best Presented Annual Report: Merit Award General Insurance.
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Recognition Program of Gandaki, Sudurpaschim & Karnali Provinces.

Recognition Program of Bagmati Province.

Recognition Program of Lumbini Province.

Recognition Program of Koshi Province.

Recognition Program of Madhesh Province.

Recognition Program of Bagmati Province.

Recognition Program of Koshi Province.

Reward and Recognition Program
To encourage high performance and acknowledge employee contributions, the Company continued its Reward 
and Recognition Program during FY 2081/82. Employees demonstrating outstanding performance, dedication, 
and adherence to organizational values were recognized through structured appreciation mechanisms. This 
program reinforced a performance-oriented culture and motivated employees to strive for excellence.
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Company’s Contribution in National Economy:
1. Tax Compliance:
The Company contributes to Nepal’s economy through consistent and transparent tax compliance. By fulfi lling 
its tax obligations promptly, it supports public revenue generation, which enables the government to fund 
infrastructure, healthcare, education, and other essential public services.

2. Investment in Infrastructure, Hospitals, and Hydroelectricity:
The Company actively invests in critical sectors such as infrastructure, hospitals, and hydroelectric projects. 
These investments not only foster economic growth but also support the development of essential services, 
enhance energy security, and improve public access to healthcare and modern infrastructure.

3. Risk Mitigation through Insurance Products:
Through comprehensive insurance solutions, the Company facilitates risk transfer and safeguards investments in 
large-scale development projects. By mitigating fi nancial and operational risks, it enhances project bankability 
and ensures the stability and continuity of critical infrastructure, construction, and commercial initiatives.

4. Employment Creation:
The Company plays a signifi cant role in employment generation, both directly and indirectly. By expanding 
its operations, opening new branches, and supporting development projects, it creates jobs, promotes skill 
development, and contributes to overall economic stability.

5. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):
The Company implements CSR initiatives focused on insurance literacy, community welfare, and support for 
underserved and vulnerable groups. These initiatives, complemented by digital outreach and branch expansion, 
strengthen fi nancial inclusion, enhance social resilience, and refl ect the Company’s commitment to sustainable 
and inclusive economic growth.

Company’s action to achieve sustainability and contribution to Sustainable Global Economy:
Himalayan Everest Insurance (HEI) recognizes sustainability as an essential contributor to long-term resilience, 
competitiveness, and stakeholder trust. Guided by our strategic initiative “Sustainability through focus on ESG”, 
FY 2082/83 marks the beginning of our structured efforts to embed environmental, social, and governance (ESG) 
considerations into our operations. Initial activities focused on responsible waste management and cleaning 
initiatives, laying the foundation for deeper ESG integration in the years ahead. For an insurance company 
operating in a climate-vulnerable geography, ESG considerations, and particularly climate risk, are directly linked 
to underwriting outcomes, investment performance, solvency, and long-term shareholder value.

FY 2082/83 therefore serves as HEI’s baseline year for structured ESG integration, against which future progress 
will be measured.

1. Governance

Board Oversight
The Board provides overall direction on ESG matters by monitoring quarterly progress and ensuring alignment 
with strategic objectives. While ESG currently remains an emerging focus area and climate and sustainability 
topics are discussed quarterly to support gradual integration into core decision making.

Management’s Role
ESG implementation is led by the Chief Executive Offi cer and supported by the Sustainability Unit under the Risk 
Management Department. The Head of Risk Management, together with an ESG Offi cer, coordinates day-to-day 
activities. Climate risk has been identifi ed as one of HEI’s nine key risks and is integrated into both the Risk 
Management framework and the Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA).

2. Strategy

2.1 ESG Initiative: “Sustainability Through ESG”
HEI has adopted a phased approach to ESG, beginning with practical, high impact steps across the Environmental, 
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Social, and Governance pillars. Key initiatives included:

• Responsible waste management with Doko Recyclers
• Reduction of paper use through process optimization
• Increased green cover by promoting internal greenery and offi ce environment improvements
• Promotion of responsible and ethical workplace behavior

These form the foundation for long-term sustainability integration. Given HEI’s current scale and operational 
footprint, the Company prioritized internal operational effi ciency and governance strengthening as the most 
immediate and controllable entry points for ESG integration. 

2.2 Climate Related Risks & Opportunities
Physical Risks:
HEI is exposed to climate-related hazards such as fl oods, wildfi res, GLOFs (Glacier Lake Outburst Floods), 
landslides, and storms, which may increase claim frequency and severity.

Transition Risks:
Emerging ESG regulations, shifting market expectations, technological transitions, and changes in investment 
landscapes may infl uence business practices and risk profi les.

Opportunities:
Climate transition opens avenues for innovation through green insurance products, sustainability-focused 
investments, and digitalization that reduces resource consumption.
An increase in the frequency and severity of climate-related events may exert upward pressure on claims ratios, 
reinsurance costs, and capital requirements, reinforcing the importance of early climate risk integration.

2.3 Time Horizons
HEI has adopted standard climate-assessment time frames:
• Short-term: 1–3 years
• Medium-term: 3–10 years
• Long-term: 10–30 years

HEI assesses climate-related risks and opportunities across multiple time horizons to refl ect both immediate 
operational considerations and longer-term strategic and solvency impacts. These time horizons guide the 
sequencing of ESG integration under the Company’s phased approach.

Short-term (1–3 years | “Now”)
Focuses on immediate operational and regulatory considerations, including governance strengthening, baseline 
data collection, early risk identifi cation, and the integration of climate risk into existing risk management and 
ORSA processes.
Medium-term (3–10 years | “Next”)
Emphasizes the gradual incorporation of climate considerations into core insurance activities, such as 
underwriting, reinsurance strategy, product development, and investment decision-making, as well as enhanced 
metrics, targets, and scenario analysis.

Long-term (10–30 years | “Later”)
Considers structural changes driven by climate transition and physical risks, including shifts in risk exposure, 
capital requirements, business models, and market dynamics, to support long-term resilience, solvency, and 
value creation.

These time horizons enable HEI to balance near-term practicality with long-term strategic planning, ensuring that 
sustainability considerations are integrated progressively and in line with the Company’s evolving ESG maturity.

2.4 Business Impact
ESG considerations are beginning to infl uence HEI’s key functions: ESG considerations are at an early stage of 
integration into HEI’s core business functions.
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• Investments: Integrated ESG considerations, including hydropower and sustainable hospitality projects ESG
  factors are considered in selected investment decisions, with current exposure to hydropower and
  environmentally responsible hospitality projects.

• Underwriting, Reinsurance & Product Development: No ESG-based adjustments yet, but future opportunities
  exist ESG-based adjustments have not yet been implemented, however, management is evaluating potential
  future applications, particularly in relation to climate risk and product design.

3. Risk Management

3.1 Identifi cation
ESG and climate risks are identifi ed through the risk management framework using a bottom-up approach 
involving all business units. Climate risks are recorded in departmental risk registers.

3.2 Assessment & Monitoring
A dedicated Climate Risk Policy is planned, which will outline climate risk limits, methodologies, and monitoring 
processes. Climate risks are already considered within the ORSA framework, demonstrating early integration into 
solvency planning. The inclusion of climate risk within the ORSA framework ensures that emerging ESG risks 
are evaluated not only from an operational perspective, but also in terms of capital adequacy and long-term 
solvency.

3.3 Mitigation
Initial mitigation actions include:

• Green offi ce practices
• Waste reduction through recycling partners
• Gradual minimization of paper-based processes

More advanced initiatives such as climate-sensitive underwriting and scenario modelling will be developed as 
the ESG program matures in the later stages.

4. Metrics & Targets

4.1 Environmental Metrics
Current measurements and initiatives include:
• Electricity from NEA (majority hydropower)
• ~20% solar energy contribution at head offi ce through installed solar panels in co-ordination with Gham Power
• Waste recycling through Doko Recyclers
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Areas for development:
• Carbon emissions (Scope 1, 2, 3) – mechanisms to be built
• Paper consumption tracking

4.2 Social Metrics
HEI monitors:
• Employee diversity: Females represent 38.82% of our employees.
• Training: At least one training committed per employee

4.3 Governance Metrics
Currently tracked:
• Compliance performance
• Risk management indicators through tracking approved risk limits determined by the Board
In progress:
• Whistleblower Policy

5. Insurance-Specifi c Sustainability Focus

5.1 Sustainable Underwriting
No ESG-linked underwriting practices are in place yet. ESG-based underwriting practices have not yet been 
implemented, but are under evaluation. HEI plans to explore:
• Climate-resilient products
• Incentives for sustainable practices
• Integration of climate parameters in underwriting

5.2 Sustainable Investments
Existing sustainable investments include:
• Hydropower projects
• Environmentally responsible hospitality ventures

5.3 Community Support
Community initiatives tied directly to climate or environmental resilience are not yet established but represent 
areas for future development.

While ESG-linked underwriting and community resilience initiatives are not yet operationalized, management 
views these as medium-term strategic levers aligned with Nepal’s climate risk profi le and the evolving insurance 
market.

HEI Initiatives for ESG-MOU Signed with DOKO Recyclers. 
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6. General Disclosures

6.1 Stakeholder Engagement
Primary stakeholders include policyholders, claimants, employees, regulators, shareholders, business partners, 
and local communities. ESG-focused engagement processes are being developed.

6.2 Policies & Codes

Existing:
• Responsible Investment Policy

Planned:
• Code of Conduct
• Whistleblower Policy

Annual CSR Engagement:
During the year, Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited actively contributed to social development, health, 
education, and community awareness across Nepal. Key initiatives included traffi c awareness programs in Butwal 
and Birtamode, health camps in Bardibas, Rautahat, and Dhanusha, and support for ambulance procurement 
at Manmohan Memorial Medical College and Teaching Hospital in Kathmandu. Educational support included 
libraries, digital literacy programs for visually impaired students, school infrastructure repairs, and distribution 
of essential goods to underserved schools.

The Company also supported community awareness and fundraising activities, such as musical events, temple 
consecration ceremonies, literacy and environmental programs, and blood donation camps in collaboration with 
local NGOs and foundations. Practical interventions, including the handover of alcohol testers to traffi c police 
and provision of USG machines to primary health posts, further demonstrate HEI’s commitment to community 
safety and health infrastructure.

During the year, a total of NPR 6,595,080 from CSR reserves was deployed to these activities, reinforcing the 
Company’s dedication to social inclusion, community welfare, education, health awareness, and sustainable 
development across Nepal. 

S.No Forms of Spending Contribution (NPR)
1.  Art and Literature   500,000.00 
2.  Insurance Awareness   906,000.00 
3.  Health   4,078,780.00 
4.  Education   800,000.00 
5.  Fundraising Event   260,300.00 
6.  Other Activity   50,000.00 
  Total  6,595,080.00 

OUR COMMITMENTS TOWARDS
SOCIETY
Every fi scal year one percent of net profi t is set 
as budget in CSR fund of the company which is 
utilized across the provinces of nation under 
various headings. 
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USG machine handover to Lalitpur Metropolitan City - 10

Insurance awareness at Bara District.

Cultural Promotion Support at Bajrabarahi Jatra.

Support to Blood Donation Program at Nawalparasi.

Breathalyzer Machine handover to Gandaki traffi  c police.

Insurance awareness at Chautara, Sindhupalchowk District.

Blood Donation Program at HEI Head offi  ce.

Free Health Camp Program.
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Our Initiatives for Education, Inclusion & Skill Development Program

Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited conducted MOU with Sarwodaya, NGO working with education, skill 
development, and social inclusion of Visually Impaired Students.

Soft Skills Training & Assistive Support for Visually Impaired Students
As part of this initiative, the fi rst phase of the Soft Skills Training Program was successfully conducted as a one-
day training for 20 visually impaired students from Classes 1 to 10 at Namuna Machhindra Secondary School, 
Lagankhel, Lalitpur. The session was highly productive, with active participation from the students, who benefi tted 
from interactive activities designed to enhance communication, confi dence, and interpersonal skills. 

Distribution of talking watch to Visually Impaired Students
In continuation of the initiative and  on the occasion of International Day of Persons with Disabilities, 75 talking 
watches were distributed to students at Shree Amarsingh Model Secondary School, Ramghat-12, Pokhara, 
enabling greater independence and improved time management in their daily academic activities. The program 
also included motivational interactions by Mr. Saugat Wagle and Mr. Gautam Pokhrel, distinguished alumni of 
the school .

As December 3 is also observed as the International Day of Persons with Disabilities, we believe this event carries 
further signifi cance. We expect that the use of talking watches will support the students in managing their study 
time more effectively.
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5. Corporate Governance & Compliance:

Compliance Mechanism & Reporting:
Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited is committed to upholding the highest standards of corporate governance 
and regulatory compliance. The Company strictly adheres to the Insurance Act 2079, Insurance Regulations, the 
Companies Act, the Securities Exchange Act, the Labor Act, and all directives and circulars issued by the Nepal 
Insurance Authority (NIA).

To ensure robust compliance, a dedicated Compliance Team continuously monitors regulatory developments, 
evaluates internal adherence, and provides guidance to align operations with statutory requirements. The Board 
of Directors actively oversees governance practices, continuously monitors organizational compliance, and takes 
follow-up actions to ensure adherence to policies and regulatory frameworks. This proactive approach strengthens 
internal controls, mitigates risks, and promotes ethical business practices throughout the organization.

As part of its compliance framework, the Company submits quarterly compliance reports to the Nepal Insurance 
Authority, ensuring timely and accurate fulfi llment of all regulatory obligations. These reports provide a 
comprehensive view of adherence to legal provisions, governance standards, and internal control mechanisms.

By integrating compliance into its corporate culture and governance structure, Himalayan Everest Insurance 
Limited reinforces accountability, transparency, and sustainability, thereby fostering trust among regulators, 
stakeholders, and the broader fi nancial ecosystem.

Report on Corporate Governance as per Corporate Governance directive, 2080
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#= ;+:yfsf] hf]lvd Aoa:yfkg ;DalGw ljj/0f

s_ hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;DalGw s'g} ;ldlt u7g eP÷gePsf] -gePsf] eP ;f]sf] sf/0f_M u7g ePsf] .
v_ hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt ;DalGw hfgsf/L

c_ ;ldltsf] ;+/rgf

cf_ cfly{s aif{ @)*!÷*@ df ;ldltsf] a}7s ;+VofM

cfly{s aif{ @)*!÷*@ df hf]lvd Aoa:yfkg ;ldltsf] $ j6f a}7s a;]sf] 5 .

O_ ;ldltsf] sfo{ ;DalGw ljj/0fM

g]kfn ladf k|flws/0faf6 hf/L lgb]{lzsf, hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;DaGwdf ;+rfns ;ldltaf6 :jLs[t gLlt tyf cjwf/0ff adf]lhd hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;DalGw sfo{ 
x'“b} cfPsf] 5 . ;ldIff cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ df hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldltsf] $ j6f a}7s a;]sf] 5 . ;ldIff cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ df Risk Management 
Framework cGtu{t ljleGg k|s[ltsf hf]lvd ;Da4 gLltx?sf] th{'df, ljefu ljz]ifdf klxrfg ePsf hf]lvd ;DalGw Risk Register df cfjlws 5nkmn tyf 
Own Risk and Solvency Assessment sf] k|f/lDes r/0fsf] sfd ;DkGg ePsf] 5 .

u_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f sfo{ljlw eP ÷ gePsf]M ePsf] .

3_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLsf nflu s'g} ;ldlt u7g eP÷gePsf] -gePsf] eP ;f]sf] sf/0f_M ePsf] .

ª_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL ;+u ;DalGwt ;ldltsf] ljj/0fM

c_ bfjL e'QmfgL tyf k'gla{df ;ldlt

cf_ dfgj ;+zfwg ;ldlt

O_ ;Dklt ;'l2s/0f lgjf/0f ;ldlt

r_ ;ldltsf] sfo{ ;DalGw 5f]6f] ljj/0f

bfjL e'QmfgL tyf k'gla{df ;DalGw lg0f{o ug{] .
dfgj ;+zfwg Aoa:yfkg ;DalGw ljljw sfo{ ug{] .
;Dklt ;'l2s/0f lgjf/0f ;DalGw Joj:yfx?sf] kfngf u/fpg] .
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5_ cfly{s k|zf;g ;DalGw ljlgodfjnL eP/gePsf]÷ePsf] .

$= ;"rgf tyf hfgsf/L k|afx ;DalGw ljj/0fM
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$= >L aRr' /fd v8\sf ;xfos dxfk|aGws Pd=la=P= ladf If]qdf @( aif{
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^= ;+:yfsf] n]vf tyf n]vf kl/If0f ;DalGw Joj:yfM

s_ n]vf tyf n]vf kl/If0f ;DalGw ljj/0fM

v_ n]vf kl/If0f ;ldlt ;DalGw ljj/0fM

;ldlt ;+of]hs, ;b:ox?sf] gfd kb tyf of]Uotf

a}7s ;DalGw ljj/0f

cGo ljj/0fM
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Annual Report of FY 2081/82 presented by Board of Directors in the 32nd
Annual General Meeting of Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited

Respected Shareholders,

We, on behalf of the Board of Directors of Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited (“Company”), cordially welcome 
all shareholders and invitees to the 32nd Annual General Meeting of the company.

We have presented the 32nd Annual Report of the Company prepared pursuant to section 109 of the Companies 
Act 2063 for the Financial Year 2081/82 including Independent Auditor’s Report, Statement of Financial Position, 
Statement of Profi t or Loss, Cash Flow Statement, Statement of Changes in Equity, Annexures and Notes to 
Account forming part of Financial Statements. 

Following the Directive of Nepal Insurance Authority, the Financial Statement for the fi scal year 2081/82 has been 
prepared based on Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS). 

Complete sets of fi nancial statement for the FY 2081/82 have been prepared, Audited and Approved by Nepal 
Insurance Authority. 

We are pleased to place before you the 32st  Annual report of the company prepared pursuant to section (109) 
of the Companies Act, 2063 for the Financial Year 2081/82 including Independent Auditor’s Report, Statement of 
Financial Position, Statement of Profi t or Loss, Cash Flow Statement, Statement of Changes in Equity, Annexures 
and Notes to Account forming part of Financial Statements along with Company’s current fi nancial year activities 
& future action plans, as well as the Director’s Report for discussion and approval.

a.  Solvency Margin:
Solvency ratio is the measurement of the company’s ability to meet its operational obligations and short term 
and long-term liabilities. As per solvency margin directive issued by Nepal Insurance Authority, the solvency ratio 
of the company should be more than 130%. The Solvency margin of the company stands at 438.1%, which stands 
well above the prescribed minimum as on Ashad End 2082.

2. Review of Previous Year’s Performance 2081/82 (Financial Year 2024-25):
The company’s market share in Financial Year 2081/82 among general insurance companies in terms of gross 
premium was 9.33 %. The company recorded a Gross Direct Premium of Rs. 4.29 billion (4 Arba 29 Crore) in FY 
2081/82 as compared to Rs. 3.76 billion (3 Arba 76 Crore) in FY 2080/81. 

The major premium contributor for 2081/82 was the motor portfolio. This portfolio contributed 29.73% of our gross 

 S. No Particulars Indicators FY 2081/82 FY 2080/81 Growth (%)
1 No of Policies Issued Nos. 280,429 250,126 12.12%
2 Gross Premium Income Rs"000" 4,286,327 3,761,995 13.94%
3 Net Premium Income Rs"000" 1,756,086 1,406,462 24.86%
4 Reinsurance Commission Income Rs"000" 490,689 417,008 17.67%
5 No of Claims Paid Nos. 11,900 9,190 29.49%
6 Gross Claims Paid Rs"000" 1,958,921 1,474,412 32.86%
7 Net Claims Paid Rs"000" 1,075,365 717,750 49.82%
8 Outstanding Claim Nos. 8,444 7,898 6.91%
9 Outstanding Claim (Gross) Rs"000" 1,894,440 1,442,534 31.33%
10 Outstanding Claim (Net) Rs"000" 328,891 265,010 24.10%
11 Employee Expenses Rs"000" 354,377 336,229 5.40%
12 Other Expenses Rs"000" 296,403 221,749 33.67%
13 Income from Investment Rs"000" 219,224 344,043 -36.28%
14 Net Profi t (as per NFRS) Rs"000" 455,881 502,464 -9.27%

1. Financial Results:
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Portfolio FY 2081/82 Weightage FY 2080/81 Weightage FY 2079/80 Weightage
Fire          932,398,693  21.75% 680,356,188 18.08% 538,706,116 15.96%
Motor       1,274,211,397  29.73% 957,192,953 25.44% 933,706,904 27.65%
Marine          129,160,493  3.01% 82,056,489 2.18% 66,672,876 1.97%
Engineering          870,422,089  20.31% 735,957,195 19.56% 531,195,936 15.73%
Micro                       600  0.000014% 600 0.00002% 2,400 0.0001%
Aviation            49,813,125  1.16% 329,303,834 8.75% 354,605,187 10.50%
Agriculture            34,814,969  0.81% 38,494,365 1.02% 90,360,564 2.68%
Miscellaneous          995,505,140  23.23% 938,632,945 24.95% 861,096,975 25.50%
Total       4,286,326,506  100.00% 3,761,994,569 100.00% 3,376,346,958 100%

Portfolio FY 2081/82 Weightage FY 2080/81 Weightage FY 2079/80 Weightage
Fire 560,341,481 28.60% 170,139,206 11.54% 139,089,942 5.52%
Motor 632,205,213 32.27% 470,138,918 31.89% 481,130,629 19.09%
Marine 25,704,516 1.31% 33,332,168 2.26% 40,186,253 1.59%
Engineering 237,622,719 12.13% 171,908,233 11.66% 196,593,054 7.80%
Micro - 0.00% 750,000 0.05% 53,325,000 2.12%
Aviation 3,391,647 0.17% 205,943,545 13.97% 1,169,582,848 46.40%
Agriculture 51,172,298 2.61% 50,412,260 3.42% 143,705,134 5.70%
Miscellaneous 448,483,328 22.89% 371,787,907 25.22% 297,094,864 11.79%
Total 1,958,921,202 100% 1,474,412,237 100% 2,520,707,724 100%

S. No Name of reinsurers Rating Agency
1 General Insurance Corporation of India, India B++  A.M. Best
2 Oman Re B+ A.M. Best
3 Kenya Reinsurance Corporation Ltd., Nairobi, Kenya B  A.M Best
4 Asian Reinsurance Company Limited B+  A.M Best
5 Cica Reinsurance, India B+ A.M. Best
6 GIC Bhutan Reinsurance Company Limited A A.M. Best
7 The New India Assurance Company Limited B++ A.M Best 
8 Abu Dhabi National Insurance Company A  A.M. Best
9 Nepal Reinsurance Company Ltd. - -
10 Himalayan Reinsurance Company Ltd. B+ A.M. Best
11 Sirius International A- A.M. Best
12 Odyssey Reinsurance A+ A.M. Best

Gross Claim Settlement:
Gross Claim Settlement during FY 2081/82 was Rs 1 Arba 96 Crore as compared to Rs 1 Arba 47 Crore in FY 2080/81. 
With the continued support from our reinsurance partners, we are able to consistently settle claims promptly, 
which is at the core of our promise to our customers. 

Re-insurance:
The Company has maintained comprehensive reinsurance treaty arrangements with a diversifi ed panel of 
reputed domestic, regional, and international reinsurance companies. These arrangements include participation 
from established reinsurers across South Asia, the Middle East, Africa, Europe, and other international markets, 
ensuring adequate capacity, technical expertise, and risk dispersion. The diversifi ed nature of the reinsurance 
panel enhances the Company’s resilience against large and catastrophic losses and strengthens its ability to 
underwrite a broad range of insurance portfolios in line with regulatory and prudential requirements.

Gross Premium Income:

premium. Specifi cally, Fire, Motor, Marine, Engineering, Micro, Aviation, Agriculture and Miscellaneous portfolios 
contributed 21.75%, 29.73%, 3.01%, 20.31%, 0.000014%, 1.16%, 0.81% and 23.23% respectively in FY 2081/82.
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3. Impact of National and International Events on the Company’s Business:
The impact of national and international events on the Company’s business remains signifi cant, infl uencing its 
operating environment and performance. Such events include economic fl uctuations, political developments, 
social and demographic shifts, technological changes, and environmental factors, all of which require continuous 
assessment and adaptive strategies. National and global economic conditions—such as infl ationary pressures, 
liquidity constraints, currency volatility, and broader macroeconomic uncertainty—have directly affected 
investment returns during the year.

In addition, the Gen-Z movement that occurred in September in Nepal, largely driven by youth participation, 
led to increased claims during the year, particularly arising from property damage and business disruptions. 
On the positive side, this movement has played a constructive role in enhancing public understanding of the 
importance of insurance as a fi nancial protection tool, supporting broader insurance penetration and long-term 
market development.

Despite these challenges, the Company has continued to strengthen its market presence. Overall market 
penetration has increased, reaching new customer segments as well as expanding coverage to previously 
underserved geographic areas. In line with the country’s federal structure, the establishment of provincial offi ces 
across all seven provinces has enhanced accessibility, operational effi ciency, and the delivery of insurance 
services nationwide, positioning the Company for sustainable growth amid a dynamic external environment.

Special note on Climatic Risk
Climate risk has become a critical consideration for businesses worldwide as the planet experiences 
unprecedented changes. This type of risk is multifaceted, encompassing both physical risks from the changing 
climate and transition risks associated with the shift towards a low-carbon economy. In the year 2081/82, claims 
incurred due to Climatic risk, particularly Flood of Ashwin, 2081, is shown in the table below:

4. Achievements Since the Last Fiscal Year till Preparation of the Annual Report and Future Plans:
The comparative premium underwritten during the Fiscal Year 2082/83 is tabulated below:

Future Plan:
The Company is pursuing a clear and purposeful strategy to expand its nationwide presence, while making 
focused investments to drive technological transformation and operational excellence. The successful merger 
has been a defi ning milestone, enabling us to establish a truly national footprint and providing an opportunity 
to reassess our strengths, capabilities, and long-term market potential. Building on this foundation, we are 
positioning the Company to capture emerging opportunities, strengthen our market leadership, and create 
sustainable value for all stakeholders.

Guided by a clear and unwavering Vision 2030, we remain committed to transforming the Company into a 
resilient, innovative, and future-ready institution. With the continued trust and support of our stakeholders, we 
are confi dent in our ability to achieve our strategic ambitions and shape a stronger, more inclusive future for 
the organization.

5. Industrial and Business Relations:
As a socially responsible organization, the Company has diligently ensured that all disclosures and information 
required under the applicable Acts, Rules, and Regulations have been submitted, published, and communicated 

S.N Particulars Gross Claim Paid Net Claim Paid
1. Fire Portfolio 320,757,570 169,919,414
2. Engineering Portfolio 64,129,390 6,685,770
3. Motor Portfolio 58,374,225 48,286,854
4. Marine Portfolio 125,602 8,792
 Total 443,386,788 224,900,830

S. No Particulars FY 2082/83 (up to Mangsir) FY 2081/82 (up to Mangsir) Increase
1. Gross Premium Income 2,007,021,389 1,393,995,862 43.98%
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S. No Incoming Director Date of Appointment
1. Mr. Mahendra Krishna Shrestha 2079/12/29
2. Mr. Ajay Ratna Sthapit 2079/12/29
3. Mr. Vijit Krishna Shrestha 2079/12/29
4. Mr. Hem Raj Thapa 2079/12/29
5. Mrs. Avilasha Panth Sharma 2080/02/10
6. Mr. Bijay Kumar Pant 2080/01/06

S.No Particular Paid Up Capital (Nrs)
1 Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited 2,50,01,57,400

transparently. Throughout the year 2081/82, we have actively engaged with our stakeholders through multiple 
channels, reinforcing trust and accountability at every level.

We are deeply committed to nurturing a culture of collaboration and excellence within and across our teams, 
recognizing that strong internal relationships are the cornerstone of our future growth and long-term success. 
In pursuit of this vision, we continue to attract and develop talent whose values resonate with our mission, and 
we invest in comprehensive training and capacity-building programs to empower our people to reach their full 
potential. By fostering innovation, teamwork, and continuous learning, we are equipping the Company to achieve 
its ambitious goals and create sustainable value for all stakeholders.

6. Changes in the Board of Directors and Senior Management:
There have not been any changes in composition of the Board of Directors during the review period 2081/82. The 
following are the details of the existing Board of Directors.

Ms. Anju Shrestha assumed charge as the Chief Executive Offi cer (CEO) of the Company with effect from 18th 
Ashwin 2081. Prior to this, she served as the Offi ciating CEO from 13th Ashad 2081 to 17th Ashwin 2081.

7. Major Factors affecting Business:
a) Post Pandemic Effect.
b) Gen-Z Movement
c) Flood and Catastropic Events
d) Changes in Acts & Regulatory Directives
e) Political Instability 
f)  Rapid Advancements in Technology
g) Limited Reinsurance Market
h) Infl ation, Currency Fluctuations.
i)  Lower Interest Rate Environment

8. Dividend:
We have proposed Cash Dividend 8% of Rs. 20,00,12,592 (Including tax on cash dividend) from the distributable 
profi t of the company. 

9. Appointment/ Re- appointment of Auditor:
The meeting of the Audit committee has recommended M/s N. Amatya & Co. as its Statutory auditor for FY 
2082/83. The total fee of Nrs. 8,20,000 (Excluding VAT) – [Audit Fee (including Tax Audit) 7,70,000 (Excluding Vat) 
and Fee for Long Form Audit Report Nrs. 50,000 (excluding VAT)] has been proposed to Statutory Auditor for 
Statutory Audit & Tax Audit. 

10. Share Capital:
The following table shows the company’s paid-up share capital As on Ashad End of FY 2081/82.

Nepal Insurance Authority has prescribed minimum paid of capital of Rs 250 Crore for Non-Life Insurance 
Company.
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11. Conclusion:
We extend our deepest gratitude to the Government of Nepal, Nepal Insurance Authority, Offi ce of Company 
Registrar, Nepal Rastra Bank, Securities Board of Nepal, Nepal Stock Exchange Limited, CDS and Clearing Limited, 
Inland Revenue Department, NMB Capital Ltd, Stockbrokers, Commercial and Development Banks, Finance 
Companies, our valued clients, and all well-wishers who have supported us, directly or indirectly, in the growth 
and success of our company. We also sincerely acknowledge the steadfast commitment of our agents and 
surveyors, whose efforts continue to strengthen our operations.

The dedication and professionalism demonstrated by all employees during the period are highly commendable. 
Their commitment to excellence and service remains the driving force behind our achievements.

We express our heartfelt thanks to our shareholders and AGM attendees for your valuable presence, insightful 
participation, and continued trust in our company. Your support inspires us to reach greater heights.

As we look toward the future, aligned with Vision 2030, we remain committed to expanding our nationwide 
presence, embracing technological transformation, and delivering innovative insurance solutions. With collective 
effort and unwavering dedication, we are poised to strengthen our market leadership and create lasting value 
for all stakeholders.

Thank You,

Ajaya Ratna Sthapit,        Mahendra Krishna Shrestha
Director             Chairman
                      Date: 2082/09/13 

a. Details of Forfeited Shares:

The company has not forfeited any shares till the reporting date.

b. Disclosure of transaction with Subsidiary/ Associates:

The Company has no subsidiaries or associates as of the reporting date. The investment previously classifi ed 
as an associate in Nepal Infrastructure Investment Fund Limited has been derecognized as an associate in the 
current year, as the Company’s holding as of the reporting date stands at 17.46%. 

c. Information provided by the Principal Shareholders in the last fi scal year:

No such information was provided during the reporting period.

d. Disclosure on the share transaction & ownership by the Board Members and Employees of the Company in 
the last fi scal year:

None

e. Disclosure of information on involvement of any Board Member or their Close Relatives having personal 
interest on any agreement done by the company during the last fi scal year:

None

f. Disclosure on Shares buy back of the company:

None.

Provisions related to section 109 (4) Companies Act, 2063 (fi rst amendments, 2074):
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g. Internal Control System, Risk Management system & its effectiveness:

The internal control system of the Company is designed to achieve the following key organizational objectives:
a) Operational Effectiveness and Effi ciency
b) Reliable Financial Reporting
c) Compliance with Laws, Regulations, and Policies

At the organizational level, the Company has established an Internal Audit Committee, chaired by public director 
Mr. Ajaya Ratna Sthapit. An independent Chartered Accountant fi rm, M/s G.P. Rajbahak & Co, has been appointed 
as the Company’s Internal Auditor.

The internal audit reports issued by the auditor are presented to the Audit Committee for review and discussion. 
Comments and recommendations from both the Internal Auditor and the Audit Committee are implemented on 
an ongoing basis. The Company strongly believes that the effective implementation of these recommendations 
enhances the overall strength and effi ciency of the internal control system.

The Company has been adhering to the Corporate Governance Directive, 2080, issued by the Insurance Authority, 
which has signifi cantly contributed to strengthening internal controls and promoting good governance practices.
In addition, the Company has established a Risk Management Committee to ensure effective identifi cation, 
assessment, and management of both internal and external risks. The following is the composition of Risk 
Management Committee:

The Risk Management committee is headed by Independent Director Mr. Bijay Kumar Pant.

h. Disclosure on the total Management expenses on last fi scal year:

The company has spent Rs. 296,402,987 (Twenty-Nine Crore Sixty Four Lakh Two Thousand Nine Hundred Eighty 
Seven Rupees) as total management expenses in FY 2081/82.

i. Details of members of the Audit committee, their remuneration, allowances and facilities, action taken, and 
any recommendations made by the committee:

During the review period, the Company constituted a three-member Audit Committee, chaired by a Public Director. 
The composition of the Committee is as follows:

The meeting fee for each audit committee meeting has been fi xed at Rs.10,000 (Ten Thousand) inclusive of Tax.

The actions made by the audit committee are as follows,

1. Review of Statutory Audit Report and recommendation to management for the improvements, as required.
2. Review of Internal Audit Report and recommend management for the improvements, as required. 
3. Review the fi nancial statements prior to submission to the Board, ensuring accuracy, completeness, and  
 compliance with applicable accounting standards.
4. Recommend the appointment of Statutory Auditor to the AGM.
5. Review of the Internal Control System of the company and provide suggestions for improvement. 

S.No Name Designation
1 Mr. Bijay Kumar Pant Coordinator
2 Mr. Hem Raj Thapa Member
3 Ms. Nasala Shakya Member Secretary

S.No Name Designation
1 Mr. Ajaya Ratna Sthapit Chairperson
2 Mr. Hem Raj Thapa Member
3 Mr. Bijay Kumar Pant Member
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j. Disclosure on amount receivable from Directors, Managing Directors, CEO, Company’s Principal Shareholders 
or any fi rm, company or any other organization associated with such individuals or their close relatives:

None.

k. Disclosures on Salary, Allowances and facilities provided to the Directors, Managing Directors, CEO:

Details of Meeting Allowance Paid to Directors:

l. Remaining Dividend amount to be claimed by shareholders:
• The remaining dividend of Rs. 3,51,99,966 has been booked as payable and shown in Annexure 24, Other  
 Financial Liabilities.

m. Disclosure on purchase and sale of property as per clause 141:

None.

n. Disclosure on transactions between associated companies as per clause 175:

None.

o. Any other details to be disclosed in the report as per the company’s act and existing laws:

The company has a market share of 9.33% (Approx) in the General Insurance Industry.

p. Disclosure on the provision of the directive 86 as per Companies Directives. 2072:

The company has been abiding by the provision made in the Company’s Directives 2072.

q. Other issues:

None.

Detail of Salary Allowances and Facilities Provided to CEO of Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited:

1. Salary & 
Allowances

Ms. Anju 
Shrestha

1,01,36,74513th Ashad 2081 – till 17th 
Ashwin (as offi ciating CEO) 
and Ashwin 18th 2081 – till 
Ashad End, 2082 as CEO

Vehicle with Driver, Fuel, 
Insurance, Telephone, & 
Statutory Bonus & Other 
as per Terms of Contract

Particulars Amount (Rs)
Board/Committee Meeting Allowance 51,30,757

S.N Particulars Detail Tenure  Amount   Other Facilities 
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MAJOR POLICIES AND PRACTICES

Terms of Reference (TOR) for 
Board and Committees

Financial Administrative 
Bylaws

Agricultural Insurance 
Manual

Claims Manual

Procurement Bylaws

IT Policy and Guidelines

Marketing Guidelines

Underwriting Manual

Investment Policy

AML/CFT Policy

Monitoring and Supervision 
Framework

Reinsurance Manual

Human Resource Bylaws

Risk Management Framework

Employee Health and Safety 
Policy

Defi nes the roles, responsibilities, authority, composition, and accountability of the Board 
and its Committees to ensure effective corporate governance and regulatory oversight.

Prescribes rules governing fi nancial management, accounting, budgeting, internal controls, 
payments, and reporting to ensure fi nancial discipline, transparency, and regulatory compliance.

Provides underwriting, claims, pricing, and operational guidelines specifi c to agricultural 
insurance products to ensure technical consistency and alignment with regulatory directives.

Establishes uniform procedures for claim registration, assessment, approval, settlement, 
and reporting to ensure fair, timely, transparent, and controlled claim management

Establishes transparent and accountable procedures for procurement of goods and services, including 
vendor selection, approval authority, and documentation to ensure value for money and integrity.

Defi nes governance, security, access control, system development, data protection, and continuity 
standards to ensure reliability, confi dentiality, and integrity of information systems.

Prescribes ethical, transparent, and compliant marketing and sales practices, including product disclosure, 
promotional activities, and intermediary conduct, to protect policyholders and the Company’s reputation.

Provides standardized principles, procedures, authority limits, and risk acceptance criteria to 
ensure consistent, prudent, and compliant underwriting across all lines of business.

Sets out principles, asset allocation limits, risk parameters, approval processes, and 
monitoring mechanisms for managing investment activities in a prudent and compliant manner.

Establishes measures for prevention, detection, monitoring, and reporting of money laundering 
and terrorist fi nancing risks in compliance with prevailing laws and regulatory requirements.

Establishes mechanisms for ongoing oversight, internal monitoring, compliance tracking, and 
performance evaluation to ensure effective implementation of policies and regulatory adherence.

Defi nes the framework for reinsurance placement, retention limits, treaty and facultative 
arrangements, and counterparty management to optimize risk transfer and protect solvency.

Defi nes policies relating to recruitment, performance management, remuneration, training, 
conduct, and discipline to ensure effective workforce governance and organizational integrity.

Provides a structured approach for identifying, assessing, mitigating, monitoring, and 
reporting risks to support sound decision-making, capital adequacy, and regulatory compliance.

Establishes standards and responsibilities to ensure a safe, healthy, and compliant workplace, 
including occupational safety, emergency preparedness, and employee well-being.

6. Risk Management Framework & Internal Control:
Himalayan Everest Insurance (HEI) has implemented a comprehensive and forward-looking Risk Management Framework 
designed to ensure that risks arising from business activities are effectively identifi ed, assessed, managed, monitored, and 
reported across the company. The framework aligns with the Nepal Insurance Authority’s Risk Management Guidelines, 
Risk-Based Capital Directive, and ORSA Directive, ensuring strong governance and regulatory compliance.

During FY 2081/82, Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited made signifi cant progress in strengthening its enterprise risk 
management capabilities. The Company successfully implemented a comprehensive Risk Management Framework (RMF) 
aligned with regulatory expectations and best practices, including the development and institutionalization of Board-
approved Risk Appetite Statements covering nine material risk categories. ORSA preparedness was further enhanced 
through structured data collection processes and targeted training sessions across key functions. To support systematic risk 
identifi cation and monitoring, a SharePoint-based risk register prototype was developed. The Risk Management function also 
played a key role in supporting post-merger transition risk management, conducted a Board-requested analysis on hydro 
portfolio concentration risk, and actively coordinated with senior management in the formulation of the Company’s strategic 
plan, ensuring risk considerations were embedded in strategic decision-making.
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1. Governance & Oversight
HEI’s framework is anchored in a clear governance structure where:
- The Board of Directors approves all risk policies and ensures alignment with HEI’s strategic objectives and
  solvency goals.
- The Board Risk Management Committee oversees implementation and annually reviews the framework and
  policies.
- The Head of Risk Management owns the framework and ensures its ongoing effectiveness.
- Business Units act as fi rst-line risk owners, responsible for identifying, managing, and reporting risks in their
  areas.

2. Risk Management Principles
HEI’s approach is based on fi ve core principles:
1.  Three Lines of Defense structure with clear accountability.
2.  A Board-driven Risk Appetite Statement tailored to HEI’s business model.
3. A robust risk management cycle covering identifi cation, assessment, mitigation, monitoring, and reporting.
4. Mandatory risk consideration in all major decisions.
5. Promotion of a strong risk culture, including capacity-building and awareness.

3. Risk Appetite
HEI defi nes its Risk Appetite both in aggregate and for each material risk category, prioritizing:
- Strong underwriting discipline
- Balanced retention and reinsurance
- Portfolio diversifi cation
- Capital preservation and solvency strength

4. Core Risk Categories
HEI employs a comprehensive risk taxonomy consistent with regulatory guidelines. The major categories include:
- Insurance Risk (pricing, selection, reserving, catastrophe exposure)
- Market Risk (interest rate, equity, currency, ALM/liquidity)
- Credit Risk (counterparty, invested assets, concentration)
- Operational Risk (people, process, systems, external events)
- Strategic Risk (business model, competition, macro factors)
- Compliance & Legal Risk
- Conduct Risk
- Money Laundering & Terrorism Financing Risk
- Climate Risk (physical, transition, liability impacts)

5. Risk Policy Framework
HEI maintains separate risk policies for each material risk, approved by the Board.
The Risk Management Department:
- Maintains and reviews policies annually
- Monitors compliance

Business Units:
- Report breaches or incidents

6. Risk Management Cycle
The framework applies a structured cycle covering:
a) Risk Identifi cation – bottom-up and top-down approaches, including emerging risks.
b) Risk Assessment & Analysis – qualitative and quantitative methods.
c) Risk Treatment – mitigation, transfer, avoidance, or acceptance.
d) Risk Monitoring – BU-level monitoring with oversight from Risk Management & Internal Audit.
e) Risk Reporting – quarterly reporting to Senior Management, RMC, and the Board.

7. Integration with ORSA
The framework forms the foundation of HEI’s ORSA process providing a forward-looking view on risks and solvency aligned 
with business strategy.

8. Risk Culture
HEI promotes a responsible and informed risk culture, expecting every employee to understand the risks inherent in their 
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work.
- Risk is embedded in BU performance evaluations.
- Training and capability-building strengthens risk competencies.

Climate Risk Related Disclosure
Physical Risks:
HEI is exposed to climate-related hazards such as fl oods, wildfi res, GLOFs (Glacier Lake Outburst Floods), landslides, and 
storms, which may increase claim frequency and severity.

Transition Risks:
Emerging ESG regulations, shifting market expectations, technological transitions, and changes in investment landscapes 
may infl uence business practices and risk profi les.

Opportunities:
Climate transition opens avenues for innovation through green insurance products, sustainability-focused investments, and 
digitalization that reduces resource consumption.

An increase in the frequency and severity of climate-related events may exert upward pressure on claims ratios, reinsurance 
costs, and capital requirements, reinforcing the importance of early climate risk integration.

Time Horizons
HEI has adopted standard climate-assessment time frames:
• Short-term: 1–3 years
• Medium-term: 3–10 years
• Long-term: 10–30 years

HEI assesses climate-related risks and opportunities across multiple time horizons to refl ect both immediate operational 
considerations and longer-term strategic and solvency impacts. These time horizons guide the sequencing of ESG integration 
under the Company’s phased approach.

Short-term (1–3 years | “Now”)
Focuses on immediate operational and regulatory considerations, including governance strengthening, baseline data 
collection, early risk identifi cation, and the integration of climate risk into existing risk management and ORSA processes.

Medium-term (3–10 years | “Next”)
Emphasizes the gradual incorporation of climate considerations into core insurance activities, such as underwriting, 
reinsurance strategy, product development, and investment decision-making, as well as enhanced metrics, targets, and 
scenario analysis.

Long-term (10–30 years | “Later”)
Considers structural changes driven by climate transition and physical risks, including shifts in risk exposure, capital 
requirements, business models, and market dynamics, to support long-term resilience, solvency, and value creation.
These time horizons enable HEI to balance near-term practicality with long-term strategic planning, ensuring that sustainability 
considerations are integrated progressively and in line with the Company’s evolving ESG maturity.

Adequacy of Reinsurance Coverage Including Catastrophic Risk
The Reinsurance Management Framework (RMF) of Himalayan Everest Insurance (HEI) establishes the governance, oversight, 
and strategic mechanisms through which the company structures and manages its reinsurance arrangements. The framework 
is designed to safeguard the company’s risk appetite, capital strength, and fi nancial stability while ensuring compliance 
with directives from the Nepal Insurance Authority (NIA). HEI’s reinsurance program aims to optimize risk transfer, stabilize 
earnings, and enhance underwriting capacity across all lines of business.

Reinsurance Strategy
The Company’s reinsurance strategy is designed to:
• Transfer major risks, stabilize profi ts, and strengthen solvency.
• Support portfolio growth, product expansion, and underwriting capacity.
• Fully align with corporate goals and regulatory requirements.
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• Defi ne target retention levels by line of business.
• Utilize proportional and non-proportional treaties to address predictable, high-severity, and catastrophic risks.
• Be reviewed annually or upon material changes in risk profi le.

Types of Reinsurance Used:
• Proportional Reinsurance: Quota Share and Surplus treaties to share predictable risks.
• Non-Proportional Reinsurance: Excess of Loss treaties for high-severity events, including catastrophic and
  large-loss protection.
• Facultative Reinsurance: For large, unusual, or high-value risks not covered under treaty arrangements.

Reinsurance Assessment & Placement
The Company follows a structured process to ensure appropriate reinsurance coverage:
1. Risk Identifi cation: Using historical loss data, exposure analysis, and portfolio review.
2. Retention Determination: Guided by risk appetite, capital, solvency, and historical claims.
3. Reinsurer Selection: Based on creditworthiness, rating, capacity, claims performance, terms, and regulatory 
 compliance.
4. Pricing & Negotiation: Establish premiums and terms using exposure metrics, loss trends, portfolio growth,   
andmarket intelligence.
5. Contract Documentation: Clearly defi ned, enforceable, and timely fi nalized, with all coverage, exclusions, and 
 claims procedures detailed.
6. Regulatory Compliance: Submission to NIA for approval where required.

Governance
The governance of HEI’s reinsurance program is anchored in a robust oversight framework to ensure alignment with 
corporate objectives, risk appetite, and regulatory requirements. The Board is responsible for defi ning the overall reinsurance 
strategy and monitoring its implementation through the CEO and senior management. Continuous oversight is exercised 
on treaty performance, reinsurer solvency, and exposure levels to ensure risks remain within approved limits. Reinsurance 
considerations are integrated into the company’s Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA) to support capital planning 
and solvency management. In addition, the internal audit function periodically reviews reinsurance operations, controls, 
and compliance, ensuring that all activities are accurate, transparent, and in line with established policies and regulatory 
standards.

Catastrophic Reinsurance
HEI maintains a robust catastrophic reinsurance program designed to limit exposure to extreme losses and safeguard the 
company’s fi nancial stability. The program provides comprehensive coverage across all major portfolios, including property, 
engineering, motor, marine, cattle, and miscellaneous lines. Catastrophic reinsurance protects against natural disasters 
such as earthquakes, fl oods, fi res, and other low-frequency, high-severity events, with clearly defi ned limits and retention 
levels. The coverage is calibrated to ensure that the company’s maximum retention per event remains within prudent risk 
appetite, thereby reducing earnings volatility and supporting solvency while providing assurance of fi nancial resilience 
during catastrophic scenarios.

Key features include:
• Scope: Covers all major portfolios, including Property, Marine, Motor, Engineering, Cattle, and Miscellaneous 
 Insurance.
• Perils Covered: Natural disasters such as earthquakes, fl oods, fi re, and other catastrophic events.
• Objective: Provides spillover protection beyond proportional treaty limits, stabilizing fi nancial performance
  during high-severity events.
• The company’s catastrophic program represents one of the most comprehensive reinsurance arrangements 
 among Nepalese insurers.

The company has reinsurance treaty with the following reinsurance companies:
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Control Environment

Risk Assessment

Control Activities

Information & 
Communication

Monitoring Activities

Establishes organizational 
culture and ethical standards.

Identifi cation, analysis, and 
management of risks affecting 
operations and objectives.

Policies, procedures, and 
actions to mitigate identifi ed 
risks.

Ensures timely, accurate, and 
transparent information fl ow.

Continuous and periodic 
assessment of internal control 
system effectiveness.

• Board & management oversight
• Code of conduct & ethics
• Defi ned organizational structure
• Employee competence & accountability
• Operational, underwriting, claims, and fi nancial risks
• Regular enterprise-wide risk assessment
• Periodic risk reporting to management & board
• Authorization & approval limits for transactions
• Segregation of duties
• Reconciliations and verifi cation
• IT system access controls
• Internal reporting systems
• Regular management meetings
• Whistleblower & grievance mechanisms
• Communication with regulators and stakeholders
• Internal audit and self-assessment
• Management review of key risk indicators
• External audit and regulatory feedback
• Timely corrective action for control defi ciencies

Framework of Internal Control System and its effectiveness
Himalayan Everest Insurance (HEI) is committed to maintaining a robust Internal Control System as a cornerstone of its 
governance and operational excellence. The internal control system provides a structured framework to ensure the reliability 
and accuracy of fi nancial and operational information, safeguard the Company’s assets, and promote compliance with 
applicable laws, regulations, and internal policies. By embedding effective controls across all levels of the organization, HEI 
seeks to enhance operational effi ciency, mitigate risks, and foster transparency, accountability, and stakeholder confi dence 
in its business practices.

3. Key Policies and Controls
Himalayan Everest Insurance (HEI) is committed to maintaining a robust Internal Control System as a cornerstone 
of its governance and operational excellence. The internal control system provides a structured framework to 
ensure the reliability and accuracy of fi nancial and operational information, safeguard the Company’s assets, and 
promote compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and internal policies. By embedding effective controls 
across all levels of the organization, HEI seeks to enhance operational effi ciency, mitigate risks, and foster 
transparency, accountability, and stakeholder confi dence in its business practices.

1. Authorization & Approval:
• Transactions above defi ned thresholds require managerial or board approval.
• Segregation between initiation, approval, and recording of transactions.

Components of Internal Control
Component Description Key Elements at HEI

S. No Name of reinsurers Rating Agency
1 General Insurance Corporation of India, India B++ Good  A.M. Best
2 Oman Re B+ A.M. Best
3 Kenya Reinsurance Corporation Ltd., Nairobi, Kenya B (Fair) A.M Best
4 Asian Reinsurance Company Limited B+ (Good)  A.M Best
5 Cica Reinsurance, India B+ A.M. Best
6 GIC Bhutan Reinsurance Company Limited A A.M. Best
7 The New India Assurance Company Limited B++ A.M Best 
8 Abu Dhabi National Insurance Company A (Excellent) A.M. Best
9 Nepal Re - -
10 Himalayan Re B+ A.M. Best
11 Sirius International A- A.M. Best
12 Odyssey Reinsurance A+ A.M. Best
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4. Roles & Responsibilities

Role  Responsibility
Board of Director  Oversight of Internal Control System effectiveness, policy approval, risk management  
   framework.
Senior Management  Implementation, monitoring, and continuous improvement of Internal Control System.
Internal Audit Independent evaluation of control adequacy and reporting of defi ciencies.
Department Heads Compliance with controls within respective departments.
Employees Adherence to policies and reporting of discrepancies or risks.

2. Segregation of Duties:
• Critical functions such as cash handling, policy issuance, underwriting, and claims processing are segregated.

3. Asset Safeguarding:
• Physical and electronic security for cash, bank balances, investments, and IT infrastructure.

4. Financial & Accounting Controls:
• Standardized processes for ledger maintenance, reconciliations, and timely fi nancial reporting.

5. Compliance & Regulatory Control:
• Adherence to Insurance Act, NRB directives, Financial Reporting Standards, and other statutory requirements.

6. IT & Data Security:
• Access rights review, cybersecurity measures, system backups, and disaster recovery protocols.

7. Operational Risk Controls:
• Underwriting guidelines, claims approval limits, and policy issuance checks to reduce operational risks.

5. Monitoring & Reporting
1. Ongoing Monitoring:
• Daily/weekly reconciliation, exception reporting, and operational supervision.

2. Periodic Assessment:
• Internal audits, risk reviews, and departmental self-assessment reports.

3. Reporting:
• Internal audit fi ndings to management and board.
• Regulatory compliance reporting to regulators.

Information Technology System and Control
The Information Technology (IT) Division of Himalayan Everest Insurance (HEI) serves as a strategic enabler of 
the Company’s operations, governance, and digital transformation agenda. It is responsible for the development, 
management, security, and continuous improvement of enterprise information systems and IT infrastructure, 
ensuring technology supports operational effi ciency, business growth, and stakeholder confi dence.

A key focus of the Division is building internal technical capability, reducing reliance on external vendors, and 
establishing sustainable ownership of core business systems.

1. IT System Overview
HEI’s IT infrastructure and enterprise applications form the backbone for operational effi ciency, process 
automation, and customer service excellence. Key elements include:

• Core System: HEI’s central system supports multiple business processes, now fully managed in-house by the IT 
 Division, ensuring control over system maintenance, enhancements, deployments, and issue resolution.
• IT Support & Service Management: Introduction of a centralized IT ticketing system for structured incident
 handling, improved response time, and enhanced transparency.
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• Security & Operational Resilience: Strengthened access controls, proactive monitoring, backup and recovery
  mechanisms, and continuity planning to ensure system reliability.

3. System Development and Operational Management
Key achievements in FY 2024/25 include:
• Strengthening Internal IT Capability: Formation of specialized teams for software development, IT infrastructure,
  and support/service management.
• Core System Ownership: Transition from external vendor dependency to in-house system management, with 
 full control over code and operational enhancements.
• System Enhancements: Over 110 successful system deployments, including functional improvements, 
 performance tuning, and controlled module-wise upgrades.
• Operational Effi ciency: Faster turnaround for business requirements and process automation, reducing costs
  and improving service delivery.

4. Security, Stability, and Risk Management
HEI’s IT Division emphasizes secure and resilient operations through:
• Enhanced application access controls and cybersecurity mechanisms
• Improved backup, recovery, and business continuity arrangements
• Proactive monitoring and early issue resolution to ensure high system availability
• Lessons learned highlighting the importance of structured documentation, version control, and disciplined
  operational management

5. Strategic IT Initiatives
The IT Division aligns its initiatives with HEI’s strategic objectives:
• Building sustainable internal IT capability
• Supporting digital transformation and long-term value creation
• Enhancing operational resilience and stakeholder confi dence
• Reducing vendor dependency while improving scalability and stability

6. Key Challenges
• Managing a complex, large-scale core system
• Maintaining system stability during frequent deployments and transitions

2. IT Governance and Control
The Division has strengthened governance, risk management, and operational control over IT systems through:

Governance Area Key Measures
Access & Security Controls Role-based access, secure authentication, and continuous monitoring of critical  
   applications
Change & Release  Structured version control, module-wise deployments, and documented release
Management procedures
Audit & Compliance System-based audit trails and traceable operational processes
Process Standardization Standard operating procedures, operational manuals, and comprehensive
    system documentation

7. Plans and Priorities for FY 2025/26
Initiative Objective
Customer Portal Development Self-service digital platform for improved customer experience and   
   transparency
Sales Application (Sales App) Digitally enable sales operations via mobile/web solutions
Claims Module Re-engineering Process redesign to improve effi ciency, control, and turnaround time
API & Workfl ow Enhancements Better integration and interoperability with internal and external systems
Stakeholder Login Portal Secure, role-based access for agents, partners, and other stakeholders
Core System Modernization Continuous upgrades, automation, and cybersecurity enhancements

Through these initiatives, HEI’s IT Division continues to focus on secure, effi cient, and innovative technology 
solutions that support business growth, governance, and stakeholder satisfaction.
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INFORMATION SYSTEM AUDIT REPORT
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Financial Statements & Related Disclosures:

Statement of Responsibilities of Chief Financial Offi cer
The Chief Finance Offi cer (CFO) is responsible for ensuring the accuracy, transparency, and compliance of the 
company's annual fi nancial statements with the prevailing Act Rules Regulations.

The key responsibilities include:
Preparation and Fair Presentation:
Ensuring that the annual fi nancial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards, 
laws, and regulatory requirements.
Presenting a true and fair view of the company’s fi nancial position, performance, and cash fl ows.
Ensuring transparency in fi nancial disclosures.

Compliance with Regulatory Standards
Adhering to accounting principles (e.g., IFRS, GAAP) and relevant fi nancial reporting laws.
Ensuring compliance with corporate governance policies and statutory reporting requirements.

Accuracy and Integrity of Financial Data
Ensuring that fi nancial statements are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Reviewing and validating fi nancial reports before submission to the Board of Directors and regulatory authorities.

Ethical and Professional Conduct
Ensuring fi nancial reporting aligns with the company’s strategic goals and long-term sustainability.

Through the above key responsibilities, Chief Finance Offi cer ensures that the company's fi nancial statements 
accurately refl ect its fi nancial health and comply with the regulatory requirements set forth by the Nepal 
Insurance Authority.

Rajkumar Khadka
Chief Financial Offi cer
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Annexure-I
(Prepared Under Section 5(1) (Ka) of Financial Directive 2080)
Report of Board of Directors

A. Information Related to Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited (Herein After referred to as “Company”) is a public limited liability company 
incorporated as per the laws of Nepal. The Company obtained the license (License number 04/050) from Nepal 
Insurance Authority on Shrawan 6, 2050 and got approval from the Authority to carry on business from Shrawan 
13, 2050 under Insurance Act 2079. The Company started its commercial operation from Mangsir 16, 2050.

The registered offi ce of the Company and the principal place of business is HEI House, Babar Mahal, Kathmandu, 
Nepal. The Company’s shares are listed in Nepal Stock Exchange.

The Company is engaged in the business of underwriting non-life insurance through its branches and network of 
agents. There were no signifi cant changes in the nature of principal activities in the company during the fi nancial 
year.

The company merged Everest Insurance Company Limited with it and commenced joint operation in the name of 
the merged entity, Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited from Shrawan 1, 2079 (July 17, 2022).

B. Upon Discussion, Board of Directors of Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited, has approved and declared the 
following:

1. Tax, service charges, fi nes and penalties to be paid under laws & regulation:
The company has paid the applicable direct and indirect taxes including fi nes and penalties (if any) levied by 
the competent authority during periodic tax assessment. Aso, services charge has been paid within stipulated 
timeline to Nepal Insurance Authority.

2. Share Structure & Changes:
The share structure of the company is as follows:

3. Solvency Ratio:
The solvency ratio of the company as on Year Ended 32nd Asar 2082 under Risk Based Capital and Solvency 
Directive 2025 stands to 438.1%, which is well above than the minimum requirement of 130% prescribed by Nepal 
Insurance Authority.

4. Declaration on Basis of Measurement:
The annual fi nancial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, except for certain assets and 
liabilities measured as follows as follows:

a. Investment in equity instruments and units of mutual funds are measured at fair value.
b. Liability for defi ned benefi t obligations is recognized at the present value of the defi ned benefi t obligation as 
determined by the actuary.

Insurance contract liabilities are actuarially determined values, and these have been measured as per Risk 
Based Capital and Solvency Directive, 2025 issued by Nepal Insurance Authority.

5. Declaration on Investment:
Investments made by the company are in line with the investment directive issued by the Nepal Insurance 
Authority. The details of the investment have been duly reported to the regulator and prior approval as required 
has been taken on a case-to-case basis.

Particulars Percentage of ownership
Promotor Share Holding 51.10%
Public Share Holding 48.9%
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6. Claim Settlement:
The following are the details of claims settled and outstanding as on year ended 32nd Asar 2082.

Time Frame to Settle the outstanding claim: 
The company has the policy to settle the outstanding claim within 21 days after receipt of all the required 
documents. 

7. Declaration on Compliance:
The fi nancial statements have been prepared in all material aspects under Nepal Financial Reporting Standards 
(NFRS) laid down by the Accounting Standard Board (ASB), and comply with requirements of Insurance Act 2079, 
Insurance Regulation, 2081, Company Act, 2063, Security Exchange Act 2063 and applicable directives issued by 
Nepal Insurance Authority along with compliance and disclosures as per other applicable laws of Nepal.

8. Declaration on Accounting Policy:
The Accounting Policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise specifi cally 
stated.

9. Declaration on True & Fair Presentation:
The fi nancial statements of the company present fairly, in all material respects, the fi nancial position of the 
company as on 32nd Asar 2082, and its fi nancial performance for the year then ended.

10. Declaration on Safeguard of Assets & identifi cation and mitigation against losses due to fraud, embezzlement, 
and irregularities:
The Board of Directors of the company has implemented adequate and appropriate provisions to safeguard the 
assets as well as for the identifi cation and mitigation against losses due to fraud, embezzlement and irregularities.

11. Declaration on Going Concern:
The Board of Directors has assessed the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and are satisfi ed that 
it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the Board of Directors is 
not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast signifi cant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue 
as going concern and accordingly, the fi nancial statements have been prepared on the basis of going concern.

12. Declaration on Internal Control:
Necessary mechanisms, rules and procedures are implemented in the company for the effective internal control 
system. The internal control system is commensurate with the size, nature & volume of the company's business.

13. The company has not conducted any transactions contrary to the Insurance Act, 2079, Insurance Regulation, 
2081, Companies Act, 2063, related regulations and directions with any person, fi rm, company and its director or 
with any entity in which its director has interest.

14. Penalties Levied by Nepal Insurance Authority:
No penalty has been imposed by Nepal Insurance Authority during the FY 2081/82.

15. Other Disclosures:
None

Particulars Number
Number of Claim Settled (FY 2081/82) 11,900
Number of Claim Outstanding (As on 32nd Asar 2082) (including 5,832 Covid Claim) 8,444

Mahendra Krishna Shrestha
Chairman

Hem Raj Thapa
Director

Vijit Krishna Shrestha
Director

Bijay Kumar Pant
Director

Place : Kathmandu
Date : 11-Poush-2082

Ajaya Ratna Sthapit
Director

Avilasha Panth Sharma
Director
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 Particulars   Notes   Current Year   Previous Year 
 ASSETS    
 Goodwill & Intangible Assets  4  17,145,750  18,868,120 
 Property and Equipment  5  1,175,836,559   1,051,365,598 
 Investment Properties  6  -     -   
 Deferred Tax Assets  7  -     12,531,846 
 Investment in Subsidiaries  8  -     -   
 Investment in Associates  9  -     210,161,858 
 Investments  10  5,242,231,416   4,818,274,239 
 Loans  11  -     -   
 Reinsurance Assets  12  2,697,992,261   2,847,849,366 
 Current Tax Assets   21  188,503,919   75,341,583 
 Insurance Receivables  13  523,215,128   457,156,412 
 Other Assets  14  76,107,083   85,042,482 
 Other Financial Assets  15  114,113,235   86,397,271 
 Cash and Cash Equivalent  16  145,744,832   175,773,574 
 TOTAL ASSETS    10,180,890,183   9,838,762,349 
     
EQUITY & LIABILITIES    

 EQUITY    
 Share Capital   17 (a)   2,500,157,400   2,500,157,400 
 Share Application Money Pending Allotment   17 (b)   -     -   
 Share Premium   17 (c)   -     -   
 Special Reserves   17 (d)   1,913,190,116   1,667,570,965 
 Catastrophe Reserves   17 (e)   82,195,510   69,914,552 
 Retained Earnings   17 (f)   301,556,975   304,786,863 
 Other Equity   17 (g)   414,274,032   383,881,726 
 TOTAL EQUITY    5,211,374,034   4,926,311,506 
   
 LIABILITIES    
 Provisions  18  8,161,536   1,681,849 
 Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities  19  3,855,161,138   3,998,842,065 
 Deferred Tax Liabilities  7  54,705,673   -   
 Insurance Payable  20  580,005,198   358,680,424 
 Current Tax Liabilities  21  -     -   
 Borrowings  22  -     -   
 Other Liabilities  23  273,566,694   340,693,164 
 Other Financial Liabilities  24  197,915,910   212,553,341 
TOTAL LIABILITIES    4,969,516,149   4,912,450,843 

 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    10,180,890,183   9,838,762,349

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Statement of Financial Position    
As at Ashad 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Fig. in NPR

 The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.    
          
 For and on behalf of Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited    

As per our report of even dateMahendra Krishna Shrestha
Chairman

Hem Raj Thapa
Director

Vijit Krishna Shrestha
Director

Bijay Kumar Pant
Director

Place : Kathmandu
Date : 11-Poush-2082

Anju Shrestha
Chief Executive Offi cer

Ajaya Ratna Sthapit
Director

Avilasha Panth Sharma
Director

Rajkumar Khadka
Chief Financial Offi cer

Udeshya Khanal
Partner

Suresh Shrestha & Associates 
Chartered Accountants
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HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Statement of Profi t or Loss
For Period 16th July, 2024 - 16th July, 2025 (For the Year Ended Ashad 2082)

 Particulars   Notes   Current Year   Previous Year 
 INCOME   
 Gross Earned Premiums  25  4,910,110,704   3,384,296,904 
 Premiums Ceded   26  (2,996,733,380)  (2,104,185,974)
 Net Earned Premiums    1,913,377,324   1,280,110,930 
 Commission Income  27  544,552,849   342,886,515 
 Other Direct Income  28  -   - 
 Income from Investments & Loans  29  219,223,683   344,043,010 
 Net Gain/ (Loss) on Fair Value Changes  30  -   - 
 Net Realised Gains/ (Losses)  31  4,531,045   361,558,301 
 Other Income  32  9,163,073   174,779,042 
 TOTAL INCOME    2,690,847,973   2,503,377,798 
   
 EXPENSES   
 Gross Claims Paid  33  1,958,921,202   1,474,412,237 
 Claims Ceded  33  (883,556,159)  (756,662,048)
 Gross Change in Contract Liabilities  34  480,103,271   (582,942,145)
 Change in Contract Liabities Ceded to Reinsurers  34  (316,635,322)  611,121,658 
 Net Claims Incurred    1,238,832,992   745,929,702 
 Commission Expenses  35  84,728,455   58,727,559 
 Service Fees  36  14,821,168   12,103,722 
 Other Direct Expenes  37  4,308,293   3,628,920 
 Employee Benefi ts Expenses  38  420,679,388   425,448,469 
 Depreciation and Amortization Expenses  39  33,486,253   20,513,155 
 Impairment Losses  40  -   132,852,751 
 Other Operating Expenses  41  296,402,987   221,749,258 
 Finance Cost  42  866,890   1,446,864 
 TOTAL EXPENSES    2,094,126,426   1,622,400,400

Net Profi t/(Loss) For The Year Before Share of Net Profi ts of 
 Associates Accounted for Using Equity Method and Tax    596,721,547   880,977,398

 Share of Net Profi t of Associates accounted using Equity Method  9  -   11,214,458 
 Profi t Before Tax    596,721,547   892,191,856 
 Income Tax Expense  43  140,840,793   389,727,941 
 Net Profi t/(Loss) For The Year    455,880,754   502,463,915 

 Earning Per Share  50  
 Basic EPS    18.23   20.10 
 Diluted EPS    18.23   20.10 

Fig. in NPR

 The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.    
          
 For and on behalf of Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited    

As per our report of even dateMahendra Krishna Shrestha
Chairman

Hem Raj Thapa
Director

Vijit Krishna Shrestha
Director

Bijay Kumar Pant
Director

Place : Kathmandu
Date : 11-Poush-2082

Anju Shrestha
Chief Executive Offi cer

Ajaya Ratna Sthapit
Director

Avilasha Panth Sharma
Director

Rajkumar Khadka
Chief Financial Offi cer

Udeshya Khanal
Partner

Suresh Shrestha & Associates 
Chartered Accountants
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 Particulars   Notes   Current Year   Previous Year 
Net Profi t/(Loss) For the Year    455,880,754   502,463,915 

   
 Other Comprehensive Income    
 a) Items that are or may be Reclassifi ed to Profi t or Loss    
 Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Debt Instruments     - 
 Cash Flow Hedge - Effective Portion of Changes in Fair Value     - 
 Exchange differences on translation of Foreign Operation     - 
 Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for 
 using the equity method   9   -     - 
 Income Tax Relating to Above Items     - 
 Reclassifi ed to Profi t or Loss     - 
   
 b) Items that will not be Reclassifi ed to Profi t or Loss    
 Changes in fair value of FVOCI Equity Instruments    93,677,221   20,619,630 
 Revaluation of Property and Equipment/ Goodwill & Intangible Assets    -     370,212,473 
 Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefi t Obligations    -     - 
 Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for 
 using the equity method    -     - 
 Income Tax Relating to Above Items    (28,103,165)  (117,249,631)
   
Total Other Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax    65,574,056   273,582,472 

 Total Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax    521,454,810   776,046,387 

 Current Year  
 455,880,754  

 

 
 
 

 -    
 
 

 
 93,677,221  

 -    
 -    

 -    
 (28,103,165) 

 65,574,056  
 521,454,810  

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For Period 16th July, 2024 - 16th July, 2025 (For the Year Ended Ashad 2082)

Fig. in NPR

 The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.    
          
 For and on behalf of Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited    

As per our report of even dateMahendra Krishna Shrestha
Chairman

Hem Raj Thapa
Director

Vijit Krishna Shrestha
Director

Bijay Kumar Pant
Director

Place : Kathmandu
Date : 11-Poush-2082

Anju Shrestha
Chief Executive Offi cer

Ajaya Ratna Sthapit
Director

Avilasha Panth Sharma
Director

Rajkumar Khadka
Chief Financial Offi cer

Udeshya Khanal
Partner

Suresh Shrestha & Associates 
Chartered Accountants
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 Particulars   Current Year   Previous Year 
 CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
 Cash Received   
 Gross Premium Received   4,043,284,541   3,605,732,317 
 Reinsurance Commission Received   201,666,334   268,765,170 
 Claim Recovery Received from Reinsurers   495,530,454   1,270,763,840 
 Realised Foreign Exchange Income other than on Cash and Cash Equivalents   (1,796,685)  40,859 
 Other Direct Income Received   -     -   
 Others (Miscellaneous Income)   729,028   6,515,948 
 Cash Paid   
 Gross Benefi ts and Claims Paid   (1,914,891,153)  (1,214,762,671)
 Reinsurance Premium Paid   (1,535,151,378)  (2,585,041,513)
 Commission Paid   (64,950,177)  (52,191,015)
 Service Fees Paid   (49,266,516)  (27,364,966)
 Employee Benefi ts Expenses Paid   (406,565,690)  (399,222,503)
 Other Expenses Paid   (364,729,551)  (267,885,179)
 Other Direct Expenses Paid   (5,897,716)  (7,048,255)
 Others (CSR Utilised)   (4,995,080)  (2,749,500)
 Others (to be specifi ed)   -     -   
 Income Tax Paid   (167,076,976)  (466,208,637)
Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities [1]   225,889,435   129,343,895 

 Cash Flow From Investing Activities   
 Acquisitions of Intangible Assets   (225,000)  (3,012,132)
 Proceeds From Sale of Intangible Assets    -   
 Acquisitions of Investment Properties    -   
 Proceeds From Sale of Investment Properties    -   
 Acquisitions of Property & Equipment   (159,778,426)  (389,159,679)
 Proceeds From Sale of Property & Equipment   1,897,689   775,897 
 Investment in Subsidiaries    -   
 Receipts from Sale of Investments in Subsidiaries    -   
 Investment in Associates    -   
 Receipts from Sale of Investments in Associates    -   
 Purchase of Equity Instruments   (116,407,444)  (397,387,812)
 Proceeds from Sale of Equity Instruments   468,989   562,632,920 
 Purchase of Mutual Funds    -   
 Proceeds from Sale of Mutual Funds   2,182,505   3,209,021 
 Purchase of Preference Shares    -   
 Proceeds from Sale of Preference Shares    -   
 Purchase of Debentures   (28,298,000)  (71,164,888)
 Proceeds from Sale of Debentures   -     -   
 Purchase of Bonds    -   
 Proceeds from Sale of Bonds    -   
 Investments in Deposits   (4,200,074,200)  (3,742,506,300)
 Maturity of Deposits   4,244,545,600   3,680,387,500 
 Loans Paid    -   
 Proceeds from Loans   -    -
 Rental Income Received   3,144,815   -   
 Proceeds from  Finance Lease    -   
 Interest Income Received   207,550,070   329,383,408

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flows
For Period 16th July, 2024 - 16th July, 2025 (For the Year Ended Ashad 2082)

Fig. in NPR
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 Particulars   Current Year   Previous Year 
 Dividend Received   5,450,274   9,526,984 
 Others (to be specifi ed)    -   
Total Cash Flow From Investing Activities [2]   (39,543,128)  (17,315,081)

 Cash Flow From Financing Activities   
 Interest Paid    -   
 Proceeds From Borrowings    -   
 Repayment of Borrowings    -   
 Payment of Finance Lease    -   
 Proceeds From Issue of Share Capital    -   
 Share Issuance Cost Paid    -   
 Dividend Paid   (210,555,269)  (142,585,224)
 Dividend Distribution Tax Paid   (8,208,504)  (4,022,556)
 Others (to be specifi ed)    -   
Total Cash Flow From Financing Activities [3]   (218,763,773)  (146,607,780)

 Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash & Cash Equivalents [1+2+3]   (32,417,467)  (34,578,966)
 Cash & Cash Equivalents At Beginning of The Year/Period   175,773,573   207,456,354 
 Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents   2,388,725   2,896,185 
Cash & Cash Equivalents At End of The Year/Period   145,744,832   175,773,573 

 Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents   
 Cash In Hand   1,379,998   1,124,800 
 Cheuqe in Hand   -     -   
 Term Deposit with Banks (with initial maturity upto 3 months)    -   
 Balance With Banks    144,364,834   174,648,774 

 The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.    
          
 For and on behalf of Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited    

As per our report of even dateMahendra Krishna Shrestha
Chairman

Hem Raj Thapa
Director

Vijit Krishna Shrestha
Director

Bijay Kumar Pant
Director

Place : Kathmandu
Date : 11-Poush-2082

Anju Shrestha
Chief Executive Offi cer

Ajaya Ratna Sthapit
Director

Avilasha Panth Sharma
Director

Rajkumar Khadka
Chief Financial Offi cer

Udeshya Khanal
Partner

Suresh Shrestha & Associates 
Chartered Accountants
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 (210,555,269) 
 (8,208,504) 

 
 (218,763,773) 

 (32,417,467) 
 175,773,573  

 2,388,725  
 145,744,832  

 1,379,998  
 -    

 
 144,364,834  



115

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

 Particulars   Current Year   Previous Year 
 Opening Balance in Retained Earnings   304,786,863   226,482,875 
 Retained earning brought in from merger    -   
 Transfer from OCI reserves to retained earning in current year   (2,905,235)  39,299,583 
 Net profi t or (loss) as per statement of profi t or loss   455,880,754   502,463,915 
 Appropriations  
 i)Transfer to Insurance Fund   
 ii)Transfer to Special Reserve   (245,619,151)  (257,067,310)
 iii)Transfer to Catastrophe Reserve   (12,280,958)  (12,853,366)
 iv)Transfer to Capital Reserve    -   
 v)Transfer to CSR reserve   (4,912,383)  (5,141,346)
 vi)Transfer to/from Regulatory Reserve    -   
 vii)Transfer to Fair Value Reserve    -   
 viii)Transfer of Deferred Tax Reserve   38,262,783   (31,360,410)
 ix)Transfer to OCI reserves due to change in classifi cation    -   
 x)Others (Transfer to Staff Training Reserve)   (2,730,067)  -   
 Deductions   
 i) Accumulated Fair Value Gain on each Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL   
 a) Equity Instruments    -   
 b) Mutual Fund    -   
 c) Others (if any)    -   
 ii) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Investment Properties    -   
 iii) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Hedged Items in Fair Value Hedges    -   
 iv) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Hedging Instruments in Fair Value Hedges    -   
 v) Accumulated Fair value gain of  Ineffective Portion on Cash Flow Hedges    -   
 vi)) Goodwill Recognised    -   
 vii) Unrealised Gain on fl uctuation of Foreign Exchange Currency   (2,388,730)  (4,120,485)
 viii) Accumulated Share of Net Profi t of Associates accounted using 
 Equity Method included in Investment Account   (10,161,858)  (10,161,858)
 ix) Overdue loans    -   
 x) Fair value gain recognised in Statement of Profi t or Loss    -   
 xi) Investment in unlisted shares     -   
 xii) Delisted share Investment or mutual fund investment    -   
 xiii) Bonus share/ dividend paid   (218,763,773)  (157,037,078)
 xiv) Deduction as per Sec 16 of Financial directive   
 xv) Deduction as per Sec 17 of Financial directive   (1,000,000)  -   
 xvi) Deduction as per Sec 18 of Financial directive   (56,747,627)  (61,825,249)
 xvii) Others (to be specifi ed)    -   
 Adjusted Retained Earning   241,420,618   228,679,271 
 Add: Transfer from Share Premium Account    -   
 Less: Amount apportioned for Assigned capital    -   
 Less: Deduction as per sec 15(1) Of Financial directive   -     (4,369,067)
 Add/Less: Others (to be specifi ed)    -   
 Total Distributable Profi t/(loss)   241,420,618   224,310,204 

 The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.    
          
 For and on behalf of Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited    

As per our report of even dateMahendra Krishna Shrestha
Chairman

Hem Raj Thapa
Director

Vijit Krishna Shrestha
Director

Bijay Kumar Pant
Director

Place : Kathmandu
Date : 11-Poush-2082

Anju Shrestha
Chief Executive Offi cer

Ajaya Ratna Sthapit
Director

Avilasha Panth Sharma
Director

Rajkumar Khadka
Chief Financial Offi cer

Udeshya Khanal
Partner

Suresh Shrestha & Associates 
Chartered Accountants

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Statement of Distributable Profi t or Loss
For Period 16th July, 2024 - 16th July, 2025 (For the Year Ended Ashad 2082)

Fig. in NPR
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1. Company overview 
Himalayan Everest Insurance Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) is a public limited 
liability company incorporated as per the laws of Nepal. The Company obtained the license (License number 
04/050) from Nepal Insurance Authority on Shrawan 6, 2050 and got approval from the Authority to carry on 
business from Shrawan 13, 2050 under Insurance Act 2079. The Company started its commercial operation from 
Mangsir 16, 2050.

The registered offi ce of the Company and the principal place of business is HEI House, Babar Mahal, Kathmandu, 
Nepal. The Company’s share is listed in Nepal Stock Exchange.

The Company is engaged in the business of underwriting non-life insurance through its branches and network of 
agents. There were no signifi cant changes in the nature of principal activities in the company during the fi nancial 
year.

The Company does not have any holding company and neither have any interest in subsidiaries. It has investment 
in Nepal Infrastructure Investment Fund Limited with signifi cant stakes and accounted the same as investment 
in companies.

The company merged with Everest Insurance Limited and commenced joint operation in the name of the merged 
entity, Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited from Shrawan 1, 2079 (July 17, 2022).

2. Basis of preparation of fi nancial statements
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these fi nancial statements are set out below. 
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Reporting period and approval of fi nancial statement

a. Reporting dates
The company follows the Nepalese fi nancial year based on the Nepalese calendar starting from fi rst day of 
Shrawan of each year (mid-July) to the last day of Ashad (mid-July) of the next year.

b. Approval of fi nancial statements
This fi nancial statement was approved for issue by the Company’s board of directors on 11th Poush 2082 (26th 
December, 2025).

2.2 Statement of compliance
These fi nancial statements, which comprise the statement of fi nancial position, statement of profi t or loss, 
statement of other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash fl ows, and notes 
along with the relevant presentation requirements thereto have been prepared in all material aspects under 
Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) laid down by the Accounting Standard Board (ASB), and comply with 
requirements of Company Act, 2063 of Nepal and applicable directives issued by Nepal Insurance Authority and 
required disclosures as per Securities Board Nepal. The Company adopted NFRS from Shrawan 1, 2074 (July 16, 
2017). The format used in the preparation and presentation of the fi nancial statements and disclosures made 
therein also complies with the specifi ed formats prescribed in the directives of Nepal Insurance Authority.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The term NFRS, includes all the standards 
and the related interpretations which are consistently used.

2.3 Basis of measurement
These fi nancial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, except for certain assets and 
liabilities measured as follows as follows:

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes forming Part of Financial Statements
For Period 16th July, 2024 - 16th July, 2025 (For the Year Ended Ashad 2082)
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a. Investment in equity instruments and units of mutual funds are measured at fair value.
b. Liability for defi ned benefi t obligations is recognized at the present value of the defi ned benefi t obligation  
 as determined by the actuary.
c. Insurance contract liabilities are actuarially determined values under the  Actuarial Valuation Directive   
 issued by Nepal Insurance Authority.

Historical cost is generally the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair 
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique.

In addition, for fi nancial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, or 2, or 3 
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the signifi cance of 
the inputs used for fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity 
can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 - Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 - Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
The Company presents its statement of fi nancial position broadly in the order of liquidity.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of fi nancial statements in conformity with NFRS requires management to make judgments, 
estimates, and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the fi nancial statements, 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period; 
they are recognized in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future 
periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 
at the end of the reporting period that may have a signifi cant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next fi nancial year.

c. Insurance contract liabilities
For insurance contracts, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at 
the date of statement of fi nancial position and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred, but not yet 
reported (IBNR). It can take signifi cant period of time before the ultimate claims cost can be established with 
certainty. The main assumption underlying estimating the amounts of outstanding claims is the past claims 
development experience.

 Critical accounting estimates / judgements Disclosure note
 Unexpired risk reserve (URR) Note 3.11(a)
 Provision for gross outstanding claims (OCR) Note 3.11(b)
 Provision for incurred but not reported claims (IBNR) Note 3.11(c)
 Margin over best estimate Note 3.11(d)
 Earthquake reserve Note 3.11(e)
 Employee benefi ts Note 3.12(a), (b) and (c)
 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment  Note 3.1(d)
 Useful lives of intangible assets Note 3.2(b)(v)
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d. Defi ned benefi t obligation
The defi ned benefi t obligation liability of the Company is based on the actuarial valuations carried out by an 
independent actuary. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates 
of return on assets, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the 
underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, a defi ned benefi t obligation is very sensitive to changes in 
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

e. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
As described in the signifi cant accounting policies, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, 
plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting period. 

2.5 Functional and presentation currency
The fi nancial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (Rs.), which is the functional and presentation 
currency of the Company. Amounts in the fi nancial statements are rounded off to the nearest rupee.

2.6 Going concern
The board of directors have made assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as going concern and 
are satisfi ed that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the 
management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast signifi cant doubt upon the Company’s 
ability to continue as going concern and accordingly, the fi nancial statements continue to be prepared on the 
basis of going concern.

2.7 Changes in accounting policy
Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the Company 
in preparing and presenting financial statements. The Company changes its accounting policy only if the change 
is required by a standard or interpretation; or results in the financial statements providing reliable and more 
relevant information about the effects of transactions, other events or conditions on the company's financial 
position, financial performance, or cash flows.

2.8 New standard issued but not yet effective
New standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been issued by ICAN with 
varying effective dates. Those become applicable from the fi nancial year beginning from Shrawan 1, 2080 (July 
17, 2023).

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the fi nancial statements are set out below. 
The Company will adopt these standards from their effective dates.

a. NFRS 17 – Insurance Contract
NFRS 17 and will replace NFRS 4 – Insurance Contract. Under the NFRS 17 model, insurance contract liabilities 
will be calculated as the present value of future insurance cash fl ows with a provision for risk. The discount rate 
will refl ect current interest rates. NFRS 17 requires an entity to recognize profi t as it delivers insurance services, 
rather than when it received premium and to provide information about insurance contract profi t that an entity 
expects to recognize in the future period.

NFRS 17 becomes effective from fi nancial year commencing from Shrawan 1, 2082 (July 16, 2025). The management 
of the Company is assessing the potential impact in its fi nancial statements from the application of this standard.

2.9 Offsetting
Financial assets and fi nancial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial 
Position, only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention 
to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. Income and expenses 
are not offset in the Statement of Profi t or Loss unless required or permitted by Nepalese Financial Reporting 
Standards or Interpretation (issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) 
and Standard Interpretations Committee (SIC) and as specifi cally disclosed in the Signifi cant Accounting Policies 
of the Company.
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2.10 Presentation of fi nancial statements
The assets and liabilities of the Company presented in the Statement of Financial Position are grouped by the 
nature and listed in an order that refl ects their relative liquidity and maturity pattern.

2.11  Materiality and aggregation
Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the fi nancial statements. Items of dissimilar 
nature or function are presented separately unless that are material.

3. Signifi cant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the signifi cant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these fi nancial 
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Property, plant and equipment

a. Recognition of property, plant and equipment
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as assets if and only if:
• It is probable that future economic benefi ts associated with the item will fl ow the Company; and
• The cost of the item can be measured reliably.

b. Initial recognition
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation, and impairment loss, if any. 
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of an item of property, plant 
and equipment.

c. Subsequent recognition
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefi ts associated with the item will fl ow to the Company and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate 
asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of profi t or 
loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

d. Depreciation method, estimated useful lives and residual value
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over their useful lives. The estimated useful lives of 
property, plant and equipment is as follows:

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each fi nancial year end and adjusted 
if appropriate.

e. Disposals and derecognition
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefi ts 
are expected to arise from the continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of 
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment and is recognized in the statement of profi t or loss.

 Class of property, plant and equipment Useful life
 Building 60 years
 Leasehold property 5 years
 Furniture and fi xtures 10 years
 Computers 5 years
 Offi ce equipment 5 years
 Other assets 10 years
 Vehicles 10 years
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Class of intangible assets Useful life
Enterprise Resource Planning Software 15 years
Other software 5 years

f. Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the 
asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair 
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at 
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifi able cash infl ows which are largely independent of the 
cash infl ows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-fi nancial assets that suffered 
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

g. Capital work-in-progress
These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, and system development 
which are to be capitalized. Capital work-in-progress are capitalized to relevant asset when it is available for use. 
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

3.2 Goodwill and intangible assets

a. Goodwill on business combination
i. Initial recognition
Goodwill on business combination is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over 
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifi able assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after 
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifi able assets acquired and liabilities assumed 
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the excess is recognized immediately in the statement of profi t 
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

ii. Amortization and impairment
Goodwill is not amortized but is reviewed for impairment at least annually. For the purpose of impairment 
testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Company’s cash-generating units expected to benefi t from the 
synergies of the combination. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying 
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to 
the unit. An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

b. Other intangible assets
iii. Initial recognition
Intangible assets are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefi ts that are attributable to the 
asset will fl ow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible asset acquired 
separately are measured at cost. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of an 
item of intangible assets. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

iv. Subsequent recognition
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefi ts embodied in the 
specifi c asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in statement of profi t or loss as incurred.

v. Amortization
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. An item of intangible asset is 
regarded as having an indefi nite useful life when, based on an analysis of all of the relevant factors, there is no 
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected generate net cash infl ow for the Company.
The useful economic life of an intangible asset is considered fi nite where the right to such asset is limited to 
a specifi ed period of time by contract or by the likelihood of technological obsolescence. Intangible assets 
with fi nite lives are amortized using the straight-line method to write down the cost over its estimated useful 
economic lives and is recognized in statement of profi t or loss.
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The amortization method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each fi nancial year end and adjusted 
if appropriate.

vi. Derecognition
Intangible assets are derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefi ts are expected from their 
use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset, is recognized in statement of profi t or loss in the year 
the asset is derecognized.

vii. Impairment
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that intangible assets may be 
impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to determine the extent 
of impairment, if any. An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profi t or loss to the extent, asset's 
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less 
cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash fl ows, discounted to their 
present value using pre-tax discount rate that refl ects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and risk specifi c to the assets.

Intangible assets with infi nite useful life such as license are not amortized but are assessed for impairment 
in each reporting period or as and when there is indication of impairment. The assessment of infi nite life is 
reviewed each reporting period to determine whether the infi nite life continues to be supportable.

3.3 Investment properties
Property that is held for rental income or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as investment property. 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including related transaction cost. It is subsequently carried 
at cost less accumulated depreciation. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the asset’s carrying amount only 
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and 
the cost can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. 

Land previously carried at historical cost, however, has been revalued and presented accordingly in the fi nancial 
statement. buildings are depreciated over their estimated useful lives as mentioned above.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of, or when the investment 
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefi t is expected from its disposal.  Any 
gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognized in the statement of profi t 
or loss in the year of retirement or disposal. 

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from 
investment property, the Company accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under 
property, plant and equipment up to the date of change in use.

As on the date of the statement of fi nancial position, the company does not have any investment properties.

3.4 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, balances with banks and fi nancial institutions in current 
and short-term deposits that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 
insignifi cant risk of changes in value.

3.5 Financial instruments, fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities
Financial assets and fi nancial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes party to the contractual 
provisions of the relevant instrument and are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities are added to or deducted from 
the fair value on initial recognition of fi nancial assets or fi nancial liabilities.

a. Classifi cation
The Company classifi es its fi nancial assets in the following measurement categories:
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• those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through  
 profi t or loss), and
• those measured at amortized cost.

The classifi cation depends on the Company’s business model for managing the fi nancial assets and the 
contractual terms of the cash fl ows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recorded in statement of profi t or loss or other 
comprehensive income.

The Company reclassifi es fi nancial assets when and only when its business model for managing those assets 
changes.

b. Financial assets
Financial assets include loans, advances, insurance receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Such assets 
are initially recognized at transaction price when the Company becomes party to contractual obligations. The 
transaction price includes transaction costs unless the asset is being measured at fair value through statement 
of profi t or loss and other comprehensive income.

i. Subsequent measurement
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income 
or fair value through profi t or loss on the basis of both (a) the entity’s business model for managing the fi nancial 
assets and (b) the contractual cash fl ow characteristics of the fi nancial asset.

Financial assets are classifi ed as those:
• Measured at amortized cost
A fi nancial asset is measured at amortized cost, if it is held solely for collection of cash fl ows arising from 
payments of principal and interest. Interest income in these fi nancial assets is measured using the effective 
interest rate method.

Fixed deposits with banks and fi nancial institutions, advances, insurance receivables and cash and cash 
equivalents are classifi ed for measurement at amortized cost.

• Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
A fi nancial asset is measured at FVOCI, if it is held with an objective to collect contractual cash fl ows and 
selling such fi nancial asset and the contractual cash fl ows are solely payments of principal and interest on 
the principal outstanding. It is subsequently measured at fair value with fair value movements recognized 
in the other comprehensive income (OCI), except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest 
revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in profi t or loss. When the fi nancial asset is 
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassifi ed from equity to profi t or loss 
and recognized in other gains or losses. Interest income from these fi nancial assets is included in investment 
income using the effective interest method.

However, in respect of particular investments in equity instruments that would otherwise be measured at fair 
value through profi t or loss, an irrevocable election at initial recognition may be made to present subsequent 
changes in fair value through other comprehensive income.

• Measured at fair value through profi t or loss (FVPL)
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profi t or loss. 
Interest income from these fi nancial assets is included in investment income.

ii. Derecognition of fi nancial assets
Financial assets are derecognized when the right to receive cash fl ows from the assets has expired, or has been 
transferred, and the Company has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. Financial 
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assets are also derecognized upon write off. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item 
of fi nancial asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and its carrying amount and is 
recognized in the statement of profi t or loss.

iii. Impairment of fi nancial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a fi nancial asset (or a group of fi nancial assets) held at 
amortized cost and fi nancial assets that are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are 
impaired based on evidence or information that is available without undue cost or effort. Loss allowances is 
recognized for all fi nancial assets which are considered as doubtful of recovery. Losses arising from impairment 
are recognized in the statement of profi t or loss.

c. Financial liabilities
Insurance payables, sundry creditors and other fi nancial liabilities are initially recognized at the value of the 
respective contractual obligations. 

i. Subsequent measurement
After initial recognition, fi nancial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any discount or 
premium on redemption / settlement is recognized in the statement of profi t or loss as fi nance cost over the life 
of the liability using the effective interest method and adjusted to the liability fi gure disclosed in the statement 
of fi nancial position.

ii. Derecognition
Financial liabilities are derecognized when the liability is extinguished, that is, when the contractual obligation 
is discharged, cancelled or expired.

d. Offsetting fi nancial instruments
Financial assets and fi nancial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of fi nancial 
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention 
to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

3.6 Reinsurance assets
The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business to recognize reinsurers through formal 
reinsurance arrangements. Reinsurance assets include balance due from reinsurer for unexpired premium 
reserve and for outstanding claim reserve. Amount recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner 
consistent with the ratio of unexpired premium reserve to gross premiums that have been ceded and with 
the ratio of outstanding claim reserve recoverable from reinsurers in accordance with the related reinsurance 
contract.

Reinsurance assets is measured in gross in the statement of fi nancial position unless a right to offset exits. 
Where the right to offset exits, these are measured at net basis.

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date, or more frequently, when an indication 
of impairment arises during the reporting period. Impairment occurs, when there is objective evidence as a 
result of an event that occurred after initial recognition of reinsurance asset that the Company may not receive 
all outstanding amounts due under the terms of the contract and the event has a reliably measurable impact on 
the amount that the Company will receive from the reinsurers.

The impairment loss, if any, is recognized in the statement of profi t or loss.

Reinsurance assets are derecognized when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire or when the contract 
is transferred to another party.

3.7 Current tax assets and current tax liabilities
Current tax assets of the company include the amount of advance income tax paid to the Inland Revenue 
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Department and tax deducted at source. Similarly, current tax liabilities include the tax provision made for the 
year.

Current tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to Inland Revenue 
Department in respect of the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on 
the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are shown in net in statement of fi nancial position of the company 
as there exist condition to set off both assets and liabilities.

3.8 Other assets
Deferred fees and commission expenses
Fees and commission expenses incurred during the fi nancial year arising from writing or renewing of insurance 
contracts are deferred and amortized over the period in which the related revenues are earned. All other costs 
are recognized as expenses when incurred.

3.9 Share capital
Financial instruments issued by the Company are classifi ed as equity only to the extent that they do not meet 
the defi nition of a fi nancial liability.

3.10 Reserve and funds
a. Share premium
It represents amount collected in excess of the face value of shares on auction of unsubscribed right shares. This 
amount may be utilized for issuing fully paid bonus shares to the ordinary shareholders.

b. Revaluation reserves
Represents unrealized gain on revaluation adjustment to carrying amount of assets and cannot be used for 
distribution.

c. Special reserve
Represents appropriation of 50% of net profi t for the year as per Insurance Act, 2079. The fund maintained for 
one category cannot be utilized to bear the liabilities relating to other category of Insurance Business. During 
the year, the amount appropriated to the fund is based on the profi t for the year as per the fi nancial statement 
prepared under the regulator’s directive.

d. Capital reserve
It represents funds used for contingencies or to offset capital losses. It is derived from the accumulated capital 
surplus of a company, created out of capital profi t.

e. Catastrophe reserves
Represents appropriation of 10% of profi t for the year remaining after appropriation to insurance fund, segregated 
for signifi cant insurance claims that might have adverse impact on fi nancial stability. This reserve is not available 
for distribution to the ordinary shareholders.

f. Corporate social responsibility reserve
Represents reserve established under regulatory requirement by apportioning 1% of profi t for the year to be 
expended towards CSR initiatives.

g. Fair value reserves 
Represents the cumulative gains (net of losses) arising on the revaluation of equity Instruments and units of 
mutual fund measured at FVOCI.

h. Actuarial reserves
Represents the cumulative gains / (losses) arising on actuary valuation of gratuity, a defi ned benefi t plan 
resulting from experience adjustment (the effects of differences between the previous actuarial assumptions 
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and what has occurred; and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions.)

i. Deferred tax reserve
Represents amount appropriated from retained earnings for an amount equal to deferred tax assets recognized.

j. Regulatory reserves
Represents excess amount of retained earnings and profi t reported under fi nancial statement prepared under 
NFRS compared to retained earnings and profi t reported under GAAP. This amount has been appropriated to 
retained earnings after regulatory allocations stated by Insurer’s Financial Statement Directives, 2080, during the 
previous reporting period.

3.11 Insurance contract liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities include outstanding claim reserve (OCR) including liability recognized for incurred 
but not reported (IBNR) claims and provision for unearned risk premiums (UPR). Insurance contract liabilities are 
derecognized when the obligation to pay a claim expires, is discharged or is cancelled.

a. Unearned risk reserve (URR)
Unearned risk reserve includes a provision for unearned premium and any additional provision for premium 
defi ciency. Unearned risk premiums represent premiums received for risks that have not yet expired and is 
generally released over the term of the insurance contract and is recognized as earned premiums.
As required by NFRS 4 – Insurance Contracts, the Company performed liability adequacy test (LAT) with respect 
of URR on general insurance contracts with the assistance of an external actuary. Liability for URR is recognized 
based on liability assessed by Actuary.

b. Outstanding claim reserve (OCR)
Outstanding claim reserve is based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at 
the reporting date, whether reported or not, together with related claim handling cost and reduction for the 
expected value of salvage and other recoveries. Delays are experienced in notifi cation and settlement of certain 
types of claims; therefore, the ultimate actual cost of the claims cannot be ascertained with certainty as at the 
date of statement of fi nancial position.

As required by NFRS 4 – Insurance Contracts, the Company performed liability adequacy test (LAT) with respect 
of OCR on general insurance contracts with the assistance of an external actuary. Liability for OCR is recognized 
based on liability assessed by Actuary. 

c. Incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims
Incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims are actuarially computed as required by NFRS 4 – Insurance Contracts. 
Liability of IBNR is recognized based on liability assessed by Actuary.

d. Margin over best estimate
Margin over best estimate (MOBE) is actuarially calculated as required by the Risk Based Capital and Solvency 
Directive, 2078 to refl ect the inherent uncertainty in cash fl ows related to incurred but not reported claims (IBNR) 
and is calculated to ensure a confi dence level of not lower than 75%.

e. Earthquake reserve
Earthquake reserve is the accumulation of earthquake premiums and is calculated at 15% of accumulated 
earthquake premium. Any earthquake premium contributed to the EPR shall remain in the reserves, up to 150% 
of the highest gross premium amounts of the last 5 years.

f. Liability Adequacy
At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test is performed to 
determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred acquisition costs over unearned 
premiums. The calculation uses current estimates of future contractual cash flows after taking account of the 
investment return expected to arise on assets relating to the relevant non-life insurance technical provisions. 
If these estimates show that the carrying amount of the unearned premiums is inadequate, the deficiency is 
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recognized in the statement of profit or loss by setting up a provision for liability.

3.12 Employee benefi ts
a. Short-term obligations
Expenses in respect of short-term benefi ts are recognized on the basis of amount paid or payable during which 
services are rendered by the employees. Liabilities for salary and allowances that are expected to be settled 
wholly within 12 months after the end of the fi nancial year in which the employees render the related services 
are recognized in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the 
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

b. Post-employment obligations
i. Defi ned contribution plan
These are plans in which the Company pays pre-defi ned amounts to publicly administered funds as per local 
regulations and does not have any legal or informal obligation to pay additional sums. These comprise of 
contributions to the social security fund with the government on account of provident fund. The Company’s 
payments to the defi ned contribution plans are recognized as employee benefi t expenses when they are due.

ii. Defi ned benefi t plan
The Company’s defi ned benefi t plans comprise of gratuity. The liability or asset recognized in the statement of 
fi nancial position in respect of defi ned benefi t plans is the present value of the defi ned benefi t obligation at 
the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defi ned benefi t obligation is calculated 
annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

Service costs and net interest expense or income is refl ected in the statement of profi t or loss. Remeasurement 
gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized 
in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in OCI reserve as 
actuarial reserve in the statement of changes in equity and in the statement of fi nancial position. Gratuity is 
funded and these comprise of contributions to the social security fund with the government. 

c. Long-term employee benefi ts
The liabilities for earned leaves are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the 
period in which the employees render the related service. Leave Encashment has been computed using actuarial 
assumptions and these are measured at the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of 
services provided by employees up to the end of the year using the projected unit credit method. The benefi ts 
are discounted using the market yields at the end of the year that have terms approximating to the terms of 
assumptions. This benefi t is unfunded.

d. Termination benefi ts
Termination benefi ts are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal retirement 
date, or when an employee accepts voluntary retirement in exchange of these benefi ts. The Company recognizes 
termination benefi ts at the earlier of the following dates:
- when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefi ts; and
- when the entity recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of NAS 37 and involves the payment  
  of termination benefi ts. 

The termination benefi ts are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer in case 
of voluntary retirement scheme. 

3.13 Revenue recognition
a. Gross premiums
Gross premiums comprise the total premium received or receivable for the whole period of cover provided by 
insurance contract entered during the fi nancial year. Gross premium is generally recognized upon inception 
of the insurance contract policy. Upon inception of the contract, premiums are recorded as and are earned 
primarily on a pro-rate basis over the term of the coverage of related insurance contract.
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Unexpired risk reserve are those proportions of premiums written in a fi nancial year that relate to periods of 
risks after the reporting date. Unexpired premiums are calculated on 365 days basis for all insurance contracts 
having an insurance coverage period of one year. However, in the case of marine cargo policies, having an 
insurance coverage period of less than one-year, unearned premiums are calculated on 365 days basis of the 
insurance contract and where the insurance coverage is for a period of more than one year or in the absence of 
data required, unearned premiums are calculated at 50% of the gross premiums.

The proportion attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as provision for unexpired risk reserve which is 
included under liabilities.

b. Premiums ceded to reinsurers
Gross reinsurance premiums on insurance contracts are recognized as an expense on the earlier of the date 
when the premiums are payable or when the policy becomes effective. Reinsurance premiums are based on the 
rates agreed with reinsurers.

Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods 
of risk after the reporting date. Unearned reinsurance premiums are deferred over the term of the underlying 
direct insurance policies for risks- attaching contracts and over the term of the reinsurance contract for losses 
occurring contracts. 

Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been presented as negative 
items within premiums and net claims, respectively, because this is consistent with how the business is managed.

c. Fees and commission income
Fees and commission income earned during the fi nancial year arising on premium ceded to reinsurers are 
recognized when the related service is performed in accordance with the insurance contract. The portion of 
fees and commission income for which the insurance contact is not expired is deferred and amortized over the 
period in with the related revenues are earned.

d. Investment income
i. Interest income
   Interest income is recognized as it accrues, using the effective interest method.
ii.Dividend income
   Dividend income from investments in equity instruments and from investment in units of mutual funds is
   recognized when the right to receive dividend is established.

e. Net realized gains and losses
Net realized gains and losses recorded in the statement of profi t or loss include gains and losses on fi nancial 
assets and properties. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as the difference between net 
sales proceeds and the original or amortized cost and are recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction.

3.14 Benefi ts and claims
a. Gross benefi ts and claims
Claims include all claims occurring during the fi nancial year, whether reported or not together with claims 
handling costs that are directly related to the processing and settlement of claims, a reduction for the value of 
salvage and other recoveries, and any adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years. Claims outstanding 
are assessed by review of individual claim fi les and estimating changes in the ultimate cost of settling claims.

The provision in respect of claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) is actuarially determined based on the past 
experience and trends. The provisions for claims are fairly stated based on the information currently available, 
the ultimate liability will vary as a result of subsequent information and events which may result in adjustments 
to the amount reported. Such amounts are recorded and refl ected in such subsequent periods.

b. Claims recovered from reinsurers
Claims recovered from reinsurers are recognized when the related gross insurance claim is recognized according 
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to the terms of the relevant insurance contract.

3.15  Product classifi cation
Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company has accepted signifi cant insurance risk from the 
policyholders by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specifi ed uncertain future event (the insured 
event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, the Company determines whether it has 
signifi cant insurance risk by comparing benefi ts paid with benefi ts payable if the insured event did not occur. 
Insurance contracts can also transfer fi nancial risk. The Company has following portfolios under which it operates 
its business:"

a. Fire portfolio
Fire insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts of insurance, otherwise than 
incidental to some other class of insurance business, against loss or damage to property due to fire, explosion, 
storm and other occurrences customarily included among the risks insured against in the fire insurance business.

b. Motor portfolio
Motor insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts of insurance against loss 
of, or damage to, or arising out of or in connection with the use of motor vehicles, inclusive of third-party risks 
but exclusive of transit risks.

c. Marine portfolio
Marine insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts of insurance against loss 
of consignment of goods during transit.

d. Engineering portfolio
Engineering insurance business means the insurance that provides economic safeguard to the risks faced by the 
ongoing construction project, installation project, and machines and equipment in project operation. 

e. Micro portfolio
Micro Insurance protects against loss of or damage to crops or livestock. It has great potential to provide value to 
low-income farmers and their communities, both by protecting farmers when shocks occur and by encouraging 
greater investment in crops.

f. Aviation portfolio
Aviation Insurance provides coverage for hull losses as well as liability for passenger injuries, environmental and 
third-party damage caused by aircraft accidents.

g. Cattle and crop portfolio
Cattle and Crop Insurance provide insurance against loss of or damage to cattle and crops.

h. Miscellaneous portfolio
All the insurance business which does not fall in above categories fall under miscellaneous insurance business. 
Group personal accidents, medical insurances, professional indemnity insurance etc. fall under this category of 
business.

3.16 Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which 
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added 
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specifi c borrowings pending their expenditure on 
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of profi t or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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3.17  Cash fl ow statement

Cash Flows are reported using the direct method, whereby major classes of cash receipts and cash payments are 
disclosed as cash fl ows.

3.18 Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, 
a lease if it conveys the right to control the use of an identifi ed asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration.

Company as lessee
Right-of-Use (ROU) assets are recognized at inception of a contract or arrangement for signifi cant lease 
components at cost less lease incentives, if any. ROU assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 
amortization and impairment losses, if any. The cost of ROU assets includes the amount of lease liabilities 
recognized, initial direct cost incurred and lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date. ROU 
assets are generally amortized over the shorter of the lease term and estimated useful lives of the underlying 
assets on a straight-line basis. Lease term is determined based on consideration of facts and circumstances that 
create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not to exercise a termination option. Lease 
payments associated with short-term leases and low value leases are charged to the statement of profi t and loss 
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. The Company recognizes lease liabilities measured 
at the present value of lease payments to be made on the date of recognition of the lease. Such lease liabilities 
do not include variable lease payments (that do not depend on an index or a rate), which are recognized as 
expense in the periods in which they are incurred. Interest on lease liability is recognized using the effective 
interest method.

Lease liabilities are subsequently increased to refl ect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments 
made. The carrying amount of lease liabilities is also remeasured upon modifi cation of lease arrangement or 
upon change in the assessment of the lease term. The effect of such remeasurements is adjusted to the value 
of the ROU assets.

3.19 Income tax
a. Current tax
Current tax in the statement of profi t or loss is provided as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable 
income for the period using tax rates and tax laws applicable during the period, together with any adjustment 
to tax payable in respect of previous years.

b. Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the 
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the fi nancial statements. Deferred income tax is 
determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period 
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax 
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is 
probable that the future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profi t or loss is recognized outside statement 
of profi t or loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets 
and liabilities. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to 
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that suffi cient taxable profi t will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset 
to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the 
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profi t will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

3.20 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

a. Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events, and it is probable that an outfl ow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount 
can be reliably estimated. The carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed at each date of statement of fi nancial 
position and adjusted to refl ect the current best estimate.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to 
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

b. Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events due to 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outfl ow of resources or where 
a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis and only 
those having a largely probable outfl ow of resources are provided for. 

  
c. Contingent Assets
Contingent assets where it is probable that future economic benefi ts will fl ow to the Company are not recognized 
but are disclosed in the fi nancial statements.

3.21 Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the date of 
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from 
the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates 
are recognized in statement of profi t or loss.

3.22 Dividend distribution
Dividends paid are recognized in the period in which the interim dividends are approved by the board of directors, 
or in respect of the fi nal dividend when approved by shareholders.

3.23 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profi t attributable to owners of the company by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the fi nancial year.

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to assume 
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.24 Operating Segment
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 
decision maker (CODM). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of 
the operating segments, has been identifi ed as the management team of the Company comprising of the chief 
executive offi cer and various department heads.
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The Company has identifi ed the following line of insurance business as separate segment

 • Fire

 • Marine

 • Motor

 • Engineering

 • Aviation

 • Miscellaneous

 • Agriculture and

 • Micro

Segments are organized based on business which have similar economic characteristics as well as which exhibit 
similarities in nature of products and services offered the type and class of customer and distribution methods. 

Segments includes total profi t distribution of the Company to all its line of businesses. The premium income, 
reinsurance premium expenses, gross claims and claims recovered from reinsurers, outstanding claims, other 
direct expenses and income, fees and commission income, other operating and administrative expenses are 
allocated to each line of business.

“Unallocated corporate expenses” include revenue and expenses that relate to initiatives / costs attributable to 
the enterprise as a whole and are not attributable to specifi c segments.
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  Particulars   Softwares   Goodwill   Others   Total
   (to be Specify) 
  Gross carrying amount     
  As at Ashadh 31, 2080   26,229,140   2,860,535   -   29,089,675 
  Additions during the year     
  Acquisition   3,012,132   -   -   3,012,132 
  Internal Development   -   -   -   - 
  Business Combination( to be Specifi ed)   -   -   -   - 
  Disposals during the year   -   -   -   - 
  Write-offs during the year   -   (2,860,535)  -   (2,860,535)
  Revaluation/Adjustment   651,106   -   -   651,106 
  Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2081   29,892,378   -   -   29,892,378 
  Additions during the year     
  Acquisition   1,425,000     1,425,000 
  Internal Development      - 
  Business Combination( to be Specifi ed)      - 
  Disposals during the year      - 
  Revaluation/Adjustment      - 
  Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2082   31,317,378   -   -   31,317,378 
    
  Accumulated amortization and impairment     
  As at Ashadh 31, 2080   8,097,488   -   -   8,097,488 
  Additions during the year   2,607,186   -   -   2,607,186 
  Disposals during the year   -   -   -   - 
  Impairment during the year   -   -   -   - 
  Revaluation/Adjustment   319,584   -   -   319,584 
  Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2081   11,024,258   -   -   11,024,258 
  Additions during the year   3,147,370     3,147,370 
  Disposals during the year   -     - 
  Impairment during the year   -     - 
  Revaluation/Adjustment      - 
  Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2082   14,171,628   -   -   14,171,628 
  Capital Work-In-Progress     
  As at Ashadh 31, 2080   -   -   -   - 
  Additions during the year    -   -   -   - 
  Capitalisation during the year   -   -   -   - 
  Disposals during the year   -   -   -   - 
  Impairment during the year   -   -   -   - 
  Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2081   -   -   -   - 
  Additions during the year      
  Capitalisation during the year     
  Disposals during the year     
  Impairment during the year     
  Balance as on Ashadh 32, 2082     
  Net Carrying Amount     
  As on Ashadh 31, 2081   18,868,120   -   -   18,868,120 
  As on Ashadh 32, 2082   17,145,750   -   -   17,145,750 

Additions during the year   3,147,370     3,147,370
Disposals during the year   -     -
Impairment during the year   -     -
Revaluation/Adjustment      - 
Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2082   14,171,628   -   -   14,171,628 

As on Ashadh 32, 2082   17,145,750   -   -   17,145,750

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Fig. in NPR4. GOODWILL & INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Acquisition   1,425,000     1,425,000
Internal Development      -
Business Combination( to be Specifi ed)      -
Disposals during the year      -
Revaluation/Adjustment      - 
Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2082   31,317,378   -   -   31,317,378
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Particulars    Land   Building   Total
Gross carrying amount    
As at Shrawan 1, 2080     -   
Additions during the year   -     -     -   

Acquisition    -     -     -   

Subsequent Expenditure   -     -     -   

Assets classifi ed as held for sales   -     -     -   

Disposals during the year   -     -     -   

Revaluation/Adjustment   -     -     -   

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2081   -     -     -   
Additions during the year   -     -     -   

Acquisition    -     -     -   

Subsequent Expenditure   -     -     -   

Assets classifi ed as held for sales   -     -     -   

Disposals during the year   -     -     -   

Revaluation/Adjustment   -     -     -   

Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2082   -     -     -   
   

Accumulated depreciation and impairment    
As at Shrawan 1, 2080     -   
Additions during the year   -     -     -   

Disposals during the year   -     -     -   

Impairment during the year   -     -     -   

Transfer/Adjustments   -     -     -   

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2081   -     -     -   
Additions during the year   -     -     -   

Disposals during the year   -     -     -   

Impairment during the year   -     -     -   

Transfer/Adjustments   -     -     -   

Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2082   -     -     -   
   

Capital Work-In-Progress   
As on Shrawan 1, 2080   
Additions during the year   -     -     -   

Capitalisation during the year  -     -     -   

Disposals during the year  -     -     -   

Impairment during the year  -     -     -   

Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2081   -     -     -   

Additions during the year   -     -     - 

Disposals during the year   -     -     - 

Impairment during the year   -     -     - 

Transfer/Adjustments   -     -     - 

Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2082   -     -     - 

Additions during the year   -     -     - 

Acquisition    -     -     - 

Subsequent Expenditure   -     -     - 

Assets classifi ed as held for sales   -     -     - 

Disposals during the year   -     -     - 

Revaluation/Adjustment   -     -     - 

Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2082   -     -     - 

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Fig. in NPR

6. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
The Company did not hold any investment property as at the end of the reporting period.
Investment Properties at Cost
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Additions during the year   -     -     -   

Capitalisation during the year  -     -     -   

Disposals during the year  -     -    -   

Impairment during the year  -     -     -   

Balance as on Ashadh 32, 2082   -     -    -   
   

Net Carrying Amount    
Net Balance As At Ashad 31, 2081   -     -     -   
Net Balance As At Ashad 32, 2082   -     -     -

Additions during the year   -     -     -

Capitalisation during the year  -     -     -

Disposals during the year  -     -    -

Impairment during the year  -     -     -

Balance as on Ashadh 32, 2082   -     -    -

Notes on Cost :
The Company obtains independent valuations for its investment properties. The best evidence of fair value is current prices 
in an active market for similar properties. Where such information is not available, the Company consider information from 
a variety of sources including : 
i) current prices in an active market for properties of different nature or recent prices of similar properties in less active 
markets, adjusted to refl ect those differences,
ii) discounted cash fl ow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash fl ows,
iii) capitalised income projections based upon a property’s estimated net market income, and a capitalization rate derived 
from an analysis of market evidence.
The fair values of investment properties have been deteremined by …..The main inputs used are the rental growth rates, 
expected vacancy rates, terminal yields and discount rates based on comparable transcations and industry data.

(iii) Disclosure on restriction on the realisability of investment properties: 

(iv) Contractual obligations:

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

 Particulars Current Year Previous Year
 Rental income   -     -   

 Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income   -     -   

 Direct operating expenses from property that didn’t generated rental income   -     -   

 Profi t from investment properties before depreciation   -     -   

 Depreciation charge   -     -   

 Profi t from investment properties   -     -   

 Particulars Current Year Previous Year
 Land   -     -   

 Building   -     -   

 Total   -     -   

(i) Amounts recognised in statement of profi t or loss

(ii) Fair value of investment properties

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -   

Current Year 

 -   

Current Year 
 -   

 -   
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Particulars                 Current Year                               Previous Year
     Through    Through   Total   Through    Through   Total 
 SOPL SOCI   SOPL SOCI 
 Goodwill & Intangible Assets   2,636,380    2,636,380   1,695,958   -   1,695,958 
 Property and Equipment   (18,492,230)  (111,063,742)  (129,555,972)  (10,223,379)  (111,063,742)  (121,287,121)
 Investment in Associates     -   -   -   - 
 Financial Assets at FVPTL     -   -   -   - 
 Financial Assets at FVTOCI    (27,102,281)  (27,102,281)  -   1,872,455   1,872,455 
 Provision for Leave    9,457,412    9,457,412   8,615,695   -   8,615,695 
 Provision for Gratuity    17,218,309    17,218,309   17,258,415   -   17,258,415 
 Impairment Loss on Financial Assets     -   -   -   - 
 Impairment Loss on Other Assets     -   -   -   - 
 Provision for unrealised premium     -   -   -   - 
 Unearned Premium Reserve   (91,791,910)   (91,791,910)  7,839,123   -   7,839,123 
 Premium Defi ciency Reserve   274,559    274,559   24,969   -   24,969 
 Outstanding Claim Reserve   -    -   (123,874,409)  -   (123,874,409)
 IBNR and IBNER Claims   24,643,580    24,643,580   146,435,329   -   146,435,329 
 Margin over Best Estimate   21,618,764    21,618,764   5,510,388   -   5,510,388 
 Earthquake Premium Reserve   15,525,598    15,525,598   6,964,672   -   6,964,672 
 Carry forward of unused tax losses     -    -   - 
 Changes in tax rate     -    -   - 
 Investment in Associates   60,000,000    60,000,000   (3,364,337)  -   (3,364,337)
 Lease liability   347,436    347,436   3,390,797   -   3,390,797 
 Deferred fee and commission expenses   (5,047,589)   (5,047,589)  (10,906,183)  -   (10,906,183)
 Deferred commission income   47,070,041    47,070,041   63,229,222   -   63,229,222 
 Provision for bad debt   -    -   8,434,781   -   8,434,781 
 Provision for probable salary   -    -   692,092   -   692,092 
 Total   83,460,350   (138,166,023)  (54,705,673)  121,723,133   (109,191,287)  12,531,846 
 Deferred Tax Asstes   198,792,079   -   198,792,079   270,091,441   1,872,455   271,963,896 
 Deferred Tax Liabilities   (115,331,729)  (138,166,023)  (253,497,752)  (148,368,308)  (111,063,742)  (259,432,050)

Particulars                  Current Year                               Previous Year
   Through    Through   Total   Through    Through   Total 
 SOPL SOCI   SOPL SOCI 
 As at Shrawan 1, 2081   121,723,134   (109,191,288)  12,531,846   94,094,255   (3,731,532)  90,362,723 
 Components from merger      -   -   - 
 Charged/(Credited) to Statement 
 of Profi t or Loss   (38,262,784)   (38,262,784)  27,628,879   -   27,628,879 
 Charged/(Credited) to Other 
 Comprehensive Income    (28,103,165)  (28,103,165)  -   (117,249,631)  (117,249,631)
 Charged/(Credited) to Equity    (871,571)  (871,571)  -   11,789,875   11,789,875 
 As at Ashadh 32, 2082   83,460,350   (138,166,023)  (54,705,673)  121,723,134   (109,191,288)  12,531,846.00 

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Fig. in NPR7. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

MOVEMENTS IN DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/ (LIABILITIES)
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Particulars  Current Year    Previous Year
Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries   -     -   
 Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries   -     -   
 Less: Impairment Losses   -     -   
 Total   -     -   

Particulars   Current Year                          Previous Year
   COST   FAIR VALUE   (OR) EQUIT    COST   FAIR VALUE   (OR) EQUIT  
   METHOD    METHOD
 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.  Each of ….... Ltd.   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 ...........  Shares of ….. Rs.  Each of ….... Ltd.   -     -     -     -     -     -   
  Total   -     -   - - - - 

Particulars   Current Year                          Previous Year
   COST   FAIR VALUE   (OR) EQUIT    COST   FAIR VALUE   (OR) EQUIT  
   METHOD    METHOD
 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.  Each of ….... Ltd.   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 ...........  Shares of ….. Rs.  Each of ….... Ltd.   -     -     -     -     -     -   
  Total   -     -   - - - - 

 Particulars                          
  Current Year                Previous Year
........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd.   -     -   
 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd.   -     -   
 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd.   -     -   
 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd.   -     -   
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Fig. in NPR8. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

INVESTMENT IN QUOTED SUBISIDIARIES

INVESTMENT IN UNQUOTED SUBISIDIARIES

INFORMATION RELATING TO SUBSIDIARIES
PRECENTAGE OF OWNESHIP

 -    

 -    
 -    
 -    

 Current Year 

 -     -   - 

 -     -     -    
 -     -     -    

 Current Year                    
 COST   FAIR VALUE   (OR) EQUIT   

  METHOD  

 -     -   - 

 -     -     -    
 -     -     -    

 Current Year                    
 COST   FAIR VALUE   (OR) EQUIT   

  METHOD  

Current Year
 -    
 -    
 -    
 -    
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Particulars   Current Year                          Previous Year
   COST   FAIR VALUE   (OR) EQUITY    COST   FAIR VALUE   (OR) EQUITY  
   METHOD    METHOD
 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd.   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 ........... Shares of ….. Rs.   Each of ….... Ltd.   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Add: Share of Profi t or Loss for Earlier Years   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Add: Share of Profi t or Loss for Current Year   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Total   -     -     -     -     -     -   

 Particulars Current Year                Previous Year
NAME                                                                                                                

 PLACE OF BUSINESS                                                                                                                         
 ACCOUNTING METHOD                                                                                                              
 % OF OWNERSHIP  - 49.76%
 CURRENT ASSETS  - 15,301,483 
 NON-CURRENT ASSETS  - 411,200,000 
 CURRENT LIABILITIES  -  3,423,226 
 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  -     -
 INCOME    
 NET PROFIT OR LOSS   24,295,424 
 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  - -   
 TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  -     24,295,424 
   
COMPANY’S SHARE OF PROFITS  -     - 

 NET PROFIT OR LOSS   -     11,214,458 
 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME   -     -   

Particulars   Current Year                         Previous Year
Investment in Quoted Associates   -   
 Investment in Unquoted Associates  -     210,161,858 
 Less: Impairment Losse   -   
  Total  -     210,161,858
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Fig. in NPR9. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

Particulars   Current Year                          Previous Year
   COST   FAIR VALUE   (OR) EQUIT    COST   FAIR VALUE   (OR) EQUIT  
   METHOD    METHOD
…... Shares of …. Rs. Each of …..... Ltd.     -     -     -     200,000,000 
 Add: Share of Profi t or Loss for Earlier Years      -     -     -   
 Add: Share of Profi t or Loss for Current Year     -     -     -     11,214,458 
 Less: Dividend Paid      -     -     (1,052,600)
 Total   -     -     -     -     -     210,161,858 

INVESTMENT IN QUOTED ASSOCIATES

INVESTMENT IN UNQUOTED ASSOCIATES

INFORMATION RELATING TO ASSOCIATES

Nepal Infrastructure 
Investment Fund Ltd.

NEPAL
EQUITY METHOD
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Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
Investments measured at Amortised Cost  3,989,138,718   4,005,312,118 
 i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions  - -   
 ii) Investment in Debentures  288,564,518   260,266,518 
 iii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government)  -  -   
 iv) Fixed Deposits in “A” Class Financial Institutions  2,992,874,200   3,097,373,600 
 v) Fixed Deposits in Infrastructure Banks  - -   
 iv) Fixed Deposits in “B” Class Financial Institutions  457,200,000   476,672,000 
 iv) Fixed Deposits in “C” Class Financial Institutions   250,500,000   171,000,000 
 v) Others ( to be Specifi ed)    
 Less: Impairment Losses   - -   
 Investments at FVTOCI  1,253,092,698   812,962,121 
 i) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)  564,467,559   472,124,532 
 ii) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)  568,656,761   284,560,000 
 iii) Investment in Mutual Funds   119,968,378   56,277,589 
 v) Investment in Debentures   - -   
 v) Others ( to be Specifi ed)  - -   
 Investments at FVTPL  -     -   
 i) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)  -     -   
 ii) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)   -     -   
 iii) Investment in Mutual Funds  -     -   
 iv) Others (to be specifi ed)  -     -   
  Total   5,242,231,416   4,818,274,239 
      
a) Details of Impairment Losses          

 Particulars  Current Year   Previous Year
 Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions  -     -   
 Investment in Debentures  -     -   
 Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/NRB/Guaranteed by Nepal Government)  -     -   
 Fixed Deposit with”A” Class Financial Institutions  -     -   
 Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks  -     -   
 Fixed Deposit with”B” Class Financial Institutions  -     -   
 Fixed Deposit with”C” Class Financial Institutions  -     -   
 Others (to be Specifi ed)  -     -   
 Total  -     -   

b) Investments having expected maturies less than 12 months:      
 Particulars  Current Year   Previous Year 
 Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)  -     -   
 Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)  -     -   
 Investment in Mutual Funds  -     -   
 Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions  -     -   
 Investment in Debentures  -     -   
 Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/NRB/Guaranteed by Nepal Government)  -     -   
 Fixed Deposit with”A” Class Financial Institutions  2,987,874,200   3,040,869,300 
 Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks  -     -   
 Fixed Deposit with”B” Class Financial Institutions  411,700,000   456,952,000 
 Fixed Deposit with”C” Class Financial Institutions  223,000,000   171,000,000 
 Others (to be Specifi ed)  - -   
 Total  3,622,574,200   3,668,821,300 
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Fig. in NPR10. INVESTMENT 
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Particulars                                                                                                                             Current Year                     Previous Year
  Cost   Fair Value   Cost   Fair Value 
Agriculture Development Bank Ltd CY 15992 Shares of Rs 327.13 Each 
PY  19426 Shares Of Rs 294 Each  4,621,465   5,231,463   5,803,760   5,711,244 
Asian Life Insurance Co Ltd CY 2416 Shares of Rs 498.36 Each 
PY  2416 Shares Of Rs 623 Each  1,490,782   1,204,038   1,389,182   1,505,168 
Api Power Company Ltd CY 27649 Shares of Rs 295.92 Each 
PY  7285 Shares Of Rs 191 Each  6,916,444   8,181,892   1,688,452   1,391,435 
Butwal Power Company Ltd CY 362 Shares of Rs 957.29 Each
PY  362 Shares Of Rs 310 Each  100,387   346,539   100,387   112,220 
Chhimek Laghubitta Bikas Bank Ltd CY 9141 Shares of Rs 1035.98 Each 
PY  4761 Shares Of Rs 900 Each  8,861,413   9,469,893   5,072,196   4,284,900 
Citizen Investment Trust CY 6230 Shares of Rs 1975.72 Each
PY 5108 Shares Of Rs 1945 Each  9,507,583   12,308,736   9,507,583   9,935,060 
Citizen Life Insurance Company Ltd CY 2539 Shares of Rs 474.24 Each
PY  2000 Shares Of Rs 544.6 Each  967,421   1,204,095   967,421   1,089,200 
Citizen Bank International Ltd CY 29622 Shares of Rs 228.28 Each
PY  36283 Shares Of Rs 193.5 Each  7,732,357   6,762,110   10,015,610   7,020,761 
Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited CY 4590 Shares of 
Rs 882.25 EachPY  4192 Shares Of Rs 841 Each  4,006,429   4,049,528   4,006,429   3,525,472 
Garima Bikas Bank Limited CY 700 Shares of Rs 428.36 Each
PY  6175 Shares Of Rs 385.1 Each  260,877   299,852   2,132,879   2,377,993 
Global Ime Bank Ltd CY 58546 Shares of Rs 259.57 Each
PY  74268 Shares Of Rs 194.2 Each  14,429,412   15,196,785   18,410,445   14,422,846 
Global Ime Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited CY 1 
Shares of Rs 1320.74 Each PY  1 Shares Of Rs 1365 Each  -     1,321   -     1,365 
Himalayan Bank Ltd CY 27294 Shares of Rs 237.3 Each 
PY  27294 Shares Of Rs 204.2 Each  8,147,411   6,476,866   8,147,411   5,573,435 
Himalayan Distillery Limited CY 2625 Shares of Rs 1236.54 Each
PY  2282 Shares Of Rs 1384 Each  4,360,133   3,245,918   4,360,133   3,158,288 
Hydroelectricity Investment And Development Company Ltd 
CY 1809 Shares of Rs 292.61 Each | PY  1809 Shares Of Rs 179 Each  159,300   529,331   159,300   323,811 
Infi nity Laghubitta Bittaya Sanstha Ltd CY 4251 Shares of Rs 915.94 
Each PY  4251 Shares Of Rs 1196 Each  5,038,191   3,893,661   5,038,191   5,084,196 
Kumari Bank Ltd CY 25493 Shares of Rs 219.77 Each
PY  25493 Shares Of Rs 153.7 Each  5,555,047   5,602,597   5,555,047   3,918,274 
Machhapuchchhre Bank Ltd CY 22330 Shares of Rs 259.41 Each 
PY  23140 Shares Of Rs 200 Each  5,579,545   5,792,625   5,673,812   4,628,000 
Manjushree Finance Limited CY 6847 Shares of Rs 623.27 Each
PY  6847 Shares Of Rs 602.9 Each  4,431,455   4,267,530   4,431,455   4,128,056 
Mahalaxmi Bikas Bank Ltd CY 6190 Shares of Rs 411.67 Each 
PY  6010 Shares Of Rs 352 Each  2,217,232   2,548,237   2,217,232   2,115,520 
Nabil Bank Ltd (Old Nbb) CY 7169 Shares of Rs 541.37 Each
PY  7169 Shares Of Rs 523.5 Each  3,996,120   3,881,082   3,996,120   3,752,972 
Nepal Bank Ltd CY 30631 Shares of Rs 291.44 Each
PY  42331 Shares Of Rs 229.5 Each  8,269,208   8,927,099   11,546,656   9,714,965 
Nic Asia Bank Ltd CY 17927 Shares of Rs 420.05 Each
PY  17927 Shares Of Rs 443.2 Each  11,114,793   7,530,236   11,114,793   7,945,246 
Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd CY 43522 Shares of Rs 231.02 Each
PY  46022 Shares Of Rs 175.1 Each  13,282,415   10,054,452   14,045,386   8,058,452 
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Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd Promoter Share CY 1563 Shares 
of Rs 168 Each | PY 1563 Shares Of Rs 138.9 Each  501,442   262,584   501,442   217,101 
Nepal Life Insurance Co Ltd CY 19421 Shares of Rs 772.97 Each 
PY  21555 Shares Of Rs 619 Each  14,005,804   15,011,850   17,217,959   13,342,545 
National Life Insurance Co Ltd CY 28430 Shares of Rs 623.58 Each
PY  29456 Shares Of Rs 595 Each  16,853,941   17,728,379   18,167,217   17,526,320 
Nmb Bank Ltd CY 39455 Shares of Rs 269.72 Each
PY  41055 Shares Of Rs 218 Each  11,132,367   10,641,803   11,588,799   8,949,990 
Nerude Mirmire Laghubitta Bikas Bank Ltd CY 7682 Shares 
of Rs 700.35 Each | PY  7682 Shares Of Rs 720.2 Each  8,337,395   5,380,089   8,337,395   5,532,576 
Nrn Infrastructure And Development Limited CY 3403 
Shares of Rs 2279.19 Each | PY  3241 Shares Of Rs 748 Each  1,672,473   7,756,084   1,672,473   2,424,268 
Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited CY 12164 Shares 
of Rs 877.27 Each | PY  12164 Shares Of Rs 845 Each  12,136,138   10,671,112   12,136,138   10,278,580 
Nirdhan Utthan Bank Ltd CY 7182 Shares of Rs 768.71 Each
PY  7182 Shares Of Rs 711.9 Each  7,578,239   5,520,875   7,578,239   5,112,866 
Prime Commercial Bank Ltd CY 8716 Shares of Rs 276.31 Each
PY  8716 Shares Of Rs 221.8 Each  2,174,281   2,408,318   2,174,281   1,933,209 
Prabhu Bank Ltd CY 8863 Shares of Rs 221.89 Each
PY  8863 Shares Of Rs 163.7 Each  1,945,128   1,966,611   1,945,128   1,450,873 
Sanima Bank Ltd CY 16359 Shares of Rs 374.77 Each
PY  20610 Shares Of Rs 279 Each  4,448,776   6,130,862   5,604,841   5,750,190 
Nepal Sbi Bank Ltd CY 754 Shares of Rs 439.98 Each
PY  726 Shares Of Rs 328 Each  211,581   331,745   211,581   238,128 
Siddhartha Bank Ltd CY 42864 Shares of Rs 383.77 Each
PY  50664 Shares Of Rs 283 Each  13,358,498   16,449,917   15,811,003   14,337,912 
Standard Chartered Bank Nepal Ltd CY 9521 Shares 
of Rs 656.1 Each | PY  9720 Shares Of Rs 602 Each  4,145,708   6,246,728   4,507,414   5,851,440 
Shivam Cement Pvt Ltd CY 31577 Shares of Rs 535.04 Each
PY  26787 Shares Of Rs 502.3 Each  19,100,319   16,894,958   17,748,037   13,455,110 
Soaltee Hotel Limited CY 7920 Shares of Rs 577.58 Each
PY  7200 Shares Of Rs 442 Each  3,250,043   4,574,434   3,250,043   3,182,400 
Surya Jyoti Life Insurance Co Ltd CY 13461 Shares 
of Rs 446.69 Each | PY  13461 Shares Of Rs 429.9 Each  7,576,220   6,012,894   7,576,220   5,786,884 
Synergy Power Development Ltd CY 6021 Shares of Rs 417.51 Each
PY  7581 Shares Of Rs 254.9 Each  1,924,893   2,513,828   2,423,619   1,932,397 
Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Asnstha Limited CY 
2 Shares of Rs 881.44 Each | PY  1 Shares Of Rs 940 Each  -     1,763   -     940 
Vijaya Laghubitta Bittaya Sanstha Ltd CY 3530 Shares 
of Rs 886.19 Each | PY  5480 Shares Of Rs 1040 Each  4,015,271   3,128,251   6,233,339   5,699,200 
Nepal Reinsurance Co Ltd CY 2248870 Shares of Rs 100 Each 
PY  2146892 Shares Of Rs 100 Each  167,548,706   224,887,000   167,548,706   214,689,200 
Hydroelectricity Investment And Development Company Ltd 
Promotor CY 100000 Shares of Rs 210.56 Each
PY 100000 Shares Of Rs 103 Each  10,010,000   21,056,000   10,010,000   10,300,000
Lumbini Bikas Bank Ltd CY 6000 Shares of Rs 480.69 Each
PY  6234 Shares Of Rs 416.6 Each  2,288,741   2,884,140   2,452,316   2,597,084 
Mountain Energy Nepal Limited CY 5175 Shares of Rs 639.19 Each
PY  4500 Shares Of Rs 597 Each  2,625,545   3,307,808   2,625,545   2,686,500 
Nesdo Sambridha Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd CY Nil
PY  792 Shares Of Rs 2099 Each  -     -     1,334,258   1,662,408 
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CITIZENS SUPER 30 CY 50000 Shares of Rs 10.08 Each 
PY 50000 Shares of Rs 10 Each  500,000   504,000   500,000   500,000 
CITIZENS MUTUAL FUND -1(CMF1) CY Nil 
PY 115900 Shares of Rs 9.64 Each  -     -     1,125,815   1,117,276 
GLOBAL IME BALANCED FUND-1 CY 5001 Shares of Rs 10.91 Each
PY 5001 Shares of Rs 9.1 Each  41,268   54,561   41,268   45,509 
GARIMA SAMRIDDHI YOJANA CY 3000000 Shares of Rs 9.95 Each
PY  Nil  30,000,000   29,850,000   -     -   
HIMALAYAN 80-20 CY 1000000 Shares of Rs 11.6 Each
PY 1000000 Shares of Rs 9.99 Each  10,000,000   11,600,000   10,000,000   9,990,000 
KUMARI DHANBRIDDHI YOJANA CY 100000 Shares of Rs 10.05 Each
PY 100000 Shares of Rs 9.67 Each  1,000,000   1,005,000   1,000,000   967,000 
MEGA MUTUAL FUND-1  CY 611440 Shares of Rs 9.58 Each
PY 611440 Shares of Rs 7.72 Each  6,107,169   5,857,595   6,107,169   4,720,317 
MUKTINATH MUTUAL FUND 1 CY 1000000 Shares of Rs 9.9 
Each PY Nil  10,000,000   9,900,000   -     -   

Insurance Institute Nepal Ltd CY 95600 Shares of Rs 100 Each
PY  95600 Shares Of Rs 100 Each  9,560,000   9,560,000   9,560,000   9,560,000 
Nepal Power Exchange Ltd CY 10000 Shares of Rs 100 Each
PY  10000 Shares Of Rs 100 Each  1,000,000   1,000,000   1,000,000   1,000,000 
Nepal Infrastructure Investment Fund Limited CY 2000000 
Shares of Rs 212.89 Each PY   200,000,000   212,896,761   -   -   
Global Equity Fund Ltd CY 35000 Shares of Rs 100 Each
PY  35000 Shares Of Rs 100 Each  3,500,000   3,500,000   3,500,000   3,500,000 
Star Hospital Limited CY 1065000 Shares of Rs 100 Each
PY  1065000 Shares Of Rs 100 Each  106,500,000   106,500,000   106,500,000   106,500,000 
Classic View Resort Limited CY 1000000 Shares of Rs 100 Each
PY  1000000 Shares Of Rs 100 Each  100,000,000   100,000,000   100,000,000   100,000,000 
Upper Seti Hydro Limited CY 640000 Shares of Rs 100 Each
PY  640000 Shares Of Rs 100 Each  64,000,000   64,000,000   64,000,000   64,000,000 
LAXMI SUSTAINABLE ENERGY FUND CY 237000 Shares of 
Rs 100 Each PY Nil  23,700,000   23,700,000   -     -   
NEPAL IMPACT GROWTH EQUITY FUND  47,500,000   47,500,000   -     -   

Nerude Mirmire Laghubitta Bikas Bank Ltd CY  Nil 
PY  780 Shares Of Rs 720.2 Each  -     -     1,115,191   561,756 
Shine Resgunga Development Bank Ltd CY 11870 Shares of 
Rs 431.97 Each PY  11525 Shares Of Rs 405.1 Each  4,282,910   5,127,484   4,282,910   4,668,778 
Super Mardi Hydropower Ltd CY  Shares of Rs  Each
PY  3500 Shares Of Rs 622 Each  -     -     1,317,723   2,177,000 
Chandragadhi Hills Limited CY 2500 Shares of Rs 956.02 Each PY  2,259,444   2,390,050   -     -
Everest Bank Ltd CY 3000 Shares of Rs 701.56 Each PY  1,998,554   2,104,680   -     -   
Greenlife Hydropower Limited CY 1000 Shares of Rs 272.62 Each PY  310,106   272,620   -     -   
Muktinath Bikas Bank CY 4000 Shares of Rs 405.92 Each PY  1,577,236   1,623,680   -     -   
National Laghubitta CY 2500 Shares of Rs 1400.05 Each PY  3,300,984   3,500,125   -     -   
Nmb Bank Ltd Promoter Share CY 150000 Shares of Rs 123 Each PY  17,295,738   18,450,000   -     -   
Nepal Finance Limted Promoter Share CY 75000 Shares 
of Rs 163 Each PY   7,500,000   12,225,000   -     -

 -     -    

 4,282,910   5,127,484  

 -     -    
 2,259,444   2,390,050  
 1,998,554   2,104,680  

 310,106   272,620  
 1,577,236   1,623,680  

 3,300,984   3,500,125  
 17,295,738   18,450,000  

 7,500,000   12,225,000  
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NABIL BALANCE FUND-2 (NBF2) CY 2000 Shares of Rs 10.11 
Each PY 2000 Shares of Rs 9 Each  16,852   20,220   16,852   18,000 
NABIL BALANCE FUND-3 (NBF3) CY 28270 Shares of Rs 9.99 
Each PY 28270 Shares of Rs 7.8 Each  251,762   282,417   251,762   220,506 
NIBL SAMRIDDHI FUND-2 (NIBSF2) CY 200300 Shares of Rs 8.83 
Each | PY 200300 Shares of Rs 8.25 Each  2,002,250   1,768,649   2,002,250   1,652,475 
NIC ASIA BALANCE FUND CY 344378 Shares of Rs 9.77 
Each | PY 344378 Shares of Rs 9.6 Each  3,452,558   3,364,573   3,452,558   3,306,029 
NIC ASIA GROWTH FUND (NICGF) CY Nil PY 106000 Shares 
of Rs 9.9 Each  -     -     1,056,690   1,049,400 
NMB50 MUTUAL FUND (NMB50) CY 508000 Shares of Rs 10.69 
Each PY 508000 Shares of Rs 10.04 Each  5,072,723   5,430,520   5,072,723   5,100,320 
NMB SARAL BACHAT FUND-E (NMBSBF) CY 9500 Shares of Rs 11.2 
Each PY 9500 Shares of Rs 10 Each  95,000   106,400   95,000   95,000 
NMB SULAV INVESTMENT FUND -2  CY 250200 Shares of Rs 11.29 
Each PY 250200 Shares of Rs 10.06 Each  2,501,685   2,824,758   2,501,685   2,517,012 
RBB MUTUAL FUND-2 CY 50000 Shares of Rs 10.08 
Each PY 50000 Shares of Rs 9.5 Each  500,000   504,000   500,000   475,000 
SANIMA GROWTH FUND CY 3605 Shares of Rs 10.32 
Each PY 3605 Shares of Rs 10.14 Each  31,526   37,204   31,526   36,555 
SIDDHARTHA EQUITY FUND (SEF) CY 906348 Shares of Rs 10.29 
Each PY 906348 Shares of Rs 8.39 Each  9,036,177   9,326,321   9,036,177   7,604,260 
SUNRISE FOCUSED EQUITY FUND (SFEF) CY 250000 Shares of 
Rs 10.04 EachPY 250000 Shares of Rs 8.24 Each  2,500,000   2,510,000   2,500,000   2,060,000 
SUNRISE FIRST MUTUAL FUND (SFMF) CY 100000 Shares of 
Rs 10.68 Each PY 100000 Shares of Rs 10.35 Each  1,000,000   1,068,000   1,000,000   1,035,000 
SIDDHARTHA INVESTMENT GROWTH SCHME 2 CY 1040175 Shares 
of Rs 10.5 Each PY 1040175 Shares of Rs 9.48844750162233 Each  13,394,952   10,921,838   13,394,952   9,869,646 
SANIMA LARGE CAP FUND (SLCF) CY 310100 Shares of Rs 10.23 
Each PY 310100 Shares of Rs 9.29 Each  3,075,936   3,172,323   3,075,936   2,880,829 
MBL EQUITY FUND (MBLEF) CY 2000000 Shares of Rs 9.93 
Each PY Nil  20,000,000   19,860,000   -     -   
MEGA MUTUAL FUND-1  CY  Nil PY 34800 Shares of Rs 7.72 Each  -     -     347,588   268,656 
NIC Asia Balance Fund CY  Nil PY 78000 Shares of Rs 9.6 Each  -     -     781,988   748,800 

d) The company has earmarked investments amounting to NPR. 3,700,574,200 (2080-81: 3,678,821,300) to Nepal Insurance 
Authority.

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)



146

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Reinsurance Assets on:  
 Unearned Premium Reserve   830,669,854   1,297,162,281 
 Unexpired Risk Reserve   -     -   
 Outstanding Claims  1,565,549,572   1,177,523,867 
 IBNR   271,595,551   373,163,218
 IBNER Claim  30,177,284 -
 Margin over Best Estimate   -     -   
 Earthquake Reserve   -     -
 Total   2,697,992,261   2,847,849,366 

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Loans measured at Amortised Cost  
 Loan to Employees  - -   
 Others ( to be Specifi ed)   -     -   
 Less: Impairment Losses   -     -   
 Total   -     -   

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Receivable from Reinsurer   281,778,404   219,804,343 
 Receivable from Other Insurance Companies   249,165,947   245,081,292 
 Others( to be Specifi ed)   -     -   
 Less: Impairment Losses   (7,729,223)  (7,729,223)
 Total   523,215,128   457,156,412

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Receivable from Reinsurer   281,204,164   219,230,103 
 Receivable from Other Insurance Companies   242,010,964   237,926,309 
 Others (to be Specifi ed)   -     -   
 Total   523,215,128   457,156,412 

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Loans measured at Amortised Cost  
  Loan to Employees   -     -   
 Others ( to be Specifi ed)   -     -   
 Total   -     -   

Fig. in NPR11. LOANS 

12. REINSURANCE ASSETS 

13. INSURANCE RECEIVABLES

a) Expected receivable within 12 months:

a) Expected repayment of loan within 12 months:

 -    

- 
 -    
 -    

  Current Year 

  Current Year 

 -    
 -    
 -    

  Current Year 

 830,669,854  
 -    

 1,565,549,572  
 271,595,551  

30,177,284 
 -    
 -    

 2,697,992,261  

  Current Year 
 281,778,404  
 249,165,947  

 -    
 (7,729,223)  
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  Current Year 
 281,204,164  
 242,010,964  
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HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Capital Advances   -     -   
 Prepaid Expenses   195,183   587,606 
 Claim Advances   13,800,000   5,700,000 
 Advance To Suppliers   8,760,202   5,139,466 
 VAT Receivable   -     -   
 Staff Advances   1,184,198   3,566,528 
 Printing and Stationary Stocks   -     -   
 Stamp Stocks   142,235   250,180 
 Deferred Expenses   -     -   
 Deferred Reinsurance Commission Expenses   141,195   232,313 
 Deferred Agent Commission Expenses   16,684,104   36,121,629 
 Lease Receivables   -     -   
 Others (Leave Encashment- Plan Assets)   -     9,427,150 
 Others (Advance for Dividend Payment)   35,199,966   24,017,610 
 Less: Impairment Losses   -     -   
 Total   76,107,083   85,042,482 

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Capital Advances   -     -   
 Prepaid Expenses   195,183   587,606 
 Claim Advances   13,800,000   5,700,000 
 Advance To Suppliers   8,760,202   5,139,466 
 VAT Receivable   -     -   
 Staff Advances   1,184,198   3,566,528 
 Printing and Stationary Stocks   -     -   
 Stamp Stocks   142,235   250,180 
 Deferred Expenses   -     -   
 Deferred Reinsurance Commission Expenses   141,195   232,313 
 Deferred Agent Commission Expenses   16,684,104   36,121,629 
 Lease Receivables   -     -   
 Others (Leave Encashment- Plan Assets)   -     -   
 Others (Advance for Dividend Payment)   35,199,966   24,017,610 
 Total   76,107,083   75,615,332 

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Security Deposits   -     -   
 Accured Interest   14,029,225   14,997,888 
 Other Receivables   -     -   
 Other Deposits   59,137,191   25,699,288 
 Sundry Debtors   28,965,066   65,938,137 
 Others ( to be Specifi ed)   11,981,753   148,672 
 Less: Impairment Losses   -     (20,386,714)
 Total   114,113,235   86,397,271 

Fig. in NPR14. OTHER ASSETS

a) Expected to be recovered/ settled within 12 months:

15. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS Fig. in NPR

 76,107,083  

 -    
 195,183  

 13,800,000  
 8,760,202  

 -    
 1,184,198  

 -    
 142,235  

 -    
 141,195  

 16,684,104  
 -    
 -    

 35,199,966  
 -    

  Current Year 

 76,107,083  

 -    
 195,183  
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HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Security Deposits   -     -   
 Accured Interest   14,029,225   14,997,888 
 Other Receivables   -     -   
 Other Deposits   -     -   
 Sundry Debtors   28,965,066   45,551,423 
 Other ( to be Specifi ed)   11,981,753   148,672 
 Total   54,976,044   60,697,983 

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Cash in Hand   1,379,998   1,124,800 
 Cheque in Hand   -     -   
 Bank Balances   
 i) Balance With”A” Class Financial Institutions   111,185,557   145,319,740 
 ii) Balance With Infrastructure Banks   -     -   
 iii) Balance With”B” Class Financial Institutions   16,089,773   21,257,683 
 iv) Balance With”C” Class Financial Institutions   17,089,504   8,071,351 
 Less: Impairment Losses   -     -   
 Deposit with initial maturity upto 3 months   -     -   
 Others ( to be Specifi ed)   -     -   
 Less: Impairment Losses   -     -   
 Total   145,744,832   175,773,574 

Fig. in NPR

a) Expected maturies within 12 months:

16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
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Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Authorised Capital:     
 5,00,00,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 Each.  5,000,000,000   5,000,000,000 
 Issued Capital:    
 25,001,574 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 Each.  2,500,157,400   2,500,157,400 
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:    
 25,001,574 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 Each.  2,500,157,400   2,500,157,400 
 Total  2,500,157,400   2,500,157,400 

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Ordinary Shares    
 As at Shrawan 1, 2081   2,500,157,400   2,500,157,400 
 Additions during the year   -   -
       i) Bonus Share Issue   -     -   
        ii) Shares added through Merger   -    -
        iii) Share Issue   -    - 
As at Ashadh 32, 2082   2,500,157,400   2,500,157,400 

 Convertible Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)   -    -
 As at Shrawan 1, 2081   -     -   
 Additions during the year   -     -   
As at Ashadh 32, 2082   -     -   

 Irredeemable Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)   -    -
 As at Shrawan 1, 2081   -     -   
 Additions during the year   -     -   
As at Ashadh 32, 2082   -     -   

 Total   2,500,157,400   2,500,157,400 

Fig. in NPR17. (A) SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
  Authorised Capital:     
 …..... Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each   -     -   
 ….....Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each  -     -   
Issued Capital:            

 …..... Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each   -     -   
 ….....Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each   -     -   
 Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:     
 …..... Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each   -    -
 ….....Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each   -     -   
 Total   - - 

(i) Ordinary Shares

(ii) Preference Share Capital

  Current Year 
 

 2,500,157,400  
 -   
 -    
 -    
 -    
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HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

 Particulars
  Current Year   Previous Year   Current Year  Previous Year 
 Promoters     
 Government of Nepal   -     -    0.00% 0.00%
 Nepali Organized Institutions   1,329,289   1,390,614  5.32% 5.56%
 Nepali Citizens   11,446,515   11,385,190  45.78% 45.54%
 Foreigners   -     -    0.00% 0.00%
 Others ( to be Specifi ed)   -     -    0.00% 0.00%
 Total (A)   12,775,804   12,775,804  51.10% 51.10%
 Other than Promoters     
 General Public   12,225,770   12,225,770  48.90% 48.90%
 Others ( to be Specifi ed)   -     -    0.00% 0.00%
Total (B)   12,225,770   12,225,770  48.90% 48.90%

 Total (A+B)   25,001,574   25,001,574  100.00% 100.00%

 Particulars
  Current Year   Previous Year   Current Year  Previous Year 
 Promoters     
 Shree Mahendra Krishna Shrestha   2,135,252   2,135,252  8.54% 8.54%
 Shree Bikram Krishna Shrestha   1,805,084   1,882,477  7.22% 7.53%
 Shree Binod Krishna Shrestha   1,656,717   1,656,717  6.63% 6.63%
 Shree Shubarna Krishna Shrestha   1,652,500   1,652,500  6.61% 6.61%
 Shree Pankaj Jhunjunwala   1,562,643   1,562,643  6.25% 6.25%
 Shree Rajendra Kumar Khetan   1,225,736   1,130,412  4.90% 4.52%
 Laxmi Sunrise Bank Limited   888,944   1,119,874  3.56% 4.48%
 Smt. Kavita Lohia   314,700   -    1.26%  -   
 Global IME Capital   186,711   252,271  0.75% 1.01%

Shareholding Structure of Share Capital

Details of shareholders holding 1% or more than 1% of the aggregate shares in the Company:

Number of Shares

Number of Shares

Percentage

Percentage

Fig. in NPR

100.00% 
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48.90% 
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 Current Year  

 25,001,574  
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 12,225,770  

 
 12,225,770  

 12,775,804  

 -   
 1,329,289  

 11,446,515  
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 Current Year  

  Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Share Application Money Pending Allotment   -     -   
  Total   -     -   

  Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 As on Shrawan 1, 2081   -     -   
  Increase due to issue of shares at premium   -     -   
  Decrease due to issue of bonus shares   -     -   
  Transaction costs on issue of share   -     -   
  Others ( to be Specifi ed)   -     -   
  As on Ashadh 32, 2082   -     -   

17. (B) SHARE APPLICATION MONEY PENDING ALLOTMENT

17. (C) SHARE PREMIUM

 -    

 Current Year 
 -    

 -    

 Current Year 
 -    
 -    
 -    
 -    
 -    
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HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 As on Shrawan 1, 2081   1,667,570,965   1,410,503,655 
 Components from merger   -    -
 Additions   245,619,151   257,067,310 
 Utilizations  -  -   
 As on Ashadh 32, 2082   1,913,190,116   1,667,570,965

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 As on Shrawan 1, 2081   69,914,552   57,061,186 
 Components from merger   - -   
 Additions   12,280,958   12,853,366 
 Utilizations   -    -
 As on Ashadh 32, 2082   82,195,510   69,914,552 

Fig. in NPR17. (D) SPECIAL RESERVES

17. (E) CATASTROPHE RESERVES
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Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 As on Shrawan 1, 2081   304,786,863   226,482,875 

 Components from merger   -    -

 Net Profi t or Loss   455,880,754   502,463,915 

 Items of OCI recognised directly in retained earnings    

 Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefi t Obligations    

 Transfer to reserves    

 Revaluation Reserves   -    -

 Special Reserves   (245,619,151)  (257,067,310)

 Capital Reserves   -    -

 Catastrophe Reserves   (12,280,958)  (12,853,366)

 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserves   (4,912,383)  (5,141,346)

 Insurance Fund including Insurance Reserves    

 Fair Value Reserves   -     -   

 Actuarial Reserves   

 Deferred Tax Reserves   38,262,783   (31,360,410)

 Regulatory Reserves   

 Other Reserve(to be specifi ed)    

 Transfer of Depreciation on Revaluation of Property and Equipment    

 Transfer of Disposal of Revalued Property and Equipment    

 Transfer of Disposal of Equity Instruments Measured at FVTOCI   (2,905,235)  39,299,583 

 Transfer on Derecognition of Investment in Associates   (10,161,858) 

 Issue of Bonus Shares   -     (10,429,299)

 Transaction costs on issue of Shares   -     -   

 Dividend Paid   (210,555,269)  (142,585,223)

 Dividend Distribution Tax   (8,208,504)  (4,022,556)

 Others ( Staff Training)   (2,730,067)  -   

 As on Ashadh 32, 2082   301,556,975   304,786,863 

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Revaluation Reserves   259,148,731   259,148,731 

 Capital Reserves   -     -   

 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserves   5,696,232   7,378,929 

 Insurance Fund including Insurance Reserves   -     -   

 Fair Value Reserves   63,238,652   (4,369,067)

 Actuarial Reserves   -     -   

 Deferred Tax Reserve  83,460,350   121,723,133 

 Other Reserve(to be specifi ed)  2,730,067   -   

 Total   414,274,032   383,881,726 

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Fig. in NPR17. (F) RETAINED EARNINGS

17. (G) OTHER EQUITY
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Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Provision for emoloyee benefi ts    
 i) Provision for Leave   -  5,379,158 
 ii) Provision for Gratuity   - -
 iii)Termination Benefi ts   - - 
 iv)Other Employee Benefi t obligations( to be Specifi ed)     
 Provision for tax related legal cases  - -  
 Provision for non-tax related legal cases     
 Others ( to be Specifi ed)  - - 

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Provision for employee benefi ts   
 i) Provision for Leave    6,613,372   - 
 ii) Provision for Gratuity   1,548,164   1,681,849 
 iii)Termination Benefi ts    
 iv)Other Employee Benefi t obligations( to be Specifi ed)     
 Provision for tax related legal cases  - -  
 Provision for non-tax legal cases  - -  
 Others( to be Specifi ed)  - -     
Total  8,161,536   1,681,849 

 DESCRIPTION   Opening  Additions Utilised Reversed Unwinding Closing
   Balance during the year during the year during the year of discount balance
 Provision for employee benefi ts       
 i) Provision for Leave    -   6,613,372   -   -   -   6,613,372 
 ii) Provision for Gratuity    1,681,849   (133,685)  -   -   -   1,548,164 
 iii)Termination Benefi ts   -   -   -   -   -   - 
 iv)Other Employee Benefi t obligations
 (to be Specifi ed)   -   -   -   -   -   - 
 Provision for tax related legal cases   -   -   -   -   -   - 
 Provision for non-tax legal cases   -   -   -   -   -   - 
 Others( to be Specifi ed)   -   -   -   -   -   - 

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
  Unearned Premium Reserve  1,402,739,597   2,026,523,795 
 Unexpired Risk Reserve  915,196   83,231 
 Outstanding Claims   1,894,440,122   1,442,533,743 
 IBNR  389,926,516   488,117,763
 IBNER Claim  43,325,169 -  
 Margin over Best Estimate  72,062,546   18,367,959 
 Earthquake Reserve   51,751,992   23,215,574 
 Total   3,855,161,138   3,998,842,065

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Fig. in NPR

Fig. in NPR

18. PROVISIONS

(b) Provision with expected payouts within 12 months

19. GROSS INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES

(a) Movement of Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
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ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Payable to Reinsurer   481,644,136   260,516,808 
 Payable to Other Insurance Companies   98,361,062   98,163,616 
 Portfolio Withdrawal Premium   -   - 
 Withdrawal Claims   -    -
 Others (to be Specifi ed)  - -
 Total   580,005,198   358,680,424 

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Payable to Reinsurer   481,644,136   260,516,808 
 Payable to Other Insurance Companies   98,361,062   98,163,616 
 Portfolio Withdrawal Premium   -     -   
 Withdrawal Claims   -     -   
 Others (to be Specifi ed)   -     -   
 Total   580,005,198   358,680,424 

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Income Tax Liabilities   92,292,644   325,850,250 
 Income Tax Assets   (280,796,563)  (401,191,833)
 Total   (188,503,919)  (75,341,583)

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Fig. in NPR20. INSURANCE PAYABLE

Payable within 12 months:

21. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES/(ASSETS) (NET)

22. BORROWINGS

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Bonds   -     -   
 Debentures   -     -   
 Term Loans-Bank and Financial Institution   -     -   
 Bank Overdrafts   -     -   
 Others (to be Specifi ed)   -     -   
 Total   -     -   

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Bonds   -     -   
 Debentures  -     -   
 Term Loans-Bank and Financial Institution  -     -   
 Bank Overdrafts   -     -   
 Others (to be Specifi ed)  -     -   
 Total   -     -   
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Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 TDS Payable   9,477,667   12,925,332 
 VAT Payable   57,748,448   35,515,881 
 SSF Payable   -     -   
 Unidentifi ed deposits   -     -   
 Advance Premiums   27,281,504   37,066,720 
 Insurance Service Fee Payable   11,095,892   28,214,959 
 Lease Liability   6,504,692   11,302,658 
 Deferred Reinsurance Commission Income   156,900,135   210,764,074 
 Deferred Income   -     -   
 Others (Prior Period Tax Liabilities)   3,172,766   2,851,381 
 Others (Staff Vehicle Deposit)   1,385,590   2,052,159 
 Total   273,566,694   340,693,164 

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 TDS Payable   9,477,667   12,925,332 
 VAT Payable   57,748,448   35,515,881 
 SSF Payable   -     -   
 Unidentifi ed Deposits   -     -   
 Advance Premiums   27,281,504   37,066,720 
 Insurance Service Fee Payable   11,095,892   28,214,959 
 Lease Liability   3,551,333   3,057,689 
 Deferred Reinsurance Commission Income   156,900,135   210,764,074 
 Deferred Income   -     -   
 Others (Prior Period Tax Liabilities)   3,172,766   2,851,381 
 Others (Staff Vehicle Deposit)   -     -   
 Total   269,227,745   330,396,036 

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Fig. in NPR23. OTHER LIABILITIES

Payable within 12 months
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Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Redeemable Preference Shares   -     -   
 Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares   -     -   
 Refundable Share Application Money   -     -   
 Payable to Insured   732,369   34,705,434 
 Payable to Agents   26,587,942   36,546,576 
 Payable to Surveyor   -     542,497 
 Sundry Creditors   59,186,611   14,685,681 
 Retention and deposits   440,000   440,000 
 Short-term employee benefi ts payable   
 i) Salary Payables   -     -   
 ii) Bonus Payables   66,302,393   89,219,185 
 iii) Other employee benefi t payable (Profi t Commission Payable)    4,049,278 
 iv) Other employee benefi t payable (Other Employee Salary)   7,507,054   6,856,830 
 Audit Fees Payable   758,450   689,500 
 Actuarial Fees Payable   1,201,125   800,750 
 Dividend Payable   35,199,966   24,017,610 
 Others (to be specifi ed)   -     -   
 Total   197,915,910   212,553,341 

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Redeemable Preference Shares   -     -   
 Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares   -     -   
 Refundable Share Application Money   -     -   
 Payable to Insured   732,369   34,705,434 
 Payable to Agents   26,587,942   36,546,576 
 Payable to Surveyor   -     542,497 
 Sundry Creditors   59,186,611   14,685,681 
 Retention and deposits   -     -   
 Short-term employee benefi ts payable   
 i) Salary Payables   -     -   
 ii) Bonus Payables   66,302,393   89,219,185 
 iii) Other employee benefi t payable (Profi t Commission Payable)   -     4,049,278 
 iv) Other employee benefi t payable (Other Employee Salary)   7,507,054   6,856,830 
 Audit Fees Payable   758,450   689,500 
 Actuarial Fees Payable   1,201,125   800,750 
 Dividend Payable   35,199,966   24,017,610 
 Others (to be specifi ed)   -     -   
 Total   197,475,910   212,113,341 

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Fig. in NPR24. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

PAYABLE WITHIN 12 MONTHS
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Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year   
 Property   728,306,593   474,127,534   (25,025,545)  220,073,916   753,332,138   254,053,618 
 Motor  424,492,265   368,269,007   41,478,521   20,990,605   383,013,744   347,278,402 
 Marine  81,810,467   51,225,928   (65,431,933)  (2,593,106)  147,242,400   53,819,034 
 Engineering   781,828,461   659,700,587   (92,923,999)  85,034,836   874,752,460   574,665,751 
 Micro   72   96   (35)  (192)  107   288 
 Aviation    49,754,654   328,875,291   (164,082,135)  24,541,754   213,836,789   304,333,537 
 Cattle and Crop   31,751,255   35,261,578   (4,046,231)  (23,714,174)  35,797,486   58,975,752 
 Miscellaneous   432,297,186   438,072,336   (156,461,070)  (72,987,256)  588,758,256   511,059,592 
 Total  2,530,240,953   2,355,532,357   (466,492,427)  251,346,383   2,996,733,380   2,104,185,974 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year   
 Property   1,003,850,558   460,699,177   753,332,138   254,053,618   250,518,420   206,645,559 
 Motor    1,123,168,003   931,436,565   383,013,744   347,278,402   740,154,259   584,158,163 
 Marine   229,696,664   79,462,365   147,242,400   53,819,034   82,454,264   25,643,331 
 Engineering   997,608,483   635,292,339   874,752,460   574,665,751   122,856,023   60,626,588 
 Micro   782   1,508   107   288   675   1,220 
 Aviation   214,099,512   304,698,682   213,836,789   304,333,537   262,723   365,145 
 Cattle and Crop   39,035,081   65,332,899   35,797,486   58,975,752   3,237,595   6,357,147 
 Miscellaneous   1,302,651,621   907,373,369   588,758,256   511,059,592   713,893,365   396,313,777 
 Total   4,910,110,704   3,384,296,904   2,996,733,380   2,104,185,974   1,913,377,324   1,280,110,930 

Particulars    
Current Year  Previous Year Current Year  Previous Year Current Year  Previous Year Current Year  Previous Year

 Property   452,175,915   317,039,182   410,179,229   350,618,093   68,674,255   12,272,682   931,029,399   679,929,957 
 Motor   840,356,714   566,226,751   284,437,608   264,245,613   663,299   149,097   1,125,457,621   830,621,461 
 Marine   128,214,987   81,715,636   -     -     945,506   340,853   129,160,493   82,056,489 
 Engineering   726,912,915   618,372,189   117,313,389   113,514,693   26,195,775   674,953   870,422,080   732,561,835 
 Micro   -     -     600   600   -     -     600   600 
 Aviation   49,813,125   327,400,019    1,903,815   -     -     49,813,125   329,303,834 
 Cattle and Crop   33,533,149   34,139,083   1,281,820   4,355,282   -     -     34,814,969   38,494,365 
 Miscellaneous   664,158,997   681,347,545   269,741,424   211,766,769   4,322,733   883,244   938,223,155   893,997,558 
 Total   2,895,165,803   2,626,240,405   1,082,954,071   946,404,865   100,801,568   14,320,829   4,078,921,442   3,586,966,099

Particulars    

Current Year  Previous Year Current Year  Previous Year Current Year  Previous Year Current Year  Previous Year
 Property   931,029,399   679,929,957   1,369,294   426,231   (71,451,865)  219,657,011   1,003,850,558   460,699,177 
 Motor   1,125,457,621   830,621,461   148,753,776   126,571,492   151,043,394   25,756,388   1,123,168,003   931,436,565 
 Marine   129,160,493   82,056,489   -     -     (100,536,171)  2,594,124   229,696,664   79,462,365 
 Engineering   870,422,080   732,561,835   9   3,395,360   (127,186,394)  100,664,856   997,608,483   635,292,339 
 Micro   600   600   -     -     (182)  (908)  782   1,508 
 Aviation   49,813,125   329,303,834   -     -     (164,286,387)  24,605,152   214,099,512   304,698,682 
 Cattle and Crop   34,814,969   38,494,365   -     -     (4,220,112)  (26,838,534)  39,035,081   65,332,899 
 Miscellaneous   938,223,155   893,997,558   57,281,985   44,635,387   (307,146,481)  31,259,576   1,302,651,621   907,373,369 

 Total   4,078,921,442   3,586,966,099   207,405,064   175,028,470   (623,784,198)  377,697,665   4,910,110,704   3,384,296,904 

Current Year 
 931,029,399  
 1,125,457,621  
 129,160,493  

 870,422,080  
 600  

 49,813,125  
 34,814,969  

 938,223,155  

 4,078,921,442  

Current Year 
 452,175,915  

 840,356,714  
 128,214,987  
 726,912,915  

 -    
 49,813,125  
 33,533,149  

 664,158,997  
 2,895,165,803  

Current Year 
 728,306,593  
424,492,265  

81,810,467  
 781,828,461  

 72  
  49,754,654  

 31,751,255  
 432,297,186  

2,530,240,953  

Current Year 
 1,003,850,558  
 1,123,168,003  
 229,696,664  
 997,608,483  

 782  
 214,099,512  
 39,035,081  

 1,302,651,621  
 4,910,110,704  

Current Year 
 (25,025,545) 

 41,478,521  
 (65,431,933) 
 (92,923,999) 

 (35) 
 (164,082,135) 

 (4,046,231) 
 (156,461,070) 

 (466,492,427) 

Current Year 
 753,332,138  
 383,013,744  
 147,242,400  
 874,752,460  

 107  
 213,836,789  
 35,797,486  

 588,758,256  
 2,996,733,380  

Current Year 
 753,332,138  
 383,013,744  
 147,242,400  
 874,752,460  

 107  
 213,836,789  
 35,797,486  

 588,758,256  
 2,996,733,380  

Current Year 
 250,518,420  
 740,154,259  
 82,454,264  

 122,856,023  
 675  

 262,723  
 3,237,595  

 713,893,365  
 1,913,377,324  

Current Year 
 1,369,294  

 148,753,776  
 -    
 9  
 -    
 -    
 -    

 57,281,985  

 207,405,064  

Current Year 
 410,179,229  

 284,437,608  
 -    

 117,313,389  
 600  

 
 1,281,820  

 269,741,424  
 1,082,954,071  

Current Year 
 (71,451,865) 
 151,043,394  

 (100,536,171) 
 (127,186,394) 

 (182) 
 (164,286,387) 

 (4,220,112) 
 (307,146,481) 

 (623,784,198) 

Current Year 
 68,674,255  

 663,299  
 945,506  

 26,195,775  
 -    
 -    
 -    

 4,322,733  
 100,801,568  

Current Year 
 1,003,850,558  
 1,123,168,003  
 229,696,664  
 997,608,483  

 782  
 214,099,512  
 39,035,081  

 1,302,651,621  

 4,910,110,704  

Current Year 
 931,029,399  
 1,125,457,621  
 129,160,493  

 870,422,080  
 600  

 49,813,125  
 34,814,969  

 938,223,155  
 4,078,921,442  

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Fig. in NPR25. GROSS EARNED PREMIUMS

25. DIRECT PREMIUMS

26. PREMIUMS CEDED 

26. PORTFOLIO-WISE DETAIL OF NET EARNED PREMIUMS

Direct 
Premiums

New Business 
Premium

Premium Ceded
To Reinsurers

Gross Earned 
Premiums

Premium 
Ceded

Net Earned 
Premium

Reinsurer’s Share of Change 
in Unearned Premiums

Premium 
Ceded

Premium on 
Reinsurance Accepted

Renewal 
Premium

Gross Change in 
Unearned Premium

Co-Insurance 
Premium

Gross Earned 
Premiums

Total Direct 
Premium
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Particulars    

Current Year  Previous Year Current Year  Previous Year Current Year  Previous Year 
 Property   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Motor   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Marine   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Engineering   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Micro   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Aviation   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Cattle and Crop   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Miscellaneous   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Total   -     -      -     -     -   

Current Year 
 -    
 -    
 -    
 -    
 -    
 -    
 -    
 -    
 -    

Current Year 
 -    
 -    
 -    
 -    
 -    
 -    
 -    
 -    

 

Current Year 
 -    
 -    
 -    
 -    
 -    
 -    
 -    
 -    
 -    

Fig. in NPR

Fig. in NPR

27. COMMISSION INCOME

28. OTHER DIRECT INCOME

Reinsurance Commission 
Income

Other Direct Income

Deferred Commission
Income

Other (to be Specifi ed)

Profi t 
Commission

Total Other Direct Income

Commission
Income

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Particulars    

Current Year  Previous Year Current Year  Previous Year Current Year  Previous Year Current Year  Previous Year
 Property   122,332,629   112,988,532   22,023,079   (40,684,445)  5,136,401   11,556,703   149,492,109   83,860,790 
 Motor   100,725,737   80,251,297   (16,304,877)  (21,382,850)  1,348,023   6,206,442   85,768,883   65,074,889 
 Marine   28,077,252   14,906,127   17,620,389   (17,313,273)  1,387,514   774,912   47,085,155   (1,632,234)
 Engineering   126,440,547   84,381,178   1,569,107   (1,446,521)  8,355,596   9,311,913   136,365,250   92,246,570 
 Micro   11   14   5   9   11   14   27   37 
 Aviation   2,383,339   16,365,676   8,165,337   (738,301)  -     -     10,548,676   15,627,375 
 Cattle and Crop   5,030,818   7,441,887   1,543,077   4,664,338   -     231,943   6,573,895   12,338,168 
 Miscellaneous   86,777,232   68,196,310   19,247,822   2,779,698   2,693,800   4,394,912   108,718,854   75,370,920 
 Total   471,767,565   384,531,021   53,863,939   (74,121,345)  18,921,345   32,476,839   544,552,849   342,886,515 

29. INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS & LOANS
Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Interest Income from Financial Assets Designated at Amortised Costs    
 i) Fixed Deposit with “A” Class Financial Institutions   144,748,641   250,022,848 
 ii) Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank   -     -   
 iii) Fixed Deposit with “B” Class Financial Institutions   24,433,878   47,456,875 
 iv) Fixed Deposit with “C” Class Financial Institutions   12,607,967   12,436,226 
 v) Debentures    25,418,757   20,228,057 
 vi) Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government)   -     -   
 vii) Bank Deposits other than Fixed Deposit   1,860,588   4,843,810 
 xiii) Employee Loans   -     -   
 ix) Other Interest Income ( to be Specifi ed)   -     -   
 Financial Assets Measured at FVTOCI 
 i) Interest Income on Debentures   -     -   
 ii) Dividend Income   5,896,537   9,055,194 
 iii) Other Interest Income ( to be specifi ed)   -     -   
 Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL  
 i) Interest Income on Debentures   -     -   
 ii)Dividend Income   -     -   
 iii) Other Interest Income ( to be specifi ed)   -     -   
 Rental Income   4,257,315   -   
 Others   -     -   
 Total   219,223,683   344,043,010 
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Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Unwinding of discount on Financial Assets at Amortised Cost   
 i) Employee Loan   -   - 
 ii) Bonds   -   - 
 iii) Others (to be Specifi ed)   -   - 
 Foreign Exchange Income   851,628   4,397,790 
 Interest Income from Finance Lease   -   - 
 Amortization of Deferred Income   -   - 
 Profi t from disposal of Property and Equipment   162,418   (2,263,355)
 Stamp Income   4,133,960   3,469,550 
 Others (Provision Written Back)   -   161,303,648 
 Others (Gains from Lease Extinguishment)   -   849,506 
 Others (Cancellation Service Fee Premium)   677,500   485,000 
 Others (Miscellaneous)   3,337,567   6,536,903 
 Total   9,163,073   174,779,042 

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

30. NET GAIN/ (LOSS) ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES

31. NET REALISED GAINS/ (LOSSES)

32. OTHER INCOME

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Changes in Fair Value of Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL   
 i) Equity Instruments   -   - 
 ii) Mutual Fund   -   - 
 iii) Others (to be specifi ed)   -   - 
 Changes in Fair Value on Investment Properties   -   - 
 Changes in Fair Value on Hedged Items in Fair Value Hedges   -   - 
 Changes in Fair Value on Hedging Instruments in Fair Value Hedges   -   - 
 Other ( to be Specifi ed)   -   - 
 Total   -   - 

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Realised Gain/(Losses) on Derecognition of Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL   
 i) Equity Instruments   4,400,427   361,558,301 
 ii) Mutual Fund   -     - 
 iii) Others (to be specifi ed)   -     - 
 Realised Gain/(Losses) on Derecognition of Financial Assets at Amortised Costs   
 i) Debentures   -     - 
 ii) Bonds   -     - 
 iii) Others (to be specifi ed)   130,618   - 
 Total   4,531,045   361,558,301 

Fig. in NPR
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33. GROSS CLAIMS PAID AND CLAIMS CEDED

33. DETAILS OF GROSS CLAIM PAID

34. CHANGE IN INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Particulars    

Current Year  Previous Year Current Year  Previous Year Current Year  Previous Year 
 Property   560,341,481   170,139,206   433,615,243   136,995,783   126,726,238   33,143,423 
 Motor   632,205,213   470,138,918   133,858,082   122,757,596   498,347,131   347,381,322 
 Marine   25,704,516   33,332,168   16,857,221   20,368,667   8,847,295   12,963,501 
 Engineering   237,622,719   171,908,233   229,167,653   153,390,814   8,455,066   18,517,419 
 Micro   -     750,000   -     750,000   -     -   
 Aviation   3,391,647   205,943,545   3,377,682   205,750,415   13,965   193,130 
 Cattle and Crop   51,172,298   50,412,260   40,112,448   44,600,490   11,059,850   5,811,770 
 Miscellaneous   448,483,328   371,787,907   26,567,830   72,048,283   421,915,498   299,739,624 
 Total   1,958,921,202   1,474,412,237   883,556,159   756,662,048   1,075,365,043   717,750,189 

Particulars    

Current Year  Previous Year Current Year  Previous Year Current Year  Previous Year 
 Property   537,099,420   159,695,528   23,242,061   10,443,678   560,341,481   170,139,206 
 Motor   613,853,750   453,710,694   18,351,463   16,428,224   632,205,213   470,138,918 
 Marine   22,794,516   30,580,595   2,910,000   2,751,573   25,704,516   33,332,168 
 Engineering   222,257,139   160,192,429   15,365,580   11,715,804   237,622,719   171,908,233 
 Micro   -     750,000   -     -     -     750,000 
 Aviation   3,391,647   205,943,545   -     -     3,391,647   205,943,545 
 Cattle and Crop   48,488,135   49,814,288   2,684,163   597,972   51,172,298   50,412,260 
 Miscellaneous   448,020,768   371,248,409   462,560   539,498   448,483,328   371,787,907 
 Total   1,895,905,375   1,431,935,488   63,015,827   42,476,749   1,958,921,202   1,474,412,237 

Particulars    

Current Year  Previous Year Current Year  Previous Year Current Year  Previous Year 
 Property   251,435,054   (269,341,170)  (265,740,666)  302,247,776   (14,305,612)  32,906,606 
 Motor   167,494,907   (57,771,325)  (24,147,381)  27,883,671   143,347,526   (29,887,654)
 Marine   (21,220,940)  (12,248,016)  15,801,178   13,257,045   (5,419,762)  1,009,029 
 Engineering   172,158,261   2,663,365   (150,872,893)  12,969,410   21,285,368   15,632,775 
 Micro   (423)  (766,831)  106   765,111   (317)  (1,720)
 Aviation   (72,671,975)  (230,204,472)  73,074,930   230,056,151   402,955   (148,321)
 Cattle and Crop   (18,977,267)  15,061,536   16,841,190   (15,108,511)  (2,136,077)  (46,975)
 Miscellaneous   1,885,654   (30,335,232)  18,408,214   39,051,005   20,293,868   8,715,773 
 Total   480,103,271   (582,942,145)  (316,635,322)  611,121,658   163,467,949   28,179,513 
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Particulars    

Current Year  Previous Year Current Year  Previous Year Current Year  Previous Year Current Year Previous Year 
 Property   11,624,752   13,089,859   204,147   63,935   3,322,881   (4,670,799)  15,151,780   8,482,995 
 Motor   5,115,521   3,610,574   -     -     (1,067,439)  50,610   4,048,082   3,661,184 
 Marine   977,639   553,836   -     -     663,817   (458,241)  1,641,456   95,595 
 Engineering   12,707,088   13,680,884   240,750   398,003   2,867,021   (1,881,208)  15,814,859   12,197,679 
 Micro   30   -     -     -     (6)  23   24   23 
 Aviation   2,526,250   -     -     -     (18,212)  2,653,827   2,508,038   2,653,827 
 Cattle and Crop   2,440,213   4,580,216   -     -     1,230,407   4,359,965   3,670,620   8,940,181 
 Miscellaneous   29,363,423   35,306,031   -     -     12,530,173   (12,609,956)  41,893,596   22,696,075 
 Total   64,754,916   70,821,400   444,897   461,938   19,528,642   (12,555,779)  84,728,455   58,727,559 

35. COMMISSION EXPENSES

36. SERVICE FEES

37. OTHER DIRECT EXPENES

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Particulars    

Current Year  Previous Year Current Year  Previous Year Current Year  Previous Year 
Property   6,992,990   5,102,671   5,252,983   3,455,455   1,740,007   1,647,216 
 Motor   9,556,585   7,178,947   1,904,360   1,674,034   7,652,225   5,504,913 
 Marine  968,704   615,424   610,310   421,391   358,394   194,033 
 Engineering  6,528,166   5,519,679   5,931,734   4,881,713   596,432   637,966 
 Micro   5   5   1   1   4   4 
 Aviation  373,598   2,469,779   385,872   2,470,811   (12,274)  (1,032)
 Cattle and Crop  261,113   288,708   238,134   264,462   22,979   24,246 
 Miscellaneous   7,466,288   7,039,747   3,002,887   2,943,371   4,463,401   4,096,376 
 Total  32,147,449   28,214,960   17,326,281   16,111,238   14,821,168   12,103,722 

Particulars    

Current Year  Previous Year Current Year  Previous Year Current Year  Previous Year 
Property   584,320   565,840   -     -     584,320   565,840 
 Motor   2,818,800   2,291,360   -     -     2,818,800   2,291,360 
 Marine   222,680   171,640   -     -     222,680   171,640 
 Engineering   74,020   52,170   -     -     74,020   52,170 
 Micro   40   40   -     -     40   40 
 Aviation   -     40   -     -     -     40 
 Cattle and Crop   240,063   239,530   -     -     240,063   239,530 
 Miscellaneous   368,370   308,300   -     -     368,370   308,300 
 Total   4,308,293   3,628,920  -  -     4,308,293   3,628,920 
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Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Impairment Losses on Property and Equiment, Investment 
 Properties and Goodwill & Intangible Assets   
 i) Property and Equipment    -     -   
 ii) Investment properties   -     -   
 iii) Goodwill & Intangible Asssets   -     -   
 Impairment Losses on Financial Assets   
 i) Investments    -     -   
 ii) Loans   -     -   
 iii) Other Financial Assets   -     -   
 iv)Cash and Cash Equivalents   
 v)Others ( to be Specifi ed)   -     -   
 Impairment Losses on Other Assets   
 i) Reinsurance Assets   -     132,852,751 
 ii) Insurance Receivables   -     -   
 iii) Lease Receivables    -     -   
 iv)Others (to be Specifi ed)   -     -   
 Total   -     132,852,751 

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Amortization of Goodwill & Intangible Assets (Refer Note. 4)   3,147,370   2,607,186 
 Depreciation on Property and Equipment(Refer Note.5)   30,338,883   17,905,969 
 Depreciation on Investment Properties ( Refer Note. 6)   -     -   
 Total   33,486,253   20,513,155 

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Fig. in NPR38. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

39. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

40. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Salaries   148,984,373   137,052,224 
 Allowances   124,636,052   109,736,911 
 Festival Allowances   17,421,666   17,516,636 
 Defi ned Benefi t Plans   
 i) Gratuity   -     -   
 ii) Others ( to be Specifi ed)   -     -   
 Defi ned Contribution Plans   
 i) Provident Fund/ Social Security Fund   28,697,332   26,453,240 
 ii) Others ( to be specifi ed)   -     -   
 Leave Encashments   12,996,920   14,860,910 
 Termination Benefi ts   -     13,216,667 
 Training Expenses   5,635,760   7,157,099 
 Uniform Expenses   -     -   
 Medical Expenses   -     -   
 Insurance Expenses   9,175,529   5,121,766 
 Staff Welfare Expenses   6,829,362   5,113,831 
 Others( to be Specifi ed)   -     -   
 Sub Total    354,376,994   336,229,284 
 Employees Bonus   66,302,394   89,219,185 
 Total   420,679,388   425,448,469
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Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Rent Expenses   35,650,339   35,831,811 
 Electricity and Water   6,887,639   4,696,309 
 Repair & Maintenance   
 i) Building   -   - 
 ii) Vehicle   1,296,821   1,566,940 
 iii) Offi ce Equipments   1,043,816   1,283,227 
 iv) Others (Furnitures & Offi ce Premises)   605,019   697,450 
 Telephone & Communication   5,712,310   7,217,539 
 Printing & Stationary   8,724,757   9,177,441 
 Offi ce Consumable Expenses   73,606,725   33,795,705 
 Travelling Expenses   
 i) Domestic   2,219,705   3,362,742 
 ii) Foreign   1,282,073   2,934,315 
 Transpotation & Fuel Expenses   10,116,708   12,341,039 
 Agent Training   22,600   14,595 
 Other Agent Expenses   -   - 
 Insurance Premium   1,514,841   1,197,104 
 Security & Outsourcing Expenes   12,399,835   9,171,679 
 Legal and Consulting Expenses   39,611,998   25,810,290 
 Newspapers, Books and Periodicals   64,509   1,663,382 
 Advertisement & Promotion Expenses   15,529,568   10,169,943 
 Business Promotion   7,820,537   10,630,438 
 Guest Entertainment   160,381   215,114 
 Gift and Donations   -   313,500 
 Board Meeting Fees and Expenses   
 i) Meeting Allowances   3,212,000   2,266,331 
 ii) Other Allowances   111,183   65,903 
 Other Committee/ Sub-committee Expenses   
 i) Meeting Allowances   1,790,000   944,000 
 ii) Other Allowances   17,574   4,394 
 General Meeting Expenses   873,328   1,041,161 
 Actuarial Service Fee   1,413,088   800,750 
 Other Actuarial Expenses   -   - 
 Audit Related Expenses   
 i) Statutory Audit   770,000   700,000 
 ii) Tax Audit   -   - 
 iii) Long Form Audit Report   -   - 
 iv) Other Fees   250,000   780,000 
 v) Internal Audit   550,000   500,000 
 vi) Others (Audit Expenses)   1,650,066   749,019 
 Bank Charges   868,712   1,127,369 
 Fee and Charges   56,427,839   37,669,577 
 Postage Charges   4,149,473   2,947,795 
 Foreign Exchange Losses   -   - 
 Fines and Penalties   -   - 
 Others (CSR Activities)   -   - 
 Others (Merger Expenses)   -   - 
 Others (Miscellaneous Exp)   49,543   62,396 
 Total   296,402,987   221,749,258 
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HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Fig. in NPR41. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

42. Finance Cost
Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Unwinding of discount on Provisions   -   - 
 Unwinding of discount on Financial Liabilities at Amortised Costs   -   - 
 Interest Expenses -  Bonds   -   - 
 Interest Expenses -  Debentures   -   - 
 Interest Expenses -  Term Loans   -   - 
 Interest Expenses -   Leases   866,890   1,446,864 
 Interest Expenses -   Overdraft Loans   -   - 
 Others ( to be Specifi ed)   -   - 
 Total   866,890   1,446,864 
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Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Accounting Profi t Before Tax   596,721,547   892,191,856 
 Applicable Tax Rate  30% 30%
 Tax at the applicable rate on Accounting Profi t   179,016,464   267,657,557 
 Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose   
 i) Utilisation of capital reserve from merger for Bonus Shares    56,457,930 
 ii) Leave Encashment   4,144,724  
 iii) Bonus Distributed to Employees from Dividend Income  99,881   150,338 
 iv) Disallowed Expenses  366,785   572,420 
 v) Provision Expenses  9,126,873  - 
 vi) Difference of Depreciation as per Tax Base and Accounting Base   2,264,332   -   
 vii) Share Related Expenses   340,540 
 viii) Taxes & Fines    7,081,627 
 ix) Unwinding of Lease Liability   616,136   -   
 x) Tax effect of realised gain/loss on disposal of equity instruments   -   
 Less: Tax effect on exempt income and additional deduction    
 i) Dividend Income   (998,813)  (1,503,383)
 ii) Income tax on dividend income from Associates   -     52,630 
 iii) Provision Written Back   -     (48,391,094)
 iv) Unrealised FX Income   (716,619)  (1,236,146)
 v) Interest Income on Plan Assets    (1,048,302)
 vi) Difference in opening provision for doubtful debts    (562,909)
 vii) Gain on sale of shares through fair value reserve    11,789,875 
 viii) Unexpired risk reserve of Marine Portfolio    6,711,328 
 ix) Difference of cost of disposed shares for tax base    (1,384,657)
 x) Derecognizing the Investment in Associates   (63,364,337)  -   
 Less: Adjustments to Current Tax for Prior Periods    
 i) Taxes pertaining to prior period   10,285,366   91,453,939 
 Add/ (Less): Others(to be Specifi ed)    
 i) Opening deferred tax adj on net contract liabilities of EIC    -   
 ii) Opening deferred tax adj on deferred commission income & expenses of EIC    -   
 iii) Opening unexpired risk reserve for HGI    -   
 iv) Origination and reversal of temporary differences as DTA/DTL    
 v) Interest on current tax   -     1,586,248 
Income Tax Expense   140,840,793   389,727,941 

 Effective Tax Rate  23.60% 43.68%

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Fig. in NPR43. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
(a) Income Tax Expense

(b) Reconciliation of Taxable Profi t & the Accounting Profi t

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Current Tax    
 i) Income Tax Expenses for the Year   92,292,644   325,850,250 
 ii) Income Tax Relating to Prior Periods   10,285,366   91,453,939 
 ii) Income Tax on Dividend Income of Associates   -     52,630 
 Deferred Tax For The Year    
 i) Originating and reversal of temporary differences   38,262,783   (27,628,878)
 ii) Changes in tax rate   -     -   
 iii) Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses   -     -   
 iv) Write-down or reversal   -     -   
 v) Others ( to be Specifi ed)   -     -   
 Income Tax Expense   140,840,793   389,727,941 
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   Current Year  Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
a. Acturial (Gain)/loss due to fi nancial assumption changes 

 in DBO   -   -   -   - 
 b. Acturial (Gain)/loss due to experience on DBO   -   -   -   - 
 c. return on plan assets (greater)/less than discount rate   -   -   -   - 
Defi ned Benefi t Cost Included in Statement of Other 

 Comprehensive Income  -   -   -   -

   Current Year  Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Cost Recognized in statement of Profi t or loss   -   -   -   - 
 Remeasurements effects recognized in OCI   -   -   -   - 
 Defi ned Benefi t Cost Included in Statement of Profi t or Loss   -   -   -   - 

   Current Year  Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Current Service Cost  -   -   -   - 

 Past Service Cost  -   -   -   - 
 Net Interest Cost (a-b)  -   -   -   - 
 a. Interest expenses on Defi ned Benefi t Obligation (DBO)  -   -   -   - 
 b. Interest (income) on Plan Assets  -   -   -   - 
 Net Actuarial losses/(gains) recognized during the period  -   -   -   - 
 Defi ned Benefi t Cost Included in Statement of Profi t or Loss   -   -   -   - 

c) Total Expenses Recogized in Statement of Profi t or Loss

d) Remeasurement effects recognised in Statement of Other Comphrehensive Income (OCI)

e. Total Cost Recognized in Comprehensive Income

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Fig. in NPR

44. Employee Retirement Benefi ts

Employee Benefi t Plan

Employee Benefi t Plan

Employee Benefi t Plan

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Any Other Funded Liability

Any Other Funded Liability

Any Other Funded Liability

a) Post Employment Benefi t - Defi ned Contribution Plans
For the year ended Ashadh 32, 2082 the company has recognized an amount of NPR 28,697,332 as an expenses under the 
defi ned contribution plans in the Statement of Profi t or Loss.

b) Post Employment Benefi t - Defi ned Benefi t Plans
For Defi ned Benefi t Plans, the cost of Providing benefi ts is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with Acturial 
Valuations being carried out.
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   Current Year  Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year   -   -   -   - 

 Opening Balance Adjustment   -   -   
 Interest Income   -   -   -   - 
 Expected return on plan assets   -   -   -   - 
 Employer contributions   -   -   -   - 
 Participant contributions   -   -   -   - 
 Benefi t payments from plan assets   -   -   -   - 
 Transfer in/ transfer out   -   -   -   - 
 Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets   -   -   -   - 
 Fair value of Plan Assets as at Year End   -   -   -   - 

   Current Year  Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Defi ned Benefi t Obligation   -   -   -   - 

 Fair Value of Plan Assets   -   -   -   - 
Liability/ (Asset) Recognised in Statement of 

 Financial Position   -   -   -   - 

   Current Year  Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Expected company contributions for the next year    -   -   -   -

   Current Year  Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Defi ned benefi t obligation as at the beginning of the year   -   -   -   - 

 Service cost   -   -   -   - 
 Interest cost   -   -   -   - 
 Acquisition   -   -   
 Benefi t payments   -   -   -   - 
 Actuarial (gain)/ loss - fi nancial assumptions   -   -   -   - 
 Actuarial (gain)/ Loss - experience   -   -   -   - 
 Defi ned Benefi t Obligation as at Year End  -   -   -   - 

f) Change in Defi ned Benefi t Obligation

g) Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets

h) Net Defi ned Benefi t (Asset) / Liability

i) Expected Company Contributions for the Next Year 

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Fig. in NPR
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   Current Year  Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Within 1 year   -   -   -   - 

 Between 1-2 years   -   -   -   - 
 Between 2-5 years   -   -   -   - 
 From 6 to 10   -   -   -   - 
 Total   -   -   -   - 

j) Reconciliation of amounts in Statement of Financial Position

k) Reconciliation of Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

l) Current/Non - Current Liability

m)  Expected Future Benefi t Payments

   Current Year  Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
 Net defi ned benefi t liability/(asset) at prior year end   -   -   -   - 
 Defi ned benefi t cost included in Statement of Profi t or Loss   -   -   -   - 
 Total remeasurements included in OCI   -   -   -   - 
 Acquisition/ divestment   -   -   -   - 
 Opening Balance Adjustment   -   -   
 Employer contributions   -   -   -   - 
 Benefi t Paid   -   -   -   - 
 Net defi ned benefi t liability/ (asset)   -   -   -   - 

   Current Year  Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss, beginning of period   -   -   -   - 

 Total remeasurements included in OCI   -   -   -   - 
 Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss   -   -   -   - 

   Current Year  Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Current Liability   -   -   -   - 

 Non - Current Liability   -   -   -   - 
 Total   -   -   -   - 

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

Fig. in NPR
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    Employee Benefi t Plan Any Other Funded Liability
Discount Rate  N/A N/A

 Escalation Rate (Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels)  N/A N/A
 Attrition Rate (Employee Turnover)  N/A N/A
 Mortality Rate During Employment  N/A   N/A 

   Current Year  Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
  (% Invested) (% Invested) (% Invested) (% Invested)
Government Securities (Central and State)   -     -     -   - 

 Corporate Bonds (including Public Sector bonds)   -     -     -   - 
 Mutual Funds   -     -     -   - 
 Deposits   -     -     -   - 
 Cash and bank balances    -     -     -   - 
 Retirement Fund  -     -     -   - 
 Others (Plan assets with CIT)   -     -     -   - 
 Total   -     -     -   - 

   Current Year  Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Effect in Defi ned Benefi t Obligation Due to 1% 

 Increase in Discount Rate   -   -   -   - 
 Effect in Defi ned Benefi t Obligation Due to 1% 
 Decrease in Discount Rate 
  -   -   -   - 
 Effect in Defi ned Benefi t Obligation Due to 1% 
 Increase in Salary Escalation Rate   -   -   -   - 
 Effect in Defi ned Benefi t Obligation Due to 1% 
 Decrease in Salary Escalation Rate   -   -   -   - 
     
“ Effect in Defi ned Benefi t Obligation Due to 1% 
 Increase in Attrition Rate “  -   -   -   - 
“ Effect in Defi ned Benefi t Obligation Due to 1% 
 Decrease in Attrition Rate “  -   -   -   - 

n)  Plan assets

p)  Assumptions

o) Sensitivity Analysis

 Current Year 
(% Invested) 

 -  
 -  
 -  
 -  
 -  
-  
 -  
 -  

 Current Year 

 -  

 -  

 -  

-  
 

 -  

 -  

Current Year 
(% Invested) 

   -  
   -  
   -  
   -  
   -  
   -  
   -  
   -  

Current Year 

 -  

 -  

 -  

 -  
 

 -  

 -  
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Level 
 Investments  FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost FVTPL FVOCI Authorised Cost 
 i) Investment in Equity Instruments  -     -     -      
 Investment in Equity (Quoted) 1  -     564,467,559   -     -     472,124,532   -   
 Investment in Equity (Unquoted) 3  -     568,656,761   -     -     284,560,000   -   
 ii) Investment in Mutual Funds 1  -     119,968,378   -     -     56,277,589   -   
 iii) Investment in Preference Shares 
 of Bank and Financial Institutions  -     -     -     -     -     -   
 iv) Investment in Debentures 3  -     -     288,564,518   -     -     260,266,518 
 v) Investment in Bonds (Nepal 
 Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed 
 by Nepal Government)  -     -     -     -     -     -   
 vi) Fixed Deposits 3  -     -     3,700,574,200   -     -     3,745,045,600 
 vii) Others (to be specifi ed)   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Loans   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Other Financial Assets 3  -     -     114,113,235   -     -     86,397,271 
 Cash and Cash Equivalents 1  -     -     145,744,832   -     -     175,773,574 
 Total Financial Assets    -     1,253,092,698   4,248,996,785   -     812,962,121   4,267,482,963 
 Borrowings   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Other Financial Liabilities 3  -     -     197,915,910   -     -     212,553,341 
 Total Financial Liabilities    -     -     197,915,910   -     -     212,553,341 

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost 
-     -     -  
 -     564,467,559   -  
 -     568,656,761   -  
 -     119,968,378   -  

 -     -     -  
 -     -     288,564,518  

 -     -     -  
 -     -     3,700,574,200  
 -     -     -  
 -     -     -  
 -     -     114,113,235  
 -     -     145,744,832  
 -     1,253,092,698   4,248,996,785  
 -     -     -  
 -     -     197,915,910  
 -     -     197,915,910  
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45. Fair Value Measurements

(i) Financial Instruments by Category & Hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the Fair Values of the Financial Instruments that 
are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at Amortised Cost and for which Fair Values are disclosed 
in the Financial Statements.

Level 1: Level 1 Hierarchy includes Financial Instruments measured using Quoted Prices.

Level 2: Fair Value of Financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques 
which maximises the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specifi c estimates. If all signifi cant 
inputs required to determine Fair Value of an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the signifi cant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.

There is no transfer of Financial Instruments between different levels as mentioned above during the year.

(ii) Valuation Technique Used to Determine Fair Value
a) Use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments  
b) Fair Value of remaining fi nancial instruments is determined using discounted cash fl ow analysis

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
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   Carrying  Fair Carrying Fair  
 Amount Value Amount Value
 Investments     
 i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and 
 Financial Institutions  -     -     -     -   
 ii) Investment in Debentures  288,564,518   288,564,518   260,266,518   260,266,518 
 iii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ 
 Guaranteed by Nepal Government)  -     -     -     -   
 iv) Fixed Deposit  3,700,574,200   3,700,574,200   3,745,045,600   3,745,045,600 
 v) Others (Unquoted Equity Shares)  -     -   
 Loans     
 i) Loan to Employees  -     -     -     -   
 ii) Others (to be Specifi ed)  -     -     -     -   
 Other Financial Assets  114,113,235   114,113,235   86,397,271   86,397,271 
 Total Financial Assets at Amortised Cost   4,103,251,953   4,103,251,953   4,091,709,389   4,091,709,389 
 Borrowings    
 i) Bonds  -     -     -     -   
 ii) Debentures  -     -     -     -   
 iii) Term Loans - Bank and Financial Institution  -     -     -     -   
 iv) Bank Overdrafts  -     -     -     -   
 v) Others (to be Specifi ed)  -     -     -     -   
 Other Finnancial Liabilities  197,915,910   197,915,910   212,553,341   212,553,341 
 Total Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost   197,915,910   197,915,910   212,553,341   212,553,341
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(iii) Valuation Process

The fi nance and accounts department of the Company performs the valuation of fi nancial assets and liabilities required for 
fi nancial reporting purposes.    
   
Discussion on Valuation processes and results are reviewed at least once in a year.   
   

The main level 3 inputs are derived and evaluated as follows:    
   
a) Discount rate is arrived at considering the internal and external factors.   
 b) Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of the discounting is material

The fair values of the above fi nancial instruments measured at amortised cost are calculated based on cash fl ows discounted 
using current discount rate.    
  
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values due to their short-term 
nature.

(iv) Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost

Current YearParticulars Previous Year
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   Gross written  Concentration   Gross written   Concentration 
 Premium Percentage Premium Percentage
 Fire 932,398,693 22% 680,356,188 18%
 Motor 1,274,211,397 30% 957,192,953 25%
 Marine 129,160,493 3% 82,056,489 2%
 Engineering 870,422,089 20% 735,957,195 20%
 Micro 600 0% 600 0%
 Aviation 49,813,125 1% 329,303,834 9%
 Cattle and crop 34,814,969 1% 38,494,365 1%
 Miscellaneous 995,505,140 23% 938,632,945 25%
 Total  4,286,326,506  100% 3,761,994,569 100%
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46. Risk management framework

46.1 Governance framework
The primary objective of the Company’s risk and fi nancial management framework is to ensure that it will be above to con-
tinue as a going concern so that can continue to provide returns to the shareholders through sustainable achievement of 
fi nancial performance objective. Key management recognizes the critical importance of having effi cient and effective risk 
management systems in place.

The board of directors and senior management manages the risks through various committees and delegated authorities. As 
part of the important activity within the Company, the risks are reviewed on a regular basis and strategies are timely adopted 
to manage these risks. The risks are identifi ed with clear understanding of the market environment, regulatory environment 
and economic changes.

46.2 Insurance risks
The principal risk the Company is subjected to under the insurance contract is that actual claims and benefi ts payments or 
the timing thereof may differ from expectations. This is infl uenced by the frequency of the claims, severity of claims, actual 
benefi ts paid and subsequent development of long-term claims. The objective of the Company is therefore to ensure that 
suffi cient reserves are available to cover these liabilities.

The risk exposure is mitigated by diversifi cation across portfolio of insurance contracts. The risk is also mitigated by careful 
selection and implementation of underwriting guidelines as well as use of reinsurance arrangements.
The Company considers insurance risk to be a combination of the following components:
• Product design risk
• Product pricing
• Underwriting risk
• Claim risk
• Reinsurance risk
• Reserving

a. Product design risk
The Company issues general insurance contracts such as fi re, marine, motor, marine, engineering, micro, aviation, cattle and 
crop and miscellaneous. The signifi cant risks arising under the general insurance portfolio are from changes in the climate 
leading to natural disasters, behavioral trends of peoples due the change in their lifestyles and steady escalation of costs 
in respect of motor industry.
         
The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversifi cation across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and geographical 
areas. Variability of risk is improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategies, which are designed 
to ensure that risks are diversifi ed in the term of type of risk. 
       
The Company’s insurance risk based on the line of business concentration is as follows:    

For the year ended Ashadh 32, 2082 
(July 16, 2025)

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 
(July 15, 2024)

Particulars
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NAME OF REINSURERS RATING ISSUING AGENCY
 General Insurance Corporation of India, India B++ AM Best
 Oman Re B+ AM Best
 Kenya Re B AM Best
 Asian Re B+ AM Best
 Cica Re B+ AM Best
 General Insurance Corporation, Bhutan A AM Best
 The New India Assurance Company Limited B++ AM Best
 ADNIC reinsurance A  AM Best
 Nepal Reinsurance Company Limited  
 Himalayan Reinsurance Company Limited B+ AM Best
 Sirius International  A-  AM Best
 Odyssey Reinsurance A+ AM Best
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HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

The pricing of an insurance product involves the estimation of claims, operational and fi nancing costs and the income arising 
from investing the premium received. The pricing process typically comprises collecting data on the underlying risks to be 
covered, determining the pricing assumptions and the base rate, setting the fi nal premium rate, and monitoring the review 
of the appropriateness of pricing.

The Company collects adequate data to validate the reasonableness of the underlying assumptions used for pricing. The 
base rate represents the amount required to meet the value of anticipated benefi ts, expenses, and margins for risks and 
profi t. Data primarily relates to the company’s own historical experience and that of the industry where relevant. These may 
be supplemented by other internal and external data and could include trends observed in claims costs and expenses.  

Pricing is done by modelling all identifi ed risks, using appropriate methodologies depending on the complexity of the risks 
and available data. Adequate buffers are kept in the premiums to cushion against the risk that actual experience may turn 
out to be worse than expected.

c. Underwriting risk   
Underwriting involves measuring risk exposure and determining the premium that needs to be charged to undertake the 
insurance risk. Underwriting risks generally arise either from an inaccurate assessment of the risks entailed in writing and 
insurance policy or from factors wholly out of the underwriter’s control.   
   
The majority of the underwriting risk to which the Company is exposed is of a short-term nature, and generally does not 
exceed 12 months. The company’s underwriting strategy aims to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversified in 
terms of the type, amount of risk, and geography in order to ensure that the Company minimises the volatility of its insurance 
result.    

The above risk exposure is mitigated by improving the knowledge and skills of the underwriting staff. Further, a statistical 
database is maintained to enable proper decisions to be taken during underwriting of insurance risks undertaken. Also, 
fi nancial authority limits are in place for underwriting, clearly prescribing the limits to underwrite based on the sum insured 
and risk undertaken. Pricing is done by modelling all identifi ed risks, using appropriate methodologies depending on the 
complexity of the risks and available data. Adequate buffers are kept in the premiums to cushion against the risk that actual 
experience may turn out to be worse than expected.

d. Reinsurance risk   
Reinsurance risk refers to the inability of the Company to obtain insurance from reinsurers at the right time and at the 
appropriate cost.
   
The above risk exposure is mitigated by choosing globally highly trusted reinsurance companies for reinsurance placements. 
The company has reinsurance treaty with the following reinsurance companies: 
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YEAR OF INCIDENT > PY 4 PY 4 PY 3 PY 2 PY 1 CURRENT YEAR TOTAL
At end of incident year  -     -     -     -     -     2,631,100,933   2,631,100,933 
One year later  -     -     -     -     484,753,859   -     484,753,859 
Two year later  -     -     -     183,639,589   -     -     183,639,589 
Three year later  -     -     9,249,782   -     -     -     9,249,782 
Four year later  -     544,617,162   -     -     -     -     544,617,162 
More than Four years  -     -     -     -     -     -     -   
Current estimate of 
cumulative claims  -     544,617,162   9,249,782   183,639,589   484,753,859   2,631,100,933   3,853,361,325 
At end of incident year  -     -     -     -     -     1,443,259,658   1,443,259,658 
One year later  -     -     -     -     317,287,557   -     317,287,557 
Two year later  -     -     -     166,011,523   -     -     166,011,523 
Three year later  -     -     4,779,052   -     -     -     4,779,052 
Four year later  -     27,583,412   -     -     -     -     27,583,412 
More than Four years  -     -     -     -     -     -     -   
Cumulative payments to date  -     27,583,412   4,779,052   166,011,523   317,287,557   1,443,259,658   1,958,921,202 
Gross outstanding claim provision  -     517,033,750   4,470,730   17,628,066   167,466,302   1,187,841,275   1,894,440,122 

YEAR OF INCIDENT > PY 4 PY 4 PY 3 PY 2 PY 1 CURRENT YEAR TOTAL
At end of incident year  -     -     -     -     -     2,631,100,933   2,631,100,933 
One year later  -     -     -     -     484,753,859   -     484,753,859 
Two year later  -     -     -     183,639,589   -     -     183,639,589 
Three year later  -     -     9,249,782   -     -     -     9,249,782 
Four year later  -     544,617,162   -     -     -     -     544,617,162 
More than Four years  -     -     -     -     -     -     - 
Current estimate of 
cumulative claims  -     544,617,162   9,249,782   183,639,589   484,753,859   2,631,100,933   3,853,361,325
At end of incident year  -     -     -     -     -     1,443,259,658   1,443,259,658 
One year later  -     -     -     -     317,287,557   -     317,287,557 
Two year later  -     -     -     166,011,523   -     -     166,011,523 
Three year later  -     -     4,779,052   -     -     -     4,779,052 
Four year later  -     27,583,412   -     -     -     -     27,583,412 
More than Four years  -     -     -     -     -     -     - 
Cumulative payments to date  -     27,583,412   4,779,052   166,011,523   317,287,557   1,443,259,658   1,958,921,202
Gross outstanding claim provision  -     517,033,750   4,470,730   17,628,066   167,466,302   1,187,841,275   1,894,440,122

 Particulars   Changes in  Increase/   Increase/  Increase/  Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/

 Assumptions (Decrease) (Decrease) - (Decrease) - (Decrease) - (Decrease) - (Decrease)  (Decrease) - (Decrease) -

  on Gross on Net  Profi t Before Profi t After Gross on Net Profi t Profi t

  Liabilities Liabilities Tax Tax Liabilities Liabilities Before Tax After Tax

 Average Claim Cost “+” 10%  240,066,955   (263,300,608)  67,408,488   47,185,941   257,795,654   3,934,517   (291,415,939)  (203,991,157)

 Average Number of Claims “+” 10%  (45,156,685)  13,493,153   (13,493,153)  (9,445,207)  26,473,826   14,017,173   (14,017,173)  (9,812,021)

 Average Claim Cost “-” 10%  (240,066,955)  263,300,608   (67,408,488)  (47,185,941)  (257,795,654)  (3,934,517)  291,415,939   203,991,157 

 Average Number of Claims “-” 10%  45,156,685   (13,493,153)  13,493,153   9,445,207   (26,473,826)  (14,017,173)  14,017,173   9,812,021 

Gross outstanding claim provision

Current Year Previous Year
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e. Claim risk
Claim risk refers to the  risk  that  the  actual  claims  or  the   timing  thereof  may  differ  from  expectation  and  
suffi cient reserves may not be available to cover these liabilities. The above risk exposure is mitigated by 
implementing strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims. Regular detailed review of claims 
handling procedure and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are put in place to reduce the risk 
exposure of the Company. The Company further enforces a policy of actively managing and promptly pursuing 
claims in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that may negatively impact the business.
The Company seeks to reduce its claim risk through the use of experience actuaries who estimates actuarial indication of the required 
reserves to be made based on claims experience, business volume, anticipated change in the claim environment and claims cost.

i. Sensitivities   
The Company’s claim liabilities are sensitive to key assumptions as mentioned in the table below. The following analysis is 
performed for possible movements in key assumptions with all other assumptions held constant, showing the impact on 
gross and net liabilities, profi t before tax and profi t after tax. The correlation of assumptions will have a signifi cant effect in 
determining the ultimate claims liabilities, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in assumptions, assumptions had 
to be changed on an individual basis.

ii. Claim developent table   
The following tables show the estimates of cumulative incurred claims, including both claims notifi ed and IBNR for each 
successive incident year at each reporting date, together with cumulative payments to date.
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YEAR OF INCIDENT > PY 4 PY 4 PY 3 PY 2 PY 1 CURRENT YEAR TOTAL
At end of incident year  -     -     -     -     -     1,170,430,013   1,170,430,013 
One year later  -     -     -     -     193,530,572   -     193,530,572 
Two year later  -     -     -     24,821,320   -     -     24,821,320 
Three year later  -     -     3,670,512   -     -     -     3,670,512 
Four year later  -     11,803,178   -     -     -     -     11,803,178 
More than Four years  -     -     -     -     -     -     -   
Current estimate of 
cumulative claims  -     11,803,178   3,670,512   24,821,320   193,530,572   1,170,430,013   1,404,255,595 
At end of incident year  -     -     -     -     -     876,617,566   876,617,566 
One year later  -     -     -     -     171,666,542    171,666,542 
Two year later  -     -     -     14,723,094   -     -     14,723,094 
Three year later  -     -     1,639,249   -     -     -     1,639,249 
Four year later  -     10,718,593   -     -     -     -     10,718,593 
More than Four years  -     -     -     -     -     -     -   
Cumulative payments to date  -     10,718,593   1,639,249   14,723,094   171,666,542   876,617,566   1,075,365,043 
Net outstanding claim provision  -     1,084,586   2,031,263   10,098,226   21,864,030   293,812,447   328,890,550 

Particulars 
 Gross Insurance Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
 Liabilities Assets Liabilities Insurance Assets Liabilities
    Liabilities  
Fire  899,273,469.00   782,307,454.00   116,966,015   719,290,280   541,592,333   177,697,947 
Motor  1,112,910,362.00   344,977,111.00   767,933,251   794,372,061   279,351,209   515,020,852 
Marine  40,491,971.00   25,565,436.00   14,926,535   162,249,082   106,798,547   55,450,535 
Engineering    795,676,802.00   699,191,402.00   96,485,400   750,704,935   641,242,508   109,462,427 
Micro  515,839,946.00   515,839,551.00   395   358,011,291   357,493,425   517,866 
Aviation  121,052,929.00   120,336,360.00   716,569   358,011,291   357,493,425   517,866 
Cattle and Crop  50,421,847.00   43,959,468.00   6,462,379   73,619,226   64,846,889   8,772,337 
Miscellaneous  319,493,812.00   165,815,479.00   153,678,333   624,754,639   340,684,763   284,069,876 
Total  3,855,161,138   2,697,992,261   1,157,168,877   3,841,012,805   2,689,503,099   1,151,509,706 

Gross Insurance Reinsurance Net 
Liabilities Assets Liabilities 

   
 899,273,469.00   782,307,454.00   116,966,015  

 1,112,910,362.00   344,977,111.00   767,933,251  
 40,491,971.00   25,565,436.00   14,926,535  

 795,676,802.00   699,191,402.00   96,485,400  
 515,839,946.00   515,839,551.00   395  
 121,052,929.00   120,336,360.00   716,569  
 50,421,847.00   43,959,468.00   6,462,379  

 319,493,812.00   165,815,479.00   153,678,333  
 3,855,161,138   2,697,992,261   1,157,168,877  

Net outstanding claim provision
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f) Reserving    
Insurance Contract Liabilities are created to cover this risk based on the actuarial valuation report.  
The table below sets out the concentration of risk associated with above mentioned products. Risk as at year end has been 
measured as insurance contract liabilities and disclosed as below:

Current Year Previous Year
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47. Financial Risk Management
The Company’s activities expose it to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk & Market Risk.

i) Credit Risk    
Credit risk is the risk of fi nancial loss as a result of the default or failure of third parties to meet their payment obligations 
to the Company and includes the risk of failure of fi nancial institutions with which the Company have placed deposits 
/ investment to meet its contractual obligations.  Thus, for an insurance contract, credit risk includes the risk that an 
insurer incurs a financial loss because a reinsurer defaults on its obligations under the reinsurance contract. 

The Company’s placement in debt instruments is primarily in fi xed deposits with commercial banks, development banks and 
other fi nancial institutions that are held at amortised cost of Rs. 3,700,574,200 (2080-81: Rs. 3,745,045,600) and in debentures 
issued by listed companies Rs. 288,564,518 (2080-81: Rs. 260,266,518) which are managed and monitored by the investment 
committee of the Company. The Company carries other fi nancial assets, such as balances with banks, advance to employees 
and other receivables. Bank deposits in fi xed and other short-term deposit accounts are held with commercial banks, 
development banks and other fi nancial institutions having a strong fi nancial position and considering the experience of the 
Company over time, the counter party risk attached to such assets is considered insignifi cant.

Advance to employees and other receivables are monitored on regular basis and is recovered on timely basis. Allowance 
for impairment is made for loss incurred assets if any. Credit risk to external reinsurers appears when insurance exposures 
are transferred by the Company to external reinsurance companies to mitigate insurance risks. Potential losses can arise 
due to non-recoverability of reinsurance receivables that are under reinsurance treaties in force. The Company has selected 
its reinsurers with a high credit rating and reviews their rating periodically. The information on the reinsurers is provided 
in 46.2 (d) above. The Company’s exposures to reinsurance risk are placed with highly rated reinsurers and considering 
the experience of the Company over time, the counter party risk attached to insurance receivables is minimal except 
for receivable of Rs. 7,729,222 (2080-81: Rs. 28,115,937). The amount due from Aviation Assets Management Ltd which was 
provisioned has been written back by collecting fi nal settlement realization after it’s liquidation. The company also has 
receivable of Rs. 7,154,982 (2080-81: Rs. 7,154,982) recoverable from local insurance company and Rs. 574,240 recoverable from 
foreign reinsurance company under facultative arrangement which has not been recovered. Allowance for impairment for 
these amounts has been made in the fi nancial statements.  The Company does not have a policy of providing credit facilities 
against issued policy document as per regulatory restrictions. However, in respect of agriculture insurance, 20% of the 
premium amount is recovered at the time of issue of the policy and balance 80% is guaranteed by the Government of Nepal 
as subsidy to the farmers which it paid to the Company through the Nepal Insurance Authority of Nepal. Similarly, in respect 
of insurance for COVID-19 and certain property insurance, 50% of the premium amount is recovered at the time of issue of 
the policy and balance 50% if guaranteed by the Government of Nepal, which is paid to the Company through the Nepal 
Insurance Authority of Nepal. Accordingly, the counter party risk attached to the amount due from policyholders is minimal.
The Company uses the incurred loss model for impairment of fi nancial assets. The detail of allowance for fi nancial assets 
recognised is as follows:

a) Company has credit risk policy which sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes credit risk for the 
Company. Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures/ breaches are reported to the Company’s risk committee. 
The policy is regularly reviewed for pertinence and for changes in the risk environment.   

Loss allowance has been recognised for receivable from reinsurance Company and local insurance company. 

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company’s exposure to credit risk:

Particulars 
Balance of loss allowance as at Ashad 31, 2081 7,729,222 169,032,870
Add: Transferred from business acquisition -  -   
Add: Loss allowance recognised during the year -  -   
Less: Loss allowance written back during the year -   (161,303,648)
Balance of loss allowance as at Ashadh 32, 2082 7,729,222 7,729,222

Add: Transferred from business acquisition -  - 
Add: Loss allowance recognised during the year -  - 
Less: Loss allowance written back during the year -   (161,303,648)
Balance of loss allowance as at Ashadh 32, 2082 7,729,222 7,729,222
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Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashadh 32, 2082

Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashadh 31, 2081

Measured at life-time expected credit losses
Reconciliation of Loss Allowance Provision

Particulars  Asset Gross Expected Expected Carrying  
  Group Carrying probability  Credit Amount
   Amount  of Default Losses After
      Provision
Credit Risk has not   Loss allowance  Reinsurance Asset  
signifi cantly increased  measured at 12 Fixed Deposit  
since initial recognition months expected  Debenture    
 credit losses Other Financial assets    
Credit Risk has  Loss allowance
signifi cantly  increased   measured at life-time   
and not acredit impaired expected credit losses             -    - - - -   
Credit Risk has signifi cantly
increased and credit impaired              -    - - - -

Particulars  Asset Gross Expected Expected Carrying  
  Group Carrying probability  Credit Amount
   Amount  of Default Losses After
      Provision
Credit Risk has not   Loss allowance  Reinsurance Asset  
signifi cantly increased  measured at 12 Fixed Deposit  
since initial recognition months expected  Debenture    
 credit losses Other Financial assets    
Credit Risk has  Loss allowance
signifi cantly  increased   measured at life-time   
and not acredit impaired expected credit losses             -    - - - -   
Credit Risk has signifi cantly
increased and credit impaired              -    - - - -

  
Particulars Measured at 12 months expected Credit Risk has Credit Risk has 
 credit losses signifi cantly signifi cantly
  increased and not increased and
  creadit impaired credit impaired
Loss Allowance on Ashadh 31, 2081  -     -     -   
Changes in loss allowances  -     -     -   
Write-offs  -     -     -   
Recoveries  -     -     -   
Loss Allowance on Ashadh 32, 2082  -     -     -   

b) Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentration of risk is avoided by entering 
into agreement with more than one party. At each reporting date, management performs an assessment of creditworthiness of 
reinsurers and updates the reinsurance purchase strategy, ascertaining suitable allowance for impairment.  
   
c) The company deals with only creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufficient collateral where appropriate, as a means 
of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. 

ii) Liquidity Risk   
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter diffi culty in meeting obligations associated with fi nancial instruments 
as they fall due. The Company maintains investment in accordance with the investment policy issued by the Nepal Insurance 
Authority of Nepal. The Company has also invested in highly marketable securities that can be liquidated in the event of 
unforeseen contingencies. Further, the investment committee reviews the liquidity level of investments and takes appropriate 
actions to improve the liquidity position.

Insurance receivables includes amount receivables from local insurance businesses under local facultative arrangement 
and from reinsurers under reinsurance arrangement for paid losses. These are recognised and measured at fair value of 
the considerations to be received. Insurance receivables also includes sundry debtors which are recognised when due and 
are initially measured at fair value on the consideration receivable. This receivable represents agriculture insurance policy, 
insurance for COVID-19 and certain property insurance which are subsidized by the government of Nepal to the extent of 50% 
to 80% of the premium invoiced amount. Collectability of premiums is reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Credit Risk has not   Loss allowance  Reinsurance Asset 
signifi cantly increased  measured at 12 Fixed Deposit 
since initial recognition months expected  Debenture    
 credit losses Other Financial assets   
Credit Risk has  Loss allowance
signifi cantly  increased   measured at life-time  
and not acredit impaired expected credit losses             -    - - - - 
Credit Risk has signifi cantly
increased and credit impaired              -    - - - -
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 Particulars  Current Year   Previous Year 
   
Equity Index - Increase By 1%*  6,844,359   5,284,021 
Equity Index - Decrease By 1%*  (6,844,359)  (5,284,021)

Current Year  
 

 6,844,359  
 (6,844,359) 

Maturity of Financial Liabilities:
The table below summarises the Company’s Financial Liabilities into Relevant Maturity Groupings based on their Contractual 
Maturities for all Financial Liabilities.       

iii) Market Risk
a1) Foreign Currency Risk Exposure
Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Company to experience volatility in the value of its assets, liabilities 
and solvency and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of changes in value between the currencies of its 
assets and liabilities and its reporting currency. The Company does not maintain foreign currency denominated 
assets in its investment portfolios and as such is not exposed to foreign exchange risk related to investments.       

The Company has no significant concentration of currency risk. The amount with reinsurer is settled in Nepali Rupee. 

b1) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fl ows of a fi nancial instrument will fl uctuate because of changes 
in market interest rates.       
The major interest rate risk that the Company is exposed to is the discount rate for determining insurance liabilities. 

b2) Interest Rate Sensitivity
Profi t or Loss is sensitive to changes in Interest Rate for Borrowings. A change in Market Interest Level by 1% which is reasonably 
possible based on Management’s Assessment would have the following effect on the Profi t After Tax.  

c1) Equity Price Risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
equity prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific 
to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company has invested in equity securities and the exposure is equity securities price risk from investments held by the 
Company and classified in the statement of fi nancial position as fair value through OCI/ fair value through profi t or loss.

c2) Sensitivity       
The table below summarises the impact of increase/decrease of the index in the Company’s equity and impact on OCI/ profi t 
or loss for the period. The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had increased/ decreased by 1% with all 
other variables held constant, and that all the Company’s equity instruments moved in line with the index.

* Other components of equity would increase/decrease as a result of gains/ (losses) on equity securities classifi ed as fair 
value through other comprehensive income.

Particulars Upto 1 year 1 to 5 years More than Upto 1 year 1 year to 5 year  More than
   5 years   5 year
Borrowings       
Other Financial Liabilities  197,475,910   440,000    212,113,341   440,000   -   
Total Financial Liabilities  197,475,910   440,000    212,113,341   440,000   -   

 Particulars  Current Year   Previous Year 
   
Interest Rate - Increase By 1%* -     -   
Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%* -     -

* Holding all other Variable Constant

Current Year Previous Year
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48. Operational Risk       
Operational Risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss, or damaged reputation resulting from inadequate or failed internal 
processes, people and systems or external events. When controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to 
reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to fi nancial loss. The Company cannot expect to eliminate all 
operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the 
Company is able to manage the risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties, access controls, authorisation and 
reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, including the use of internal audit. Business risks 
such as changes in environment, technology and the industry are monitored through the Company’s strategic planning and 
budgeting process.

49. Climate Related Risk       
The Company acknowledges the increasing signifi cance of climate change and its potential impacts on the insurance industry. 
Climate risk encompasses a spectrum of challenges, including physical risks arising from extreme weather events, as well as 
transition risks associated with the global shift towards a low-carbon economy. 

50. Capital Management       
The Company’s objectives when managing Capital are to:       
a) Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and 
benefi ts for other stakeholders, and       
b) Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.      
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, 
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

Regulatory minimum paid up capital       
Non-Life insurance companies were required by the Directive of Nepal Insurance Authority to attain a stipulated minimum 
paid up capital of NPR 2.5 billion by mid-July 2023. As on the reporting date, the company’s paid up capital is NPR 
25,001,574. 

a. Physical Risks:
The Company recognizes the potential for increased frequency and severity of extreme weather events, such as fl oods, 
storms, and other climatic disruptions. These events may pose a threat to the insured assets and impact on the overall 
claims experience. The Company has implemented active risk assessment and management practices to identify, assess, and 
mitigate the physical risks associated with climate change.

b. Transition Risks:
In response to the global transition towards a low-carbon economy, the Company is cognizant of the evolving regulatory 
landscape and market dynamics. Changes in regulations, policies, and market preferences related to climate change could 
affect the valuation of certain assets and liabilities, impact the Company’s fi nancial performance. The Company remains 
committed to staying informed about emerging developments and adapting business strategies accordingly.

c. Risk Mitigation Strategies:
As part of the Company’s commitment to sustainable business practices, the Company is actively integrating climate risk 
considerations into its underwriting, investment, and risk management processes.

d. Disclosure of Financial Impact:
At present, the Company does not anticipate a material fi nancial impact directly resulting from climate risk. However, the 
Company recognizes the dynamic nature of climate-related challenges and continues to assess and disclose any material 
changes that may arise in the future. 



182

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

Particulars  Current Year   Previous Year 
Profi t For the Year  455,880,754   502,463,915 
Less: Dividend on Preference Shares  -   - 
Profi t For the Year used for Calculating Basic Earning per Share  455,880,754   502,463,915 
Add: Interest saving on Convertible Bonds  -    -
Profi t For the Year used for Calculating Diluted Earning per Share  455,880,754   502,463,915 
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year 
For Basic Earning per Share  25,001,574   25,001,574 
Adjustments for calculation of Diluted Earning per Share:   
i) Dilutive Shares  -   - 
ii) Options  -  - 
iii) Convertible Bonds  - -   
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the 
Year for Diluted Earning Per Share  25,001,574   25,001,574 
Nominal Value of Equity Shares  100   100 
Basic Earnings Per Share  18.23   20.10 
Diluted Earnings Per Share  18.23   20.10 
Proposed Bonus Shares   
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the 
Year for Restated Earning Per Share  
Nominal Value of Equity Shares   
Restated Basic Earnings Per Share   
Restated Diluted Earnings Per Share

51. Earnings Per Share (EPS)

52. Operational Segment      
Segment information is presented in respect of the Company’s business segments. Management of the Company has identifi ed 
portfolio as business segment and the Company’s internal reporting structure is also based on portfolio. Performance is 
measured based on segment profi t as management believes that it is most relevant in evaluating the results of segment 
relative to other entities that operate within these industries.  

Segment asset is disclosed below based on total of all asset for each business segment. 

The Company operates predominantly in Nepal and accordingly, the Management of the Company is of the view that the 
fi nancial information by geographical segments of the Company’s operation is not necessary to be presented. Business 
Segments of the Company’s are:” 
         
• Property     • Micro         
• Motor      • Aviation        
• Marine      • Cattle and Crop        
• Engineering     • Miscellaneous

 Particulars  Current Year   Previous Year 
(i) Dividends recognised   
Final cash dividend for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2081 of NPR 8.75/- 
(Ashadh 31, 2080 - NPR 6.37/-) per fully paid share    
  218,763,773   146,607,780 
Final bonus Share for the year ended Ashadh 31, 2081 of Nil 
(Ashadh 31, 2080 - NPR 8.63/-) per fully paid share  -     198,622,400 
(ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period   
In addition to the above dividends, for the year ended the Board of Directors 
have recommended the payment of a fi nal Cash Dividend of NPR 8/- per 
fully paid equity share (Including Tax). This proposed dividend is subject to 
the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.  200,012,592   218,763,773 

Current Year  
 

 
 218,763,773  

 -    
 

 200,012,592  
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Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
Segment Assets  2,697,992,261.00   2,847,849,366 
Goodwill and Intangible Assets  17,145,750   18,868,120 
Property, Plant and Equipment  1,175,836,559   1,051,365,598 
Investment Properties  -     -   
Deferred Tax Assets  -     12,531,846 
Investments in Subsidiaries  -     -   
Investments in Associates  -     210,161,858 
Investments  5,242,231,416   4,818,274,239 
Loans  -     -   
Current Tax Assets (Net)  188,503,919   75,341,583 
Insurance Receivables  523,215,128   457,156,412 
Other Assets  76,107,083   85,042,482 
Other Financial Assets  114,113,235   86,397,271 
Cash and Cash Equivalents  145,744,832   175,773,574 
Total Assets  10,180,890,183   9,838,762,349 

  Current Year 
 2,697,992,261.00  

 17,145,750  
 1,175,836,559  

 -    
 -    
 -    
 -    

 5,242,231,416  
 -    

 188,503,919  
 523,215,128  
 76,107,083  
 114,113,235  

 145,744,832  
 10,180,890,183  

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
 Segmental Profi t  1,115,239,264.67   802,607,542 
 Add: Income from Investment & Loans  219,223,683   344,043,010 
 Add: Net Realised Gains/ (Losses)  4,531,045   361,558,301 
 Add: Unallocable Other Income  9,163,073   174,779,042 
 Add: Share of Profi t of Associates  -   11,214,458 
 Less: Depreciation and Amortization  (33,486,253)  (20,513,155)
 Less: Unallocable Corporate expenses  (717,082,375)  (780,050,478)
 Less: Impairment Losses  -     -   
 Less: Finance Cost  (866,890)  (1,446,864)
 Profi t Before Tax  596,721,547   892,191,856 

Particulars   Current Year  Previous Year
Segment Liabilities  3,855,161,138.00   3,998,842,065 
Provisions  8,161,536   1,681,849 
Deferred Tax Liabilities  54,705,673   -   
Current Tax Liabilities (Net)  -     -   
Insurance Payables  580,005,198   358,680,424 
Other Financial Liabilities  273,566,694   340,693,164 
Other Liabilities  197,915,910   212,553,341 
Total Liabilities  4,969,516,149   4,912,450,843 

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

c) Reconciliation of Segmental Profi t with Statement of Profi t or Loss

E) Reconciliation of Liabilities

d) Reconciliation of Assets
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HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

53. Related Party Disclosure       
(a) Identify Related Parties       
Holding Company:        
The company does not have any holding company.       
Subsidiaries:       
The company does not have any Subsidiaries.       
Associates:       
The company does not have any associates.       
Fellow Subsidiaries:       
The company does not have any Fellow Subsidiaries.       
Key Management Personnel:       
KMPs of the Himalayan Everest Insurance Ltd. includes members of Board of directors and Chief Executive Offi cer.  

Name of Key Management Personnel Designation    
Mr. Mahendra Krishna Shrestha Chairman (From Chaitra 29, 2079)   
Mr. Vijit Krishna Shrestha Director (From Chaitra 29, 2079)   
Ms. Avilasha Panth Sharma Director (from Jestha 10, 2080)    
Mr. Hem Raj Thapa Director (From Chaitra 29, 2079)   
Mr. Ajaya Ratna Sthapit Public Director (From Chaitra 29, 2079)   
Mr. Bijay Kumar Pant Independent Director (From Baisakh 6, 2080)  
Ms. Anju Shrestha Chief Executive Offi cer (From Ashwin 18, 2081)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year  
Short-term employee benefi ts  -     -   
Post-employment benefi ts  -     -   
Other long-term benefi ts  -     -   
Termination benefi ts to CEO  -     7,462,500 
Board meeting allowance  5,130,757   3,280,628 
Total  5,130,757   10,743,128 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year  
Annual salary and allowances  8,980,974.40   10,147,838 
Performance based allowances 
i) Employee Bonus  1,089,160   1,809,073 
ii) Benefi ts as per prevailing provisions  -    -
iii) Incentives  -     2,901,191 
Insurance related benefi ts 
i) Life Insurance  -     -   
ii) Accident Insurance   
iii) Health Insurance (including family members)  66,611   64,462 
Total  10,136,745   14,922,564 

(b)  Key Management Personnel Compensation:

Payment to Chief Executive Offi cer (CEO)
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 Particular Holding Subsidiaries Associates Fellow Key Total 
 Company   Subsidiaries Managerial  
      Personnel
 Premium Earned       
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)       
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Commission Income      
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)       
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Rental Income      
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)       
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Interest Income      
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)       
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment      
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)       
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment      
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)       
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Premium Paid      
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)       
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Commission Expenses      
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)       
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Dividend      
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)   -     -     -     -      19,032,099  -   
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)   -     -     999,970   -      -   
 Meeting Fees       
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)       5,130,757  
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)   -     -     -     -     3,280,628  
 Allowances to Directors       
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)       
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)   -     -     -     -     -     -   
 Others (to be specifi ed)      
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)       
 For The Year Ended  Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)   -     -     -     -     -     -   

For The Year Ended  Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)       

For The Year Ended  Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)       

For The Year Ended  Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)       

For The Year Ended  Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)       5,130,757 

For The Year Ended  Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)       

For The Year Ended  Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)       

For The Year Ended  Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)       

For The Year Ended  Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)       

For The Year Ended  Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)       

For The Year Ended  Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)       

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

(c)  Related Party Transactions:
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 Particular Holding Subsidiaries Associates Fellow Key Total 
 Company   Subsidiaries Managerial  
      Personnel
Receivables including Reinsurance Receivables      
As at Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)    -      
As at Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)  -     -     210,161,858   -     -    210,161,858
Other Receivables (to be Specifi ed)      
As at Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)      
As at Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)  -     -     -     -     -     -   
Payables including Reinsurance Payables      
As at Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)      
As at Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)  -     -     -     -     -     -   
Other Payables (to be Specifi ed)      
As at Ashadh 32, 2082  (July 16, 2025)      
As at Ashadh 31, 2081  (July 15, 2024)  -     -     -     -     -     -   

Particulars  Current Year   Previous Year 
Property, Plant and Equipment  -     -   
Investment Properties  -     -   
Goodwill & Intangible Assets  -     -   
Investment  -     47,550,659 
Total  -     47,550,659 

Future Minimum Lease Payments  Current Year   Previous Year 
i) Not Later than 1 year  2,481,857   3,057,689 
ii) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  2,755,857   6,467,883 
iii) Later than 5 years  1,266,979   1,777,086 

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

(d)  Related Party Balances:

54. Leases     
Leases as Lessee      
Operating Leases:      
The Company has not entered into any lease agreement i.e. rental agreements to be classifi ed as operating leases.  
Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below:      
The identifi ed non- cancellable leases have not been amortized. The undiscounted maturities of lease liabilities over the 
remaining lease term are as follows:      

55. Capital Commitments     
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for: No capital Commitments has been made
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Particulars  Current Year   Previous Year 
Reinsurance Receivables  -     -   
Investments in equity  -     -   
Fixed Deposits  -     -   
Property and equipment  -     -   
Others (to be Specifi ed)  -     -   
Total  -     -   

Particulars  Current Year   Previous Year 
Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts   
a) Income Tax  32,644,124   32,644,124 
b) Indirect Taxes  -     -   
c) Claim Petitions  10,600,000   7,009,288 
c) Other (to be Specifi ed)  -     -   
Total  43,244,124   39,653,412 

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
As at Ashad End, 2082 (July 16, 2025)

57. Events occuring after Balance Sheet
There are no such material non-adjusting events after Balance Sheet date to be disclosed. 

58. Assets Pledged as Security (only if pledged)
The carrying amount of assets pledged as security are: Assets has not been pledged as security.

59. Corporate Social Responsibility
As per the regulatory requirement, 1% of profi t after tax before considering deferred tax charge for the year has been 
apportioned. The total CSR amount utilised from the CSR Reserve for the year 2081.82 is NPR. 6595080.

60. Miscellaneous
(i) All amounts are in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated.      
(ii) All fi gures are in the Nearest Rupee & Rounded off.   

56. Contingent Liabilities
In the opinion of the Directors and the Company’s lawyers, pending litigation against the Company will not have a material 
impact on the reported fi nancial results or future operations of the Company. All pending litigation for claims have been 
evaluated and adequate provisions have been made in the fi nancial statements.
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Disclosures on Quality of Assets and Capital Resources:

Quality of Assets
Asset Quality
The quality of an insurance company’s assets is a critical measure of its fi nancial stability and its ability to meet 
policyholder claims. HEI maintains a well-diversifi ed portfolio of investments and other assets, emphasizing 
liquidity, prudent risk management, and compliance with regulatory requirements. Regular monitoring and risk 
assessments ensure that assets continue to perform reliably, supporting both operational needs and long-term 
commitments.

Asset Composition
HEI’s total assets reached NPR 10.18 billion in 2081/82, refl ecting steady growth over the past three years. 
Investments and reinsurance assets form the core of the asset base, collectively accounting for approximately 
78% of total assets. Other asset categories include property and equipment, cash, insurance receivables, fi nancial 
assets, and intangible assets. Key details are summarized below (in NPR):

Investments include fi xed deposits, debentures, equities, and other instruments, selected to balance return 
generation with liquidity and risk mitigation. Reinsurance assets represent amounts recoverable from reinsurers 
against unexpired premiums, outstanding claims, and actuarial reserves. The company regularly evaluates its 
investment performance and maintains confi dence in the stability and expected returns of its portfolio.

HEI’s assets are primarily held in Nepal, with reinsurance receivables from international reinsurers. All assets 
remain largely unencumbered, ensuring operational fl exibility and safeguarding policyholder interests.

Capital Resources
A strong capital base underpins HEI’s capacity to manage risks, meet liabilities, and pursue growth opportunities. 
The company maintains a conservative capital policy to ensure solvency above regulatory minima, while also 
supporting operational effi ciency and strategic investments.

Shareholders’ Fund and Solvency
HEI’s total equity grew to NPR 5.21 billion in 2081/82, up from NPR 4.93 billion in 2080/81. The composition of 
equity refl ects a mix of share capital, reserves, retained earnings, and other equity contributions. Solvency 
remains robust, with the company maintaining a solvency margin of 438.10% in 2081/82, signifi cantly higher than 
the minimum requirement of 130%. This demonstrates the company’s ability to absorb potential losses and 
continue underwriting risks confi dently.

Assets 2081/82 2080/81 2079/80
Goodwill & Intangible Assets 17,145,750 18,868,120 20,992,187
Property and Equipment 1,175,836,559 1,051,365,598 316,695,727
Deferred Tax Assets - 12,531,846 90,362,723
Investment in Associates - 210,161,858 -
Investments 5,242,231,416 4,818,274,239 4,654,708,234
Reinsurance Assets 2,697,992,261 2,847,849,366 3,168,415,309
Current Tax Assets 188,503,919 75,341,583 -
Insurance Receivables 523,215,128 457,156,412 1,154,516,677
Other Assets 76,107,083 85,042,482 48,959,553
Other Financial Assets 114,113,235 86,397,271 151,561,392
Cash and Cash Equivalent 145,744,832 175,773,574 207,456,354
Total Assets 10,180,890,183 9,838,762,349 9,813,668,156
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Return on Equity (ROE)
The company’s ROE for 2081/82 stood at 8.75%, refl ecting consistent profi tability while balancing growth and risk management. 
ROE for the previous two years was 10.20% and 10.37%, respectively.

Dividend Policy
Based on its strong capital and solvency position, HEI has proposed an 8% cash dividend for 2081/82. Previous years’ dividends 
included 8.75% cash in 2080/81, and a combination of 6.37% cash and 8.63% bonus shares in 2079/80. This demonstrates HEI’s 
commitment to returning value to shareholders while maintaining fi nancial stability.

Equity Component 2081/82 2080/81 2079/80
Share Capital 2,500,157,400 2,500,157,400 2,301,535,000
Special Reserves 1,913,190,116 1,667,570,965 1,410,503,655
Catastrophe Reserves 82,195,510 69,914,552 57,061,186
Retained Earnings 301,556,975 304,786,863 226,482,875
Other Equity 414,274,032 383,881,726 294,796,842
Total Equity 5,211,374,034 4,926,311,506 4,290,379,558
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Grievance Handling Mechanism:
Himalayan Everest Insurance (HEI) is committed to ensuring that grievances and complaints from its stakeholders—
including customers, investors, and partners—are addressed promptly, fairly, and transparently. A dedicated 
Nodal Offi cer has been appointed to manage the grievance handling process effectively.

Receipt of Grievance
Stakeholders may submit their grievances through multiple convenient channels:
• In-Person: At HEI branch offi ces and the head offi ce.
• Online: Via HEI’s offi cial website grievance form.
• Telephone: Dedicated customer service helpline.
• Letter: Written complaints to the registered offi ce address.
• Email: To the designated grievance email ID.

Nodal Offi cer reviews the complaint to determine its nature and scope. Relevant details are verifi ed, and the 
grievance is forwarded to the concerned department—such as Claims, Underwriting, fi nance or Marketing—for 
further investigation.

If further investigation is required, the Nodal Offi cer ensures a fair and unbiased inquiry into the matter.
Upon completion, a resolution is proposed and communicated to the stakeholder through appropriate channels 
(phone, email, or letter).

The grievance is formally closed once the stakeholder confi rms satisfaction with the resolution.

If a grievance is not resolved within the expected timeframe, it may be escalated to - 
• Senior Management: Direct intervention for high-priority or complex issues.

Roles and responsibilities
Chief Executive Offi cer (CEO): 
Oversees grievance handling policies, ensures instructions are provided for resolution, and communicates 
outcomes to stakeholders.

Senior Management / Department Heads: 
Provide necessary facts, details, and support to investigate grievances effectively.

Grievance Offi cer / Nodal Offi cer: 
Receives, assesses, investigates, and tracks grievances; proposes resolutions and ensures timely communication 
and record-keeping.



198

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 



199

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

!_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLsf dfWodaf6 hf]lvdf+sg tyf bfjL e'QmfgL k|s[ofnfO{ cem k|efjsf/L agfO{g]5 .

@_ lads tyf k'gla{ds;“usf] lx;fa ldnfg ljj/0f adf]lhd n]gfb]gf km/kmf/s ug{sf nflu cfjZos sbd rfNg] Joj:yf ul/g]5 .

#_ g]kfn ladf k|flws/0faf6 hf/L hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;DalGw dfu{bz{gsf] clwgdf /xL hf]lvd Joj:yfkgsf] sfo{ ul/g]5 .

$_ NFRS-17 Insurance Contracts nfu' ug{ k/fdz{bftf 5gf]6 ;DkGg eO{ lghsf] lgo'lQm :jLs[lt g]kfn ladf k|flws/0faf6 k|fKt ePsf] 5 . NFRS-17  
 Insurance Contracts sfof{Gjogsf] cfjZos sfo{ut of]hgf tof/ ul/ nfu' ul/g]5 .

%_ cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ sf] rf}yf] q}dfl;s cjlwsf] ljQLo ljj/0f / jflif{s ljQLo ljj/0fsf] Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profi t  
 or Loss Statement tyf Other Comprehensive Income ljj/0fsf] ljleGg lzif{sx?df bz k|ltzt eGbf a9L km/s kg{ uPsf] sf/0f / cfwf/ ;lxtsf] 
 hfgsf/L jflif{s ljQLo ljj/0fdf /fVg] Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5 . ;fy}, k|flws/0fsf] lgb{]zg adf]lhd cfly{s jif{ @)*@÷*# df k|fKt lgb{]zg sfo{fGjog ug{ 
 cfjZos sbd rfNg] Joj:yf ul/g]5 .

^_ ladssf] aflif{s k|ltj]bgdf k|flws/0faf6 ldlt @)*!÷)&÷!# ut] hf/L kl/kq -g]=la=k|f= (% -@)*!÷)*@_ r g+= @)$)–lj=lj=zf !_ adf]lhdsf a'“bfx? 
 ;dfj]z ul/g]5 .

&_ ladssf] n]vfkl/Ifsx?n] cf}+NofPsf s}lkmotx?nfO{ bf]xf]l/g glbg cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ ;'b[9 ug{] Joj:yf ul/g]5 .

*_ k|flws/0faf6 cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷*@ sf] ljQLo ljj/0f :jLs[t ePsf] ^) lbg leq jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DkGg ul/g]5 .

>L g]kfn ladf k|flws/0faf6 cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷)*@ sf] ljQLo ljj/0f :jLs[lt k|bfg 

x'“bfsf zt{x?sf ;DaGwdf ;+rfns ;ldltsf] hafkmM



200

ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 ANNUAL REPORT FY 2081-82 

HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Statement of Variances of Quarterly Results and Audited Statement of Financial Position
For Period 16th July, 2024 - 16th July, 2025 (For the Year Ended Ashad 2082)

 Particulars  Amount Per   Amount as Per   Variance Variance  Remarks
 Quarterly Audited Financial Amount %
 Statetement Statement
Assets 
Goodwill & Intangible Assets   20,293,120   17,145,750  (3,147,369)  (16%)

Property and Equipment   1,193,558,836   1,175,836,559  (17,722,278)  (1%)
Investment Properties   -     -     -    -
Deferred Tax Assets   12,531,847   -    (12,531,847)  (100%)

Investment in Subsidiaries   -     -     -    -
Investment in Associates   210,161,858   -    (210,161,858)  (100%)

Investments   4,972,080,712   5,242,231,416   270,150,704  5%
Loans   -     -     -    -
Reinsurance Assets   3,165,921,400   2,697,992,261  (467,929,139)  (15%) 

Current Tax Assets    36,891,059   188,503,919   151,612,860  411%

Insurance Receivables   570,409,869   523,215,128  (47,194,741)  (8%)
Other Assets   99,434,508   76,107,083  (23,327,425)  (23%)

Other Financial Assets   115,766,059   114,113,235  (1,652,824)  (1%)
Cash and Cash Equivalent   122,229,000   145,744,832   23,515,832  19%

Total Assets   10,519,278,268   10,180,890,183  (338,388,085)  (3%)
Equity & Liabilities      
Equity      
Share Capital   2,500,157,400   2,500,157,400   -    0% 
Share Application Money 
Pending Allotment   -     -     -    - 
Share Premium   -     -     -    - 
Special Reserves   1,933,738,730   1,913,190,116  (20,548,614)  (1%) 
Catastrophe Reserves   83,222,941   82,195,510  (1,027,431)  (1%) 
Retained Earnings   333,559,104   301,556,975  (32,002,128)  (10%)  

Other Equity   408,218,705   414,274,032   6,055,327  1% 
Total Equity   5,258,896,879   5,211,374,034  (47,522,846)  (1%)
Liabilities     
Provisions   6,382,524   8,161,536   1,779,012  28%

Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities   4,333,407,497   3,855,161,138  (478,246,359)  (11%)

Deferred Tax Liabilities   -     54,705,673   54,705,673  -
Insurance Payable   382,392,689   580,005,198   197,612,509  52%
Current Tax Liabilities   -     -     -    -
Borrowings   -     -     -    -
Other Liabilities   316,643,353   273,566,694  (43,076,659)  (14%)

Other Financial Liabilities   221,555,326   197,915,910  (23,639,416)  (11%)

Total Liabilities   5,260,381,389   4,969,516,149  (290,865,240)  (6%)
Total Equity and Liabilities   10,519,278,268   10,180,890,183  (338,388,085)  (3%)

afxo n]vf kl/If0f adf]lhd x|f;s§L 
vr{ ;dfof]hgsf sf/0f

aflif{s ljQLo ljj/0fdf Tax sf] 
Computation sf] sf/0f

aflif{s ljQLo ljj/0fdf Associates
sf] n]vf+sg x6fOPsf] sf/0f

aflif{s ljQLo ljj/0fdf Tax sf] 
Computation sf] sf/0f

Actuary d'Nof+sg adf]lhd sld;g 
/sd 8Lkm8{ ul/Psf] sf/0fn]

a}+sdf /x]sf] d'2tL lgIf]k cjlw ;dfKt 
eO{ a}+s df}Hbft n]vf+sg ePsf sf/0fn]

Actuary d'Nof+sg adf]lhd yk 
Joj:yfsf sf/0fn]

;+lrt labf afktsf] k|f]le;g /sd 
Actuary d'Nof+sg adf]lhd ;dfof]hg 
ul/Psf] sf/0fn]

Actuary d'Nof+sg adf]lhd sld;g 
/sd 8Lkm8{ ul/Psf] sf/0fn]

afx\o n]vfkl/If0f kZrft sd{rf/L 
af]g; Joj:yf 36]sf sf/0fn]

rf}yf] q}dfl;s tyf t]>f] kIf k'nsf] 
clGtd lx;fa kZrft lngfb]gf /sd tyf 
Actuary d'Nof+sg adf]lhd n]vf+sgsf 
sf/0fn]

rf}yf] q}dfl;s tyf t]>f] kIf k'nsf]
clGtd lx;fa kZrft lngfb]gf /sd tyf 
Actuary d'Nof+sg adf]lhd n]vf+sgsf 
sf/0fn]
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 Particulars  Amount Per   Amount as Per   Variance Variance  Remarks
 Quarterly Audited Financial Amount %
 Statetement Statement
Assets 
Gross Earned Premiums  4,095,259,700   4,910,110,704   814,851,004  19.90%

Premiums Ceded   (2,074,194,374)  (2,996,733,380)  (922,539,006) 44.48%

Net Earned Premiums  2,021,065,326   1,913,377,324   (107,688,002) (5.33%)
Commission Income  438,795,776   544,552,849   105,757,073  24.10%

Other Direct Income  -     -   -  -

Income from Investments & Loans  216,204,992   219,223,683   3,018,691  1.40%
Net Gain/ (Loss) on Fair Value Changes  -     -   -  -
Net Realised Gains/ (Losses)  1,237,657   4,531,045   3,293,388  266.10%

Other Income  10,199,496   9,163,073   (1,036,423) (10.16%)

Total Income  2,687,503,246   2,690,847,973   3,344,727  0.12%
Expenses:    -  
Gross Claims Paid  1,895,792,105   1,958,921,202   63,129,097  3.33%
Claims Ceded  (929,926,174)  (883,556,159)  46,370,015  (4.99%)
Gross Change in Contract 
Liabilities  165,541,642   480,103,271   314,561,629  190.02%

Change in Contract Liabities 
Ceded to Reinsurers  (17,883,618)  (316,635,322)  (298,751,704) 1670.53%

Net Claims Incurred  1,113,523,955   1,238,832,992   125,309,037  11.25%

Commission Expenses  65,199,813   84,728,455   19,528,642  29.95%

Service Fees  16,444,444   14,821,168   (1,623,276) (9.87%)
Other Direct Expenes  2,623,343   4,308,293   1,684,950  64.23%

Employee Benefi ts Expenses  435,770,516   420,679,388   (15,091,128) (3.46%)
Depreciation and Amortization 
Expenses  27,524,445   33,486,253   5,961,808  21.66%
Impairment Losses  -     -   -  -
Other Operating Expenses  285,850,506   296,402,987   10,552,481  3.69%
Finance Cost  1,133,311   866,890   (266,421) (23.51%)

Total Expenses  1,948,070,334   2,094,126,426   146,056,092  7.50%
Net Profi t/(Loss) For The Year 
Before Share of Net Profi ts of 
Associates Accounted for Using 
Equity Method and Tax  739,432,912   596,721,547   (142,711,365) (19.30%)
Share of Net Profi t of Associates 
accounted using Equity Method  -     -   -  -
Profi t Before Tax  739,432,912   596,721,547   (142,711,365) (19.30%)
Income Tax Expense  207,097,381   140,840,793   (66,256,588) (31.99%)
Net Profi t/(Loss) For The Year  532,335,531   455,880,754   (76,454,777) (14.36%)
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HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Statement of Variances of Quarterly Results and Audited Profi t or Loss Statement
For Period 16th July, 2024 - 16th July, 2025 (For the Year Ended Ashad 2082)
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zfvf sfof{nosf] kl/dflh{t 3/ ef8f ;Demf}tf 
adf]lhd lnh n]vf+sg ug{' gk/]sf] sf/0fn]

dfly pNn]lvt sf/0fx?

dfly pNn]lvt sf/0fx?

dfly pNn]lvt sf/0fx?

dfly pNn]lvt sf/0fx?

aflif{s ljQLo ljj/0fsf nflu Actuary
dfkm{t d'Nof+sg eO{ cfPsf] lx;fa 
adf]lhd u0fgf ul/Psf] sf/0fn]

aflif{s ljQLo ljj/0fsf nflu Actuary
dfkm{t d'Nof+sg eO{ cfPsf] lx;fa 
adf]lhd u0fgf ul/Psf] sf/0fn]

aflif{s ljQLo ljj/0fsf nflu Actuary 
dfkm{t d'Nof+sg eO{ cfPsf] lx;fa 
adf]lhd u0fgf ul/Psf] sf/0fn]

aflif{s ljQLo ljj/0fdf z]o/ lalqm afkt 
k|fKt /sdnfO{ SOCI / SOPL dfkm{t 
u0fgf ul/Psf] sf/0fn]
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HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Statement of Variances of Quarterly Results and Audited Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For Period 16th July, 2024 - 16th July, 2025 (For the Year Ended Ashad 2082)

 Particulars  Amount Per   Amount as Per   Variance Variance  Remarks
 Quarterly Audited Financial Amount %
 Statetement Statement
 Net Profi t/(Loss) For the Year   532,335,531   455,880,754  (76,454,776)  (14.36%)
    

 Other Comprehensive Income     
 a) Items that are or may 
 be Reclassifi ed to Profi t or 
 Loss 
 Changes in Fair Value 
 of FVOCI Debt Instruments     
 Cash Flow Hedge - Effective 
 Portion of Changes in 
 Fair Value 
 Exchange differences on 
 translation of Foreign Operation     
 Share of other comprehensive 
 income of associates accounted 
 for using the equity method     
 Income Tax Relating to 
 Above Items     
 Reclassifi ed to Profi t or Loss     
    
 b) Items that will not be 
 Reclassifi ed to Profi t or Loss     
 Changes in fair value of FVOCI 
 Equity Instruments   50,631,309   93,677,221   43,045,911  85.02%

 Revaluation of Property and 
 Equipment/ Goodwill & 
 Intangible Assets    -     
 Remeasurement of 
 Post-Employment Benefi t 
 Obligations    -     
 Share of other comprehensive 
 income of associates 
 accounted for using the 
 equity method    -     
 Income Tax Relating to 
 Above Items   (28,103,165)   
Total Other Comprehensive 

 Income For the Year, 
 Net of Tax    65,574,056   
 Total Comprehensive 
 Income  For the Year, 
 Net of Tax   582,966,840   521,454,810  (61,512,030)  (10.55%)

afxo n]vf kl/If0f kZrft v'b gfkmf 
/sd PsLg eO{ ;f]lx adf]lhd n]vf+sg 
ePsf sf/0fn]

bf]>f] ahf/df ;'lrs[t nufgLsf] lx;fa 
d'Nof+sg ;dfof]hg ul/ n]vf+sg ePsf 
sf/0fn]

dfly pNn]lvt sf/0fx?
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HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
Comparative Statement of Solvency Balance Sheet and NFRS based Financial Statement
For Period 16th July, 2024 - 16th July, 2025 (For the Year Ended Ashad 2082)

Particulars  Financial  Solvency  Difference Remarks   
 Statement Balance Sheet
Assets 
Goodwill  -      -    
Deferred acquisition costs  -      -    
Intangible assets  17,145,750    17,145,750  Intangible Assets does not qualify  
    for Solvency.
Deferred tax assets  -      -    
Pension benefi t surplus  -     -     -    
Property, plant & equipment 
held for own use  1,175,836,559   1,180,226,066  -4,389,507  Furniture & fi xtures, Leasehold  
    improvements and ROU Assets 
    not considered for Solvency.  
    Building has been considered at  
    latest market value for solvency  
    purpose.
Investments (other than 
replicating unit portion index/
unit-linked contracts)  5,242,231,416   5,222,118,671   20,112,745  
Investments in properties 
(other than for own use)  -     -     -    
Investment in subsidiaries  -     -     -    
Investment in associates  -     -     -    
Equities  1,133,124,320   1,133,124,320   -    
Equities - listed in stock exchange
licensed by SEBON  564,467,559   564,467,559   -    
Equities - listed in stock exchange 
other than licensed by SEBON  -     -     -    
Equities - unlisted  568,656,761   568,656,761   -    
Bonds  288,564,518   313,687,395  -25,122,877  
Government Bonds  -     -     -    
Corporate Bonds  288,564,518   313,687,395  -25,122,877  
Fixed-income bonds with no 
option  288,564,518   313,687,395  -25,122,877  Present value of the future cash 
    fl ows of debentures using RFR  
    rate as published by NIA.
Floating rate notes  -     -     -    
Other bonds with embedded 
interest rate derivatives  -     -     -    
Structured notes  -     -     -    
Collateralised securities  -     -     -    
Collective Investments 
Undertakings  119,968,378   119,968,378   -    
Derivatives  -     -     -    
Deposits other than cash 
equivalents  3,700,574,200   3,655,338,578   45,235,622  Present value of the future cash 
    fl ows of fi xed deposits using RFR  
    rate as published by NIA.
Other investments  -     -     -    
Loans and mortgages  -     -     -    
Loans on policies  -     -     -    
Other loans with collateral or 
guarantees   -     -     -    
Other loans without collateral 
or guarantees  -     -     -    
Assets replicating the unit portion 
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Particulars  Financial  Solvency  Difference Remarks   
 Statement Balance Sheet
of index/unit-linked contracts  -     -     -    
Reinsurance recoverables from:  2,984,174,995   2,687,972,338   296,202,657  
Non-life technical reserves
(after risk correction)  2,697,992,261   2,480,378,906   217,613,355  Reinsurance technical reserves  
    risk corrected based on the  
    credit quality of the reinsurers,  
    including nullifi cation of 
    identifi ed unrated reinsurers.
Life excluding index-linked and 
unit-linked technical reserves 
(after risk correction)  -     -     -    
Life index-linked and unit-linked
technical reserves 
(after risk correction)  -     -     -    
Deposits to cedants 
(related to accepted reinsurance)  -     -     -    
Reinsurance receivables  286,182,734   207,593,433   78,589,301  Credit risk adjustment for 
    reinsurer's receivable balances  
    based on their credit rating.
Current tax assets (net)  186,098,984   186,098,984   -    
Insurance, coinsurance and 
intermediaries receivables  240,955,016   213,686,100   27,268,916  
Receivables from insurers other
than coinsurance  94,524,450   75,078,626   19,445,824  Credit risk adjustment for 
    facultative receivable balances  
    from insurers based on their  
    credit rating.
Receivables from coinsurance/pools  144,684,211   138,607,474   6,076,737  Credit risk adjustment for 
    co-insurance/pool receivable  
    balances based on their credit  
    rating.
Receivables from intermediaries  1,746,355   -     1,746,355  Credit risk adjustment for 
    unrated broker's receivable 
    balances.
Own shares (held directly)  -     -     -    
Amounts due in respect own equity 
items called up but not yet paid in  -     -     -    
Cash and cash equivalents  145,744,832   145,744,832   -    
Any other assets, not elsewhere 
shown  190,220,318   173,199,836   17,020,482  Out of all other assets, prepaid  
    expenses and deferred 
    reinsurance commission and  
    agent's commission were 
    nullifi ed for solvency.
Total assets  10,182,407,870   9,809,046,827   373,361,043  
LIABILITIES (WITHOUT transitionals)    
Technical provisions - non-life  3,855,161,138   3,855,161,138   -    
Best Estimate Direct 
Insurance (excluding Earthquake 
reserves)  3,580,241,340   3,580,241,340   -    
Best estimate Direct Insurance 
Earthquake reserves  46,081,724   46,081,724   -    
Margin over best estimate Direct 
insurance  65,666,608   65,666,608   -    
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Particulars  Financial  Solvency  Difference Remarks   
 Statement Balance Sheet
Best estimate Accepted 
reinsurance (excluding Earthquake 
reserves)  151,105,260   151,105,260   -    
Best estimate Accepted Earthquake 
reserves  5,670,268   5,670,268   -    
Margin over best estimate Accepted 
reinsurance  6,395,938   6,395,938   -    
Technical provisions - life 
(excluding index-linked and unit-linked)  -     -     -       
Best Estimate Direct insurance 
participating life insurance  -     -     -    
Best Estimate Direct insurance 
non-participating life insurance  -     -     -    
Margin over best estimate Direct 
insurance  -     -     -    
Best estimate Accepted reinsurance  -     -     -    
Margin over best estimate Accepted 
reinsurance  -     -     -    
Technical provisions - index-linked 
and unit-linked life insurance contracts  -     -     -    
Technical provisions calculated as a 
whole (unit reserves)  -     -     -    
Best Estimate (non unit reserves)  -     -     -    
Margin over best estimate  -     -     -    
Other technical provisions  -      -    
Reinsurance deposits and payables  572,673,322   572,673,322   -    
Deposits from reinsurers  -     -     -    
Reinsurance payables  572,673,322   572,673,322   -    
Insurance, coinsurance and 
intermediaries payables  11,254,498   11,254,498   -    
Payables to insurers other than 
coinsurance  4,616,370   4,616,370   -    
Payables to coinsurance/pools  -     -     -    
Payables to intermediaries  6,638,128   6,638,128   -    
Other payables (not related to 
insurance or reinsurance)  198,798,659   198,798,659   -    
Debts owed to credit institutions  -     -     -    
Other fi nancing debts  -     -     -    
Qualifi ed as Tier 1 Available 
Capital Resources  -     -     -    
Qualifi ed as Tier 2 Available 
Capital Resources  -     -     -    
Not qualifi ed as Available 
Capital Resources  -     -     -    
Derivatives  -     -     -    
Current tax liabilities  -     -     -    
Provisions other than technical 
provisions  8,161,536   8,161,536   -    
Contingent liabilities  -     -     -    
Pension benefi t obligations  -     -     -    
Deferred tax liabilities  62,643,522   -     62,643,522  Deferred tax recalculated for  
    solvency balance which resulted  
    in deferred tax asset, and hence  
    not recognized for solvency.
Any other liabilities, not 
elsewhere shown  264,667,494   264,667,494   -    
Total liabilities  4,973,360,169   4,910,716,647   62,643,522 
Excess of assets over liabilities  4,898,330,180 
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EQUITY 
Share capital  2,500,157,400 
Share application money pending allotment  -   
Share premium  -   
Special reserves  1,915,995,874 
Catastrophe reserves  82,335,797 
Retained earnings  306,896,399 
Other equity  403,662,231 
Revaluation reserves  259,148,731 
Capital reserves  -   
Corporate Social Responsability Reserves (CSR)  5,752,347 
Insurance Fund  -   
Fair Value Reserves  63,238,652 
Actuarial reserves  -   
Deferred Tax Reserves  75,522,501 
Other reserves  -   
Total Equity  5,209,047,701 

TIER 1 CAPITAL. List of items Solvency balance sheet
Excess of assets over liability as per Solvency Balance Sheet 4,898,330,180 
Add:  Paid-in (paid-up) subordinated debts qualifi ed as tier 1 Available Capital Resources  -   
Less: Revaluation reserve (259,148,731) 
Less: CSR Reserve (5,752,347) 
Less: Fair value reserve (63,238,652) 
Less: Actuarial reserve -   
Less: Excess of deferred tax reserve shown in equity of 02.01 BS over deferred tax assets 
as per Financial Statement (75,522,501) 
Less: Assets pledged by the insurer when the facility guaranteed is not in the liability side 
of the solvency balance sheet  -   
Less: Credit Facilities granted by the insurer and secured by its own shares when the facility 
is not in the liability side  -   
Less: Direct and indirect investments, reciprocal cross holdings, arranged either directly or 
indirectly between fi nancial institutions (17,666,932) 
Less:  Assets not valued at nil whose valuation in the solvency balance sheet should not increase 
the Available Capital Resources (200,012,592) 
Less: Deduction as per para 66(6) of Risk-Based Capital and Solvency Directive if not valued at nil in 
solvency balance sheet -   
Less: Deduction as per para 66(7) of Risk-Based Capital and Solvency Directive if not valued at nil in 
solvency balance sheet  -   
Less: Embedded profi t if already included in surplus i.e. excess of assets over liability as per 02.01 BS  -   
TIER 1 - TOTAL BEFORE LIMITS     4,276,988,425 
  
TIER 2 CAPITAL. List of items
Cumulative irredeemable preference shares quallifi ed as tier 2 Available Capital Resources -   
Irredeemable subordinated debts quallifi ed as tier 2 Available Capital Resources  -   
Other capital resources qualifi ed as Tier 2, including unpaid preference shares, unpaid subordinated 
debt, letters of credit, guarantees and mutual member calls -   
Future profi ts embedded in the valuation of technical provisions (reserves) -   
TIER 2 - TOTAL BEFORE LIMITS     -   
  
AVAILABLE CAPITAL RESOURCE [TIER 1 + TIER 2] 4,276,988,425 
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Other Disclosures

Communication Mechanism for Interaction and Information Flow to Stakeholders:
Himalayan Everest Insurance (HEI) maintains a structured communication mechanism to ensure effective and 
transparent interaction with all stakeholders, including customers, employees, shareholders, regulators, and 
business partners. This framework fosters trust, collaboration, and accountability across the organization

Objectives of the Communication Mechanism
• Transparency & Accountability: Provide clear, accurate, and reliable information about organizational activities,
  performance, and decisions.
• Timely Communication: Ensure stakeholders receive information promptly to make informed decisions.
• Two-way Engagement: Facilitate feedback from stakeholders to enhance processes, products, and services.
• Regulatory Compliance: Ensure adherence to statutory requirements and industry standards.

Publication of Statutory Notices
HEI publishes statutory notices in national newspapers and on its offi cial website, including:
• Quarterly proactive disclosures as required by the Right to Information Act.
• Quarterly fi nancial statements.
• Notices for Annual or Special General Meetings, including fi nancial statements.
• Announcements regarding book closure, bonus shares, right shares, or new share issuance.
• Any other notices required by law or regulation.

Responsibility and Accountability
Role    Responsibilities
Information Offi cer  Primary contact for public information requests.
Company Secretary  Responsible for shareholder-related communication.
Nodal Offi cer   Handles general inquiries and internal information requests.

Stakeholders may approach the relevant offi cer to obtain legitimate information in a timely and transparent 
manner.

Stakeholder Group
Policyholders

Employees 
& Internal 
Stakeholders

Shareholders

Regulatory 
Authorities & 
Compliance Bodies

Business Partners 
& Reinsurers

Channels & Methods
Website, SMS/Email alerts, Social 
Media

Emails & circulars, Meetings & 
workshops, Internal collaboration 
platforms (e.g., MS Teams), 
newsletters

Annual General Meetings, Reports 
(annual/Quarterly fi nancial, 
performance), Notices

Reports, Meetings, Offi cial 
correspondence

Trainings, Coordination meetings, 
Workshops

Purpose / Use
Provide information on policies, renewals, 
claims updates, and engage directly with 
customers.

Share organizational updates, procedural 
changes, gather feedback, and enhance 
professional skills.

Communicate fi nancial performance, 
strategic decisions, and updates.

Submit statutory reports, maintain 
compliance, and ensure regulatory 
alignment.

Provide product updates, compliance 
guidance, and ensure adequate reinsurance 
coverage.

Communication Channels
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As part of its ongoing efforts to strengthen internal 
communication, promote knowledge sharing, and 
foster a learning and reading culture within the 
organization, Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited 
(HEI) introduced “HEI Insight”, the Company’s internal 
monthly newsletter.

HEI Insight is an initiative of the Branding and Corporate 
Communication Department and was offi cially 
launched in Poush 2081. During FY 81/82, a total of 
seven (7) issues of the newsletter were published and 
circulated internally.

The newsletter serves as an informative platform that 
captures and refl ects the collective identity of the HEI 
family. It features ideas, articles, and creative write-ups 
contributed by employees across various departments, 
levels and provinces, thereby encouraging staff 

HEI INSIGHTS
The

 Monthly Newsletter

participation and intellectual engagement.

HEI Insight also highlights key activities conducted 
within the organization, including training and 
development programs, partnerships, internal events, 
corporate initiatives, and other signifi cant milestones. 
Through regular updates, the newsletter keeps 
employees informed about ongoing developments 
and achievements across the Company.

This initiative represents a continuous effort by the 
Company to cultivate learning habits, encourage reading 
culture, and enhance awareness of organizational 
activities among employees. By strengthening 
internal communication and engagement, HEI Insight 
contributes to building a more informed, connected, 
and knowledge-driven workforce, aligned with the 
Company’s values and long-term strategic objectives.
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31st AGM glimpses.

HEI joins hands with the Nepal Motion Pictures Association for its Golden Jubilee 
celebration.

HEi partnership with Frontline Hospital.

HEI staff s attending risk management training.

31st AGM glimpses.

HEI staff s attending training session by Insurance Institute of Nepal.

HEI partnership with VAYODHA hospital.

HEI honouring staff s childrens who have graduated SEE examination.
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BAGMATI PROVINCE
Bajrabarahi Sub Branch 01-5572943
Banepa Branch 01-1660408
Baneshwor Branch 01-4592875
Chabahil Sub Branch 01-4478980
Chautara Sub Branch 01-1620250
Chaya Devi Extention Counter Offi ce 
Dhading Sub Branch 01-0590123
Gongabu Branch 01-4957099
Gwarko Sub Branch 01-5920390
Hattisar Main Branch Offi ce 01-4544717
Hetauda Branch 057-590753
Jawalakhel Branch 01-5420366
Kalanki Branch 01-5925349
Kalimati Branch 01-5303076
Kaushaltar Branch 01-6639730
Khurkot Offi ce 047-590465
Lagankhel Branch 01-5431307
Maharajgunj Branch 01-5908563
Melamchi Sub Branch 011-401082
Narayangadh Branch 056-598482
New Road Branch 01-4232952
Nuwakot Sub Branch 010-560616
Parsa Branch 056-583167
Sallaghari Branch 01-6620527
Samakhusi Branch 01-4964516
Sanobharyang TP Counter  
Sindhuli Branch 047-590465
Thamel Branch 01-4960272
Thankot Sub Branch 01-4316628
Uttardhoka Branch 01-4542405

GANDAKI PROVINCE
Baglung Branch 068-520870

OUR NETWORKS
Damauli Sub Branch 065-562683
Dumre TP 9805846731
Gorkha Sub Branch 064-590033
Kawasoti Branch 078-541194
Lekhnath Branch 061-582188
Pokhara Branch 061-585200
Syangja Sub Branch  9801911062

KARNALI PROVINCE
Chinchu Branch 083-590978
Dailekh Branch 091-590623
Kalikot Branch 087-440290
Surkhet Branch 083-522567

KOSHI PROVINCE
Biratchowk Branch 021-547471
Biratnagar Branch 021-590142
Birtamod Branch 023-530787
Birtamod TP 9824125610
Damak Branch 023-574982
Dharan Branch 025-539167
Duhabi Branch 025-542239
Gaighat Branch 035-590027
Ilam Sub Branch 027-590015
Itahari Branch 025-588990
Kakadvitta Branch 023-591122
Mahendra Chowk Branch 021-518130
Panchthar Sub Branch 024-590127
Pathari Branch 021-555960

LUMBINI PROVINCE
Bardiya Branch 084-420114
Bhairahawa Branch 071-570023
Bhairahawa TP 

Butwal Branch 071-437266
Chandrauta Sub Branch 076-540702
Ghorahi Branch 082-564395
Jeetpur Sub Branch 076-590714
Kohalpur Branch 081-531692
Manigram TP 
Nepalgunj Branch 081-535070
Parasi Branch 078-590336
Pushpalal Park Branch 071-532294
Tulshipur Branch 082-590375

MADHESH PROVINCE
Adarshanagar Branch 051-531026
Barahathawa Branch 046-590918
Bardibas Branch 044-590876
Birgunj Branch 051-525366
Chandranigahapur Branch 055-540003
Dhanusha Branch 031-590144
Janakpur Branch 041-420516
Janakpur TP 9816829004
Kallaiya Branch 053-590311
Lahan Branch 033-563952
Lalbandi Branch 046-590082
Mirchaiya Branch 033-550510
Rajbiraj Branch 031-590144
Simara Branch 053-520148

SUDURPASCHIM PROVINCE
Attariya Branch 091-590630
Dhangadhi Branch 091-416163
Lamki Branch 091-590623
Mahendranagar Branch 099-590018
Sanfebagar Sub Branch 097-590474

5 Branches
4 Branches

8 Branches

13 Branches

Above Above

HEI agent network Surveyor network
350 200

1 Headoffi ce
30 Branches

14 Branches 14 Branches
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